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INTRODUCTORY SECTION

This section includes misceilancous data regarding the Village of Libertyville including: List of
Principal Officials, Organizational Chart, Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting, and Letter of Transmittal from the Director of Finance/Treasurer.



October 9, 2006

To the Citizens of the Village of Libertyville:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Village of Libertyville for the fiscal
year ended April 30, 2006 is hereby submitted. This report consists of the Village of
Libertyville management staff’s representations concerning the finances of the Village
of Libertyville. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the
completeness and reliability of all the information presented in this report. To provide
a reasonable basis for making these representations, management has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the
government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable
information for the preparation of the Village of Libertyville’s financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Because the cost of
internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Village of Libertyville’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable
rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

In 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) adopted Statement
No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — Management’s Discussion and Analysis — For
State and Local Governments. Beginning with the April 30, 2004 financial statements,
the Village of Libertyville was required to comply with GASB 34. As such, the reader
will notice many changes in scope, approach and presentation with reports after this
date as compared to financial statements prior to this date.

The Village of Libertyville’s financial statements have been audited by Lauterbach &
Amen, LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the
independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the
Village of Libertyville for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2006, are free of material
misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unqualified opinion that the Village of Libertyville’s financial statements for the fiscal
year ended April 30, 2006, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The
independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section
of this report.



The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in three sections: introductory,
financial, and statistical (unaudited). GAAP requires that management provide a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial
statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD &A). This
letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD & A and is meant to be read in
conjunction with it. The Village’s MD & A can be found immediately following the
report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Village of Libertyville

The Village of Libertyville, incorporated in 1882, is located in Lake County and lies
approximately thirty-five miles north of the City of Chicago and seven miles west of
I.ake Michigan. The Village covers an area of approximately nine square miles with
unincorporated areas to the north and northwest. The Village has good transportation
links to the Chicago metropolitan area and the interstate highway system. The Village
is within one-half mile of Interstate 94 (Tri-State Tollway), the highway which
connects the Chicago metropolitan area to Milwaukee. Located within commuting
distance of Chicago, the Village has experienced strong growth in taxable valuation
and new residential, commercial and industrial construction. Socioceconomic indices
highlight the affluent character of the community with home values a third higher than
the regional norm and per capita income almost double the state average. Although
much of the Village is developed, there is open space bordering the corporate limits
with the potential for further annexation.

The Village is governed by a President and Board of six trustees. Policy making and
legislative authority are vested in the Village Board. The Village Board is responsible
for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees and hiring the
Village’s Administrator and Attorney. The Village Administrator is responsible for
carrying out the policies and ordinances of the Village Board and for overseeing the
day-to day operations of the Village The Village President and Village Board are
elected at large on a non-partisan basis to four-year staggered terms.

The Village provides a full range of services, including police, fire protection and
paramedic services, parks and recreation, maintenance of streets, bridges and sewers,
building and zoning, code enforcement, water distribution and waste water treatment.
The financial reporting entity of the Village of Libertyville, as defined by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, is comprised of all the
funds and account groups of the primary government (i.e., the Village of Libertyville as
legally defined). The Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC) and the
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency(IRMA) are defined as public entity risk
pools and are accounted for accordingly.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Village’s financial planning and

control. During the month of October, the Village Board meets to review the status of
goals and priorities from the previous year and to develop goals for the upcoming year.
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These goals and priorities are distributed to the department heads as they prepare their
budget proposals. Al departments of the Village are required to submit their budget
requests to the Village Administrator during the first week of January each year. The
Village Administrator and Finance Director use these requests to develop the proposed
budget which is presented 1o the Village Board during the second week of February.
The Village Board is required to hold a public hearing on the proposed budget and to
adopt a final budget no later than April 30™ of each year.

Economie Condition and Outlook

The Village continues to maintain a favorable financial position, with sizable fund
balances in relation to revenues and substantial taxing margin still available for general
operations, During this past year, the Village has seen some improvement in the local
economy similar to what has been experienced in the State of Illinois and Lake County,
With the improvement in the economy, sales tax revenues increased this fiscal year
due to increases in consumer purchases such as food, furniture and clothing. Auto
dealerships account for approximately 65% of sales tax receipts and the Village expects
this revenue source to be stable over the next several years., The Village has also seen
an increase in State of [Hinois shared taxes which have helped to generate a $202,488
surplus in the Village’s general fund. Overall, the Village's increasing wealth and
income levels are reflected in a substantial tax base which continues to appreciate in
value. The Village's strong financial condition is recognized by Moody's Investors
Service with recent rating upgrade to Aal.

Major Initiatives

During the 2005-06 fiscal year, the Village completed $883,000 in Village-wide street
rehabilitation projects which represented approximately 2 miles of the Village's
approximate 80 mile street system. These projects were funded by a combination of
Motor Fuel Tax funds, and vehicle sticker revenues. The Village Board approved
increasing the cost of vehicle stickers from $20 to $30 per vehicle which will provide
funding for future roadway improvements.

Over $800,000 in improvements and repairs were made to the Village’s water and
sanitary sewer system. This included upgrades to the Village’s SCADA system that
allows water operators to monitor and control the water system from a remote location.

As part of the Mayor and Village Board’s economic development strategy, the Village
hired a professional for the newly created economic development coordinator position
who will work to attract and attain business activity in the Village.

The Village Board also increased the Infrastructure Maintenance Fee that is assessed on

all wired and wireless phone charges. The increase has been earmarked for economic
development activity, technology needs and roadway improvements.

sen
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For the Future - For 2006, the Village will continue its emphasis on infrastructure and
capital improvements. The 2006-07 budget includes $1.1 million in Motor Fuel Tax
and Capital Improvement Fund revenues for asphalt resurfacing, $3.4 million in water
main, sanitary sewer and wastewater treatment plant improvements, and funded a study
to improve the Riverside Park Clubhouse. Overall, the Village has budgeted over $5.8
million in capital expenditures for 2006-07.

The Village is near completion of a major project with the Army Corps of Engineers to
implement planned improvements to Butler shoreline to include shoreline stabilization,
native prairie restoration and shoreline fishing stations. The Village has also hired an
environmental consultant to provide for cattail control once this project is completed.

The Village Board selected the Hummell Group as the developer of the School Street
Redevelopment Project. Hummell proposes to construct 10 condominiums in the
renovated Central School Building and 31 brownstone townhomes along School Street.
In previous fiscal years, the Village had purchased the majority of the property along
School Street with School District 70 owning the balance. The sale of the property
took place in August and proceeds from the sale of the property to the Hummell Group
will be shared between the Village and School District 70.

Village staff will work with the Village Board and a consultant to evaluate the
possibility of extending the current Tax Increment Financing District (TIF) or to
possibly create a new TIF area. Another option being considered is to establish a
Special Service Area for the downtown area in order to provide funding for
maintenance and improvements to the downtown area once the TIF is expired in 2009.

The Village is also looking to purchase property next to the downtown commuter train
station in order to expand the parking and move the station further to the west. This
will help alleviate traffic congestion along Milwaukee Avenue in the downtown area.

Financial Information

Management of the Village is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
controls designed to ensure that the assets of the government are protected from loss,
theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for
the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

Cash Management - Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand
deposits, certificates of deposit, money market accounts, commercial paper, United
States Agency obligations and obligations of the United States Treasury. As of April
30, 3006, the average yield on General Fund investments was 4.02%. The Police and
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Firefighters' pension funds realized a yield of 10.49% and 12.1% respectively for this
same period. The Village earned 1.7 million on all investments for the year ended
April 30, 2006. The Village of Libertyville has developed a comprehensive written
investment policy, following these certain cash management and investment principles:

- Safety of principal is of foremost importance to the Village of Libertyville. Each
investment transaction will seek first to ensure that capital losses are avoided whether
they are from securities defaults or erosion of market value.

- Diversification of investments plays an important part in guaranteeing asset safety.
The Village maintains diversity in its investments to avoid incurring unreasonable risks
from concentrating investments in specific security types and/or particular financial
institutions.

- The investment program must serve operating needs of the Village. The Village's
investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to enable the Village to meet all
operating requirements which may be reasonably anticipated in any Village fund.

- Public confidence in the investment program and practices is essential. In managing
its investment portfolio, the Village will avoid any transaction that might impair public
confidence in the governing body. Investments shall be made based upon standards of
care which would, under then current circumstances, be utilized by reasonable, prudent
persons in the management of their own affairs. Such standards emphasize proper
investment, rather than speculation. Therefore, the safety of capital is more critical toa
determination of appropriate investment than the probable income to be derived.

Risk Management - The Village of Libertyville is a member of the Intergovernmental
Risk Management Agency (IRMA), which is an organization of sixty-eight
municipalities and five special districts in the six-county colar area around Chicago,
which have joined together to pool insurance risk, cost, and coverage. IRMA, through
its risk-sharing provisions, provides the Village with coverage for lability, property
damage, automobile, and worker's compensation insurance. The Village's successful
loss control efforts are reflected in its loss experience, which continues to be below the
IRMA average. This positive loss experience will help to minimize the rate of increase
of the Village's annual IRMA contribution. The Village recently joined a new
intergovernmental cooperative, the Intergovernmental Public Benefit Cooperative
(IPBQC), to provide health and life insurance benefits for employees. Because of this
change, the Village’s premiums for 2006-07 did not increase over the 2005-06 costs.

Pension and Other Post-Employment Benefits -~ The Village sponsors a single-
employer defined benefit pension plan for its police and fire officers. Each year, an
independent actuary engaged by the Village and the pension plans calculates the
amount of the annual contribution that the Village must make to the pension plan to
ensure that the plan will be able to fully meets its obligations to retired employeeson a
timely basis. As a matter of policy, the Village fully funds each year’s annual required
contribution to the respective pension plans as determined by the actuary. As a result




of the Village’s conservative funding policy, the Village has succeeded as of April 30,
2005, in funding 62.2% of the Police Pension and 74.5% of the Firefighter’s Pension
actuarial accrued liabilities. The remaining unfunded liability is being systematically
funded through 2033 as purt of the annusl required contribution calculated by the
actuary.

The Village also provides pension benefits for its non-public safety employees. These
benefits are provided through a statewide plan managed by the Illinois Municipal
Retirement Fund (IMRF). The Village has no obligation in connection with employee
benetits offered through this plan beyond its contractual payments to IMRF.

Additional information on the Village’s pension arrangements can be found in the
notes in the financial statements,

Awards and Acknowledgments - The Government Finance Officers Association
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
to the Village of Libertyville for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal
vear ended April 30, 2005. This was the thirteenth consecutive year the Village
received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement,
the government published an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report. This report satisfied both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that
our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program's requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report on a timely basis was
made possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of the Finance Department
and in particular the efforts of the Assistant Finance Director, Paul Bober and Staff
Accountant, Ariel Tax. We would like to express our sincere appreciation to all, as
well as the Mayor and Board of Trustees who encourage and insist upon the highest
standards of excellence in planning and conducting the financial operations of the
Village.

Sincerely,

Frin ) Bowwena Fobpe 4 Lraloust
Kevin J. Bowens Patricia A. Wesolowski
Village Administrator Director of Finance
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Village of Libertyville,
Hlinois

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
April 30, 2005

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirerent
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

Cltas bty

President

Bty £ o

Executive Director

ix



FINANCIAL SECTION

This section includes:
* Independent Auditors’ Report
e Management’s Discussion and Analysis
* Basic Financial Statementis
¢ Required Supplementary Information

e Combining and Individual Fund Schedules



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

This section includes the opinion of the Village’s independent auditing firm.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

September 14, 2006

The Honorable Village President
Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Libertyville, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information for the Village of
Libertyville, Illinois as of and for the year ended April 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the Village
of Libertyville’s basic financial statements as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These basic
financial statements are the responsibility of the Village of Libertyville, lllinois' management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall basic financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type aclivities, the aggregate discretely
presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of
Libertyville, IHinois as of April 30, 2006, and the respective changes in financial position and the cash
flows, were applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The combining and individual fund schedules, as well as the information listed as supplemental and
schedules, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements of the Village of Libertyville, lllinois. Such information, except for that portion
marked "unaudited” on which we express no opinion, has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is presented fairly, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.



Village of Libertyville, Illinois
Scptember 14, 2006
Page 2

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the other required supplementary information listed in the
accompanying table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted primarily of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion thereon.

The introductory and statistical information listed in the table of contents was not audited by us and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion thereon.

M*%ZLP

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



Village of Libertyville, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2006

Our discussion and analysis of the Village of Libertyville’s financial performance provides an
overview of the Village of Libertyville’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended April 30,
2006. Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the
currenf year’s activities, readers are urged to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information that is furnished in the letter of transmittal (beginning on
page i} and the Village’s financial statements which begin on page 18.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The Village of Libertyville’s net assets exceeded its liabilities as of April 30, 2006, by
$163,346,357. Net assets of governmental activities amounts to $144,486,826 and for
business activities are $18,859,531. This is the first year that the Village has included
infrastructure assets for governmental funds. In comparison, governmental net assets
as of April 30, 2005, before the inclusion of governmental infrastructure, amounted to
$36,643,888.

e The Village of Libertyville’s total net assets increased by $271,895 with the general
governmental activities net assets increasing by $1,405,848 and the business-type
activities net assets decreasing by $1,133,953,

¢ Revenues for governmental activities increased by $1,986,992 or 8.5% while
expenses for governmental activities increased by $2,485,501 or 11.6%.

» Revenues for business-type activities increased by $219,295 or 2% while expenses
for these activities increased $229,837 or 2%.

» As of April 30, 2006, the unreserved fund balance for the governmental funds was
$12,590,571 or approximately 53% of total the governmental fund expenditures.

o The Village of Libertyville did not issue bonds during this fiscal year. Total bonded
debt decreased by $2,330,000 to $32,890,000 due to scheduled debt maturities.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities {(on pages 18 - 21) provide information about the activities of the
Village of Libertyville as a whole and present a longer-term view of the Village of Libertyville’s
finances. Fund financial statements begin on page 22, For governmental activities, these
statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for
future spending. Fund financial statements also report the Village of Libertyville’s operation in
more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the Village of
Libertyville’s most significant funds. The report also contains other supplementary and statistical
iformation in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
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Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide readers with a broad overview of the Village
of Libertyville’s finances, in a matter similar to a private-sector business. The government wide
financial statements can be found on pages 18 - 21 of this report.

The Statement of Net Assets reports information on all of the Village of Libertyville’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Village of Libertyville is improving or deteriorating. Consideration of other nonfinancial factors,
such as changes in the Village of Libertyville’s property tax base and the condition of the Village
of Libertyville’s roads, is needed to assess the overall health of the Village of Libertyville.

‘The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Village’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Village of
Libertyville that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues
(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities of the Village of Libertyville include general government, public safety, highways and
streets, community development, economic development, and parks and recreation. The
business-type activities of the Village of Libertyville include waterworks and sewerage and the
Libertyville Sports Complex, which includes an indoor recreation center, golf learning center and
family entertainment center.

The government-wide financial statements include only the financial activities of the Village of
Libertyville. The government-wide statements do not include the Police Pension and Fire
Pension Funds as they are considered blended component units. There are no component units
such as affiliated school or library districts.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund 1s a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Village of Libertyville, like other local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All of the funds of the Village of Libertyville can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
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Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activitics in the government-wide financial statements. However, governmental
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating the Village of Libertyville’s near-term financing
requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Village’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate the comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Village of Libertyville maintains five individual governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
staternent of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Debt
Service Fund, the Capital Improvements Fund, and the Tax Increment Financing District
Construction Fund, all of which are considered major funds. Data from the other governmental
fund, Commuter Parking, is listed as a Nonmajor Fund.

The Village of Libertyville adopts an annual appropriated budget for all of the governmental
funds. A budgetary comparison statement for these funds has been provided to demonstrate
compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 22 - 27 of this report.
Proprietary Funds

The Village of Libertyville maintains two different types of proprietary funds: enterprise and
internal service. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-
type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Village of Libertyville utilizes
enterprise funds to account for its waterworks and sewerage activities, and the Libertyville
Sports Complex. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and
allocate costs internally among the Village of Libertyville’s various functions.
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The Village of Libertyville uses internal service funds to account for its fleet of vehicles and
construction equipment and for its technology costs. Because both of these services
predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been
consolidated into the governmental column when presented in the government-wide financial
statements.

Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-
wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide
separate information for the Waterworks and Sewerage Fund and for the Libertyville Sports
Complex Ifund, both of which are considered to be major funds of the Village of Libertyville.
Conversely, both internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in
the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 28 - 31 of this report.
Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Village of Libertyville’s
own programs. The accounting use for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary
funds. The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 32 - 33 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 34 - 75 of this report.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning the Village of Libertyviile’s LM.R.F. and
police and firefighters employee pension obligations. Required supplementary information can
be found on pages 76 - 81 of this report. The combining statements referred to earlier in
connection with non-major governmental funds and internal service funds are presented
immediately following the required supplementary information on pensions. Combining and
individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 82 - 131 of this report.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The
following tables show that in the case of the Village of Libertyville, assets exceeded liabilities by
$163.3 million. Net assets increased less than 1%, from $163,074,462 to $163,346,357. Total
net assets for governmental activities increased by $1,405,848. For business-type activities, net
assets decreased by $1,133,953 (5.67%).

Exhibit 1

Government-wice Financial Analysis Worksheet

Sovernmental Activities Business-type Activities Totat Primary Covermment
Current Prior Y% Current Prior Y% Current Prior %
Becount Year Year Change Chy Year Year Chasge Chy Year Yoar Change Chg

Statemnent of Net Assets
Copil assets § 137481300 163313 1813 085% . 46043888 ATI0TOS -1,346817  284% MREAE268  186,054018 2528760 -1.35%
Curent end other assels 24572 831 218867314 2636197  1204% 2541015 3502043 6128 27.44% 27063946 25388777 1675169 660%
Total assets 162,004,301 160,550,047 1454254 09% 48584003 60892748 2307845 -4.53% 210588204 201442795 B53501  -040%
Long-tean liabilities 6,743,060 7617,499 874438 -11.48% 26958830 28219004 1260974 447% 33701800 35836503 213613 H55%
Other Lighilities 10774415 9,851,570 922845 937T% 2,765,642 2,680,260 |22 A% 13540057 12,531,830 1008127 B05%
Told Liabilties 17.517 475 17,469,069 48406 028% 28725372 30899264 1973892 -380% 47,242,847 48368333 -1.125480 233%
Net assets:

Ivestedin capital assets, 130,700,288 130,957,338 257,040 020% B046127  1BOVLIGT 25070 0.14% 148,746425 149,028,535 28210 -019%

net of related debt

Restricledt 1,206,009 1725315 518316 -3004% - - - - 4,208,909 725315 518316 -

Unvestricted 12,579,522 10388325 2181204  2098% 813,44 1922287 -1,108883 -57.69% 13392933 123M612 1072321 870°%
Tota net assels 144,486,826 143,080,978 14065848 0.98% 18,650,534 10993484  -1,133953 -56/% 163,346,357 163,074,462 271896 017%

There are six basic (normal) transactions that will affect the comparability of the Statement of
Net Assets summary presentation,

Net Results of Activities — which will impact (increase/decrease) current assets and unrestricted
net assets.

Borrowing for Capital — which will increase current assets and long-term debt.

Spending Borrowed Proceeds on New Capital — which will reduce current assets and increase
capital assets. There is a second impact, an increase in invested capital assets and an increase in
related net debt which will not change the invested in capital assets, net of debt.

Principal Payment on Debt — which will reduce current assets and reduce long-term debt, and
reduce unrestricted net assets and increase invested in capital assets, net of debt.

Reduction of Capital Assets through Depreciation — which will reduce capital assets and invested
in capital assets, net of debt.
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By far the largest portion of the Village of Libertyville’s net assets, which is 91 percent, reflects
its investment in capital assets (for example, land, buildings, machinery, and equipment, and
infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The
Village of Libertyville uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens'; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Village of Libertyville’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. This is the first year the Village has
reported governmental infrastructure assets. Net assets invested in capital assets increased from
76% of all assets to 91% due to this change.

An additional portion or 1 percent of the Village of Libertyville’s net assets represents resources
that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining 8 percent, or
$13.4 million, represents unrestricted net assets and may be used to meet the village’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

Net assets of the Village of Libertyville’s governmental activities increased by 1 percent
($144,486,826 compared to $143,080,978). Unrestricted net assets, the part of net assets that can
be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints, total $12,579,529. As of April 30,
2006, the unrestricted net assets amounts to 51% of operating expenses ($24,530,949) of
governmental activities.

During the 2005-06 fiscal year, net assets of business-type activities decreased by 5.7 percent
($18,859.531 compared to $19,993,484). This decrease, however, cannot be offset by the
increase reported in governmental activities. The Village of Libertyville generally can only use
these net assets to finance the continuing operations of governmental activities of the Village.
Excluding depreciation both the Waterworks and Sewage and the Libertyville Sports Complex
generated an operating income this fiscal year. When depreciation and interest expenditures are
added, both funds experienced a net loss. This is the fourth year of operation for the Sports
Complex and the Village had anticipated a loss for the first three years. The Village made
adjustments to the 2005-06 budget for the Sports Complex in order to break even or generate a
small surplus; however, the large amount of debt expense has continued to cause a net loss for
the complex. The Village Board has authorized staff to examine the possibility of selling a
portion of the property that the Family Entertainment Center is located on. Once this property is
sold, the proceeds will be used to pay off a portion of debt in order to reduce annual debt
expenditures so the Complex is able to break even or generate a surplus.

Total revenues (excluding special items) increased from $33,351,128 to $35,558,015 or 7%. The
total cost of all programs and services increased from $32,647,495 to $35,286,120 or 8%.
Exhibit #2 compares the revenue and expenses for the current and prior fiscal years.



Village of Libertyville, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

April 30, 2006
Exhibit 2
Government-wide Financlal Analysis Worksheet
Curvent Prior Current Prior Current Priov
Actount Year Year Change Year Year Change Year Year Change
5 ¢ Bictiviti
Program revenues
General Govermnment $  3znzen ansiard 231405 - - 3272877 3,041,474 23148
Corrrmunity Developrment 330,339 195,770 133,568 - - 33338 106,770 133,569
Public Safely 2,656,464 2473544 182,620 - - 2656464 2473544 182,920
Fublic Wbrks 669,307 618,285 51,621 - - 669,307 616,265 51,02t
Parks & Recreation 1,320,083 1196794 123289 - - 1,320083 1,196,754 123289
Eeonomic Development - - - - - - - - -
Witerworks and Sewerage - - - 6911448 6,306,009 516,349 6011448 6,326,099 575,348
| inertydite Sports Complex - - - 3223825 3683227 388,402 3,223825 3613227 389,402
General revenues
Taxes 6,835,123 6,300,597 534,128 26784 2,784 - 6,861,907 6,327,781 534,126
Intergovernmerntal 9,304,765 8912562 452,208 - - - 9,394,765 32562 482 203
Interest Income 431,633 184,131 24T A2 90527 56319 33,948 521,860 240510 281350
Msceftaneous 397,140 396,081 1,060 8,000 5,000 - 395,140 354,081 1050
Total Reverwes 25207638 30639 1,886 99 10,260,384 10,040.489 219,895 35,558/115 33,351,128 2,206,837
Program Bxpenses
General Govermment 2504 575 2,167 065 172,480 - - - 2.594 575 2,767,056 -172.480
Conrrunity Devetoprment 1,034,897 968,502 66,395 - - - 1,034,897 868,502 66,355
Public Safety 13,666,356 H,204047 2452308 - - - 13,666,355 11,204,047 2,462,308
Public Vibrks 3225742 201215 1,214527 - - - 3225742 201.21% 294,527
Parks & Recration 3,000,371 3550485 470,114 - - - 3,080,371 3,560,485 -A70.114
Evonamic Development 124,291 703633 579,342 - - - 12421 703,633 -5719.342
Interest on Long-termn Debt 269242 305035 -35793 - - - 200,242 305,035 -35,793
\Abterworks & Sewerage - - - 7,303,198 6,507,568 796610 7.308,198 6507 568 795610
Libertyville Sports Commplex - - - 3967 440 4,563,222 -565,773 3,567,449 4,553,222 (565,773)
Assets Before Transfers 23995473 21509972 2.485,501 11,200,647 11,060,810 28837 36,786,120 32,647 495 2,715,338
Increase (Decreass) In Net
Assets Before Transfers 1,302,158 1,600,667 468,500 -1,030,263 -1,020,321 -9,942 271,895 3,633 -508,451
Trensfers 103,660 103,000 [234] -103,690 103,090 -600
Change in Net assets 1,406,848 4,903,757 -497 900 -1,133.953 -1,123.411 -10.542 271,856 103533 408,451
Net Assets - Beginning ais Restated 143080978 34,740,131 108,340,847 19,993 484 21,117,211 -1,123727 163,074,462 558657342 17217120
Net Assels - Ending $ 144486826 35643688 7842938 18,859,531 19,993,600 -1,134,269 163,346,357 566376688 106708,609

Governmental Activities

For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2006, revenues from governmental activities increased from
$23,413,729 to $25,297,631 (8.5%). Intergovernmental Revenues, which consist of sales tax and
state income taxes, which comprise the largest segment of governmental revenues increased 5%
from $8,912,562 to $9,394,765.

Taxes, which is mainly comprised of property taxes, increased by $534,126 (8%) to $6,835,123.
Taxes comprise 27% of the total governmental activities revenue. The Village’s 2004 levy year
equalized assessed valuation increased 6.16%, while the property tax rate for the village
decreased from .479 to .474 per $1000 of equalized assessed valuation for tax year 2004.
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Program revenues, which include fire district payments, building fees, and parks and recreation
fees, amounted to $8,249,090 or 32% of governmental revenues. This revenue source increased
$722,202 (10%) from the previous fiscal year due to building permit and impact fees generated
by several new developments approved in the Village.

Sales tax revenues increased $272,512 (4%) compared to the previous year and also ended the
year slightly above final budget. Some revenue sources o fell short of the final budget estimates,
but overall revenues were above the final budget. Due to higher interest rates, investment
income increased 34% from the previous year.

Revenues by Source - Governmentgal Activities

Interest

Income
Grants & 29, Miscellaneous
Contributions - 2%
3% /
Property Taxes

Charges for /- 27%

Services
30%

Income Tax . Sales, Use &
6% ' Other Tax
30%

The above table graphically depicts the major revenue sources of the Village of Libertyville. Tt
very clearly shows the reliance of sales and property taxes to fund governmental activities.
Approximately 65% of sales tax revenue is generated from auto dealerships. This is down from
70% in previous years due to increased competition from new car dealerships in other
surrounding towns and the automotive industry as a whole. The Village Board has approved the
hiring of an economic development coordinator that will work in attaining and attracting
business activity in Libertyville.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $24,530,949 compared to $21,509,972 last
fiscal year. Due to competition in the local area for qualified employees, the Village did grant a
3.0% salary range adjustment this fiscal year for its non-union employees and both the police and
fire union contracts were settled. Expenditures for governmental funds were below budgeted
amounts. The majority of the increase in expenditures was due to additional capital projects
undertaken this fiscal year such as the Butler Lake improvements, roadway projects along with
engineering fees for future projects. Total expenditures for governmental funds were below
budgeted amounts.

10
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Govermnmental Activities Expenditures
Interest on

Economic Long-Term Go |
Development. Debt o nera
0.51% \ Loy, o evemment
: : 10.58%
Parks & N4 Community
Recreation.... = . Development
12.56% 4%

Public

Works

21.70% Public Safety
49.34%

The expenses and program revenues table below identifies those governmental functions where
program expenses exceed revenues. Most governmental activities do not generate sufficient
program revenues to fund operations. These activities are normally financed through general
property and sales tax revenues.

Expenses and Prograim Revenues - Governmental Activities

14,000,000
12,000,000 " Revenues

10,000,000 |

8,000,000 g Expenses

6,000,000 . ) o

4,000,000 .

2,000,000

'y est
¢lop &-T
e, “rm Deb:
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Business-type activities

Revenues of the Village’s business- type activities increased by 2% ($10,040,489 in 2005
compared to $10,260,384 in 2006) and expenses increased by 2% ($11,060,810 in 2005 and
$11,290,647 in 2006). Key factors behind these results include:

The waterworks and sewerage system saw increased revenues from charges for services
due to the extremely dry summer months. Excluding depreciation, this fund had a change
in net assets of $700,069. Once depreciation of $1,071,545 is included, this becomes a
negative change in net assets of $371,476. Expenses before depreciation amounted to
$6,231,653 compared to $5,059,052 in 2005, This change is attributable to an increase
in the amount of water purchased along with increased capital maintenance costs for
infrastructure.

The Libertyville Sports Complex had an operating income of $438,584 compared to last
year’s income of $407,618. With the addition of depreciation and debt expense, the
complex had a net loss or decrease in net assets of $762,477. Operating expenses before
depreciation and debt amounted to $2,307,613 compared to $2,411,333 in 2005.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-Type

Activities

wExponsss
8,000,000 | Program Revenues 1
7,000,000 | e
6,000,000 4
5,000,000 .
4,000,000 .
3,000,000 .
2,000,000
1,000,000 .

Waterworks and Libertyville Sports
Sewerage Conmplex

The above graph compares program expenses to revenues for waterworks and sewerage
operations, and The Libertyville Sports Complex. The Village has authorized staff to sell a
portion of Sports Complex property where the current Family Entertainment Center is located
since the underlying property is more valuable than the cash flows generated by the Family
Entertainment Center. The proceeds will be used to reduce the amount of debt and to refund the
current bonds outstanding. Projections have shown the complex will break even or generate a
profit once this is completed

12
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Village of Libertyville uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds

The focus of the Village’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $15,100,701, which is 12% above last year’s total of $13,492,019. Approximately
89% of the governmental fund balance total constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is
available for spending at the village’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to
indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed 1) to pay
debt service ($945,055), 2) to fund specific programs ($726,535), or 3) for prepaid insurance
premiums and special purposes ($838,540).

The General fund is the chief operating fund of the Village. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $9,706,124, while total fund balance reached
$10,544,569. This is slightly above last year’s total fund balance of $10,342,081. As a measure
of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 48% of total
general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 52% of that same amount.

The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $945,055, all of which is reserved for the
payment of debt service. The fund balance increased $21,646 from the previous fiscal year
mainly due to increased earnings on investments,

The Capital Improvement Fund provides funding for capital projects of the Village of
Libertyville which are not normal operating or maintenance type expendifures reportable within
the general fund or other governmental funds. The total fund balance as of April 30, 20006 is
$985,563, of which 100% is unreserved. The Capital Improvement Fund balance decreased by
$307,322 this fiscal year due to the costs of the Butler Lake Improvements. The Village used
park impact fees that were collected in previous fiscal years to fund this improvement.

The Tax Increment Financing Construction (TIF) Fund provides funding for the redevelopment
of the Village’s downtown area. The TIF is due to expire in 2009. The total fund balance
increased by $1,518,161. Fund balance as of April 30, 2005 was $380,723. The majority of
streetscape and infrastructure projects have been completed in the TIF area. The Village is
currently working on a parking study to provide for parking structures on both the east and west
side of Milwaukee Avenue.
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The Commuter Parking Fund is included as a governmental fund but is considered a nonmajor
fund. Fund balance increased by $173,709 to $726,630. The Village is planning on purchasing
property to increase the size of the commuter parking facility and is planning on using some of
this fund balance for repayment of a possible debt issue.

Proprietary Funds

The Village of Libertyville’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. The Village reports the Waterworks
and Sewerage Fund and Sports Complex Fund as major proprietary funds. These funds account
for all of the operations of the municipal water and sewer system and the sports complex. Water
is purchased from the Central Lake County Joint Action Water Agency (CLCJAWA) at a rate of
$2.15 per thousand gallons. Water is sold to all municipal customers at a rate of $4.18 per
thousand gallons. For users connected to the Village’s sewage system, the charge is $3.60 per
thousand gallons for the first 4,000 gallons. For each additional 1,000 gallons, the charge is
$2.50. The spread between purchase and sale rates is intended to finance the operations of the
waterworks and sewerage system, including labor costs, supplies, and infrastructure
maintenance. The Village Board did approve a rate increase to fund future improvements
subsequent to the date of this report.

The Village intends to run the fund at a breakeven rate. Periodically, there will be an annual
surplus or draw down due to timing of capital projects. The deficit during the current fiscal year
was $371,476 which includes $1,071,545 of depreciation. Net assets of the water and sewer fund
at the end of the year amounted to $24,802,967 compared to $25,174,443 in 2005.

Net assets for the Libertyville Sports Complex Fund amounted to ($5,943,436) compared to
($5,180,959) at the end of 2005. The loss for 2006 amounts to $762.477 which includes
$477,628 in depreciation expense. As mentioned elsewhere in this report, this fund was
anticipated to have a loss for the first three years of operation. Due to continued loss in the
fourth year, the Village Board and Staff have recommended changes to the Sports Complex that
will reduce the amount of debt and interest expense for the complex in order to break even or
begin to generate a surplus.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The 2005-2006 expenditure budget was revised once at the end of the fiscal year. The increases
include:

e $320,000 in Public Safety for additional payroll associated with a union contract
settlement, additional transfers to the fleet internal service fund, costs associated with
grant revenues received.

e $20,000 in Public Buildings
$20,000 in Legislative Boards for costs associated with new Village Board initiatives.
$160,000 in Legal costs for expenses associated with labor negotiations.

14



Village of Libertyville, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2006

e $15,000 in Community Organizations for costs associated with spring clean-up and
mosquito control.

e $45,000 in Public Works for costs associated with transfers to fleet and unexpected
insurance deductible costs.

e $330,000 in Capital Improvements for unbudgeted costs associated with street
construction and the Butler Lake Project.

e $100,000 in Fire Pension for costs associated with a new pension and legal fees for a
disability hearing.

Revenues in the general fund were $20,456,330, which was $843,425 above budget. The final
expense budget amounted to $20,618,558, a $560,000 variance from the original budget of
$20,058,558. Actual expenses were below the final budget by $444,716. Budgeted sales tax
revenues were projected $15,980 higher than the actual receipts.  State Income Tax revenues
were $112,340 above amounts budgeted due to increased collections from the State of lllinois.
Alarm fees ended the year above budget by $53,652 due to new fee structure. Telecom
Infrastructure Maintenance Fee also was above budget by $62,005 due to the rate increase that
became effective January 1, 2006. The Village also received a surplus distribution of $178,292
from the Liability Insurance Pool the Village is part of, while only $100,000 was budgeted.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The Village of Libertyville’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type
activities as of April 30, 2006 was $183.5 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, land improvements,
vehicles, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, sidewalks, and bridges. The Village of
Libertyville had a decrease of $2,528,760 in its capital assets for the current fiscal year despite
the addition of $1,032,432 in assets this fiscal year. Funds were also expended to maintain the
Village’s infrastructure assets, however, maintenance costs are not included as an increase to a
capital asset.

This year’s major additions included $267,355 in storm sewer additions, $169,840 in sanitary
sewer additions and $32,516 in watermain additions.

The governmental activities net capital assets decreased from last year by $1,181,943 net of
depreciation. This is attributable to the fact that the depreciation was greater than the amount of
assets added this year. Depreciation increased by $2,012,019 to a total of $30,217,070.

For Business-type activities, the net capital assets decreased by $1,346,817. A total of $202,356
was added in water and sewer improvements while $1,549,173 was expensed as depreciation.

Additional information on the Village of Libertyville’s capital assets can be found in note 3 on
pages 54 - 55 of this report.
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Village of Libertyville, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2000

Debt OQutstanding

At year-end, the Village of Libertyville had total outstanding bonded debt of $32.9 million as
compared to $35.2 million the previous year, a decrease of 7 percent. The following is a
comparative statement of outstanding debt:

Qutstanding Debt

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2006 2003 2006 2003 2006 2005
General Obligation Bonds $ 6,155,000 7,345,000 26,735,000 27,875,000 32,890,000 35,220,600
IEPA Loans Payable o 6 1,466,703 1,615,995 1,466,703 1,615,995
Installment Contracts 626,072 360,975 40,155 §07,664 666,227 468,639
Total 6,781,072 7,705,975 28,241,858 29,598,659 35,022,930 37,304,634

The Village did not issue any general obligation bonds this fiscal year but did enter into an
installment lease purchase for a new fire apparatus.

As of April 30, 2006, the Village of Libertyville maintained an AA2 rating from Moody’s
Investors Service for general obligation debt. Subsequent to April 30, 2000, the Village did
receive a rating upgrade from Moody’s and is now rated Aal. State statutes limit the amount of
general obligation debt a non home-rule community may issue to 8.625% of total assessed value.
The current debt limitation for the Village of Libertyville is $87.4 million, which significantly
exceeds the Village’s outstanding general obligation debt.

Additional information on the Village of Libertyville’s long-term debt can be found in Note 3 on
pages 57 - 64 of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

The Village’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal-
year 2006-07 budget, tax rates, and fees that will be charged for its governmental and business-
type activities. One of those factors is the economy. Unemployment rate for April 30, 2006 for
the Village of Libertyville is 2.6 percent, which is under the state unemployment rate of 4.7
percent and the national unemployment rate, which is also, 4.7 percent.

Inflation increases in the Midwest arca is somewhat lower than the national Consumer Price
Index (CPI) increases. The Midwest CPI increase was 2.8 percent for fiscal year 2005-06
compared with the average national rate of 3.5 percent.

These indicators were taken into account when adopting the General Fund budget for 2006-07.
Amounts available for appropriation in the General Fund budget are $20,427,785, an increase of
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Village of Libertyville, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2006

$814,880 over the final 2005-06 budget of $19,612,905. Budgeted expenditures are expected to
increase $54,022, from $20,618,558 to $20,672,580. Even with the economy improving, staff
was forced to implement cuts in expenditures, reduced programs and deferred most capital
purchases. The Village has added no major new programs or initiatives to the 2006-07 budget.
The Village also implemented a resident ambulance billing charge and increased the ambulance
fees for non-residents.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village of Libertyville
finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of
the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be directed
to Office of the Finance Director, Village of Libertyville, 118 W. Cook Ave., Libertyville, IL
60048.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial Statements include integrated sets of financial statements as required by (he
GASRB. The sets of statements include:

¢ Governmeni-wide Financial Statements
¢ Fund Financial Statements

» Governmental Funds

» Proprietary Funds

» Fiduciary Funds

In addition, the notes to the financial statements are included to provide information that is
essential to a user’s understanding of the basic financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Net Assets
April 30, 2006

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Investments
Receivables - Net
Internal Balances

Prepaid Items/Inventory

Capital Assets

Land

Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure

Waterworks and Sewerage System

Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

The notes to the financial statements are an integrai part of this statement.

Business-
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total
3 12,560,004 3,341,194 15,901,198
9,229,461 1,312,657 10,542,118
2,219,484 {2,219,484) -
513,982 106,648 620,630
24,522 931 2,541,015 27,063,946
97,812,003 7,043,248 104,855,341
16,628,146 31,463,721 48,091,867
6,221,208 2,133,152 8,354,360
47,036,993 - 47,036,993
- 26,562,841 26,562,841
167,698,440 67,202,962 234,901,402
{(30,217,070) (21,159,074) {(51,376,144)
137,481,370 46,043,888 183,525,258
162,004,301 48,584,963 210,589,204
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LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable .
Accrued Payroll
Deposits Payable
Interest Payable
Unearned Revenues

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt

Noncurrent Liabilities
Net Pension Obligation
Compensated Absences Payable
Installment Contracts Payable
IEPA Loans Payable

General Obligation Bonds Payable

Unamortized Bond Discount

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets - Net of Related Debt

Restricted - Special Revenues
Restricted - Debt Service
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business-

Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total

526,223 529,500 1,055,783
645,064 110,230 755,294
684,571 18,650 703,221
91,196 497,333 588,529
7,143,835 193,391 7,337,226
1,683,526 1,417,378 3,100,904
10,774,415 2,766,542 13,540,957
140,472 - 140,472
1,204,034 302,758 1,506,792
458,554 27,293 485,847

- 1,312,876 1,312,876
4,940,000 25,560,000 30,500,000

- (244,097) (244,097)
6,743,060 26,958,830 33,701,890
17,517,475 29,725,372 47,242,847
130,700,298 18,046,127 148,746,425
353,140 - 353,140
853,859 - 853,859
12,579,529 813,404 13,392,933
144,486,826 18,859,531 163,346,357




VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Activities
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Program Revenues

Charges Capital
for Grants/
Expenses Services Contributions
Governmental Activities
General Government $ 2,594,575 3,272,877 -
Community Development 1,034,867 330,339 -
Public Safety 13,666,355 2,656,464 .
Public Works 3,225,742 - 669,307
Parks and Recreation 3,080,371 1,320,083 -
Economic Development 124,291 - -
Interest on Long-Term Debt 269,242 - -
Total Governmental Activities 23,995473 7,579,763 669,307
Business-Type Activities
Waterworks and Sewerage 7,303,198 6,911,448 -
Libertyville Sports Complex 3,987,449 3,223,825 -
Total Business-Type Activities 11,290,647 14,135,273 -
35,286,120 17,715,036 669,307

General Revenues
Taxes
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Intergovernmental -~ Unrestricted
Sales and Use Taxes
Income Taxes
Other
Interest Income
Miscellaneous
Transfers - Internal Activity

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning as Restated

Net Assets - Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net Expense/Revenue

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
678,302 - 678,302
(704,558) - (704,558)
(11,009,891) - (11,009,891)
(2,556,435) - (2,556,435)
(1,760,288) - (1,760,288)
(124,291 - (124,291
(269,242) - (269,242)
(15,746,403) - (15,746,403)
- (391,750) (391,750)
- (763,624) {763,624)
- (1,155,374) (1,155,374)
(15,746,403) (1,155,374) (16,901,777
6,405,525 26,784 6,432,309
429,598 - 429,598
7,735,611 - 7,735,611
1,584,940 - 1,584,940
74,214 - 74,214
431,533 90,327 521,860
387,140 8,000 395,140
103,690 (103,690) -
17,152,251 21,421 17,173,672
1,405,848 (1,133,953} 271,895
143,080,978 19,993,484 163,074,462
144,486,826 18,859,531 163,346,357

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
April 30, 2006

ASSETS

Cash and Investmentis
Receivables - Net of Allowances
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Accounts
Accrued Interest
Due from Other Funds
Prepaids

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll
Deposits Payable
Unearned Revenues
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved - Prepaids
Reserved - Special Revenues
Reserved - Debt Service
Reserved - Nonmajor Special Revenues
Unreserved
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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General

§ 7,399,270

4,510,610
1,608,462
461,085
51,018
2,219,484

485,305

16,735,234

368,787
626,697
684,571

4,510,610

6,190,665

485,305
353,140

9,706,124

10,544,569

16,735,234



Tax Increment Nonmajor
Debt Capital Financing Commuter

Service Improvement Construction Parking Total
736,324 943,408 1,878,090 731,141 11,688,233
228,727 - 1,936,498 - 6,675,835
204,865 - 29,250 - 1,842,577
- 112,171 8,310 - 581,566
3,866 - 3,944 1,774 60,602
- - - - 2,219,484
- - - 95 485,400
1,173,782 1,055,579 3,856,092 733,010 23,553,697
- 70,016 20,710 3,955 463,468
- - - 2,425 629,122
- - - - 684,571
228,727 - 1,936,498 - 6,675,835
228,727 70,016 1,957,208 6,380 8,452,996
- - - 95 485,400
- - - - 353,140
945,055 - - - 945,055
- - - 726,535 726,535
- 985,563 1,898,884 - 12,590,571
045,055 985,563 1,898,884 726,630 15,100,701
1,173,782 1,055,579 3,856,092 733,010 23,553,697

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

23



VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balance to the
Statement of Net Assets - Governmental Activities

April 30, 2006

Total Governmental Fund Balances
Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Asscts
are Different Because:

Capital Assets used in Governmental Activities are not Financial
Resources and therefore, are not Reported in the Funds.

Internal Service Funds are used by the Village to Charge the Costs of Vehicle

and Equipment Management and Technology Services to Individual Funds.

The Assets and Liabilities of the Internal Service Funds are Included
in the Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Assets.

Loong-Term Liabilities are not Due and Payable in the Current
Period and therefore are not Reported in the Funds.
Pension Obligation Payable
Compensated Absences Payable
General Obligation Bonds Payable
Accrued Interest Payable

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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134,651,103

2,568,418

(140,472)
(1,446,728)
(6,155,000}

(91,1963

144,486,826




VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Year Ended April 30, 2006
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Year Ended April 30, 2006

General
Revenues
Taxes $ 4,937,965
Licenses and Permits 1,051,786
Intergovernmental $,428,129
Charges for Services 5,106,072
Fines and Forfeits 241,105
Interest 325,224
Miscellaneous 366,049
Total Revenues 20,456,330
Expenditures
Current
General Government . 2,318,431
Community Development 1,034,897
Public Safety 11,944,339
Public Works 2,083,919
Parks and Recreation 2,792,256
Economic Development -
Capital Outlay -
Debt Service
Principal Retirement -
Interest and Fiscal Charges -
Total Expenditures 20,173,842
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over {Under) Expenditures 282,488
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In -
Transfers Out (80,000)
(80,000)
Net Change in Fund Balances 202,488
Fund Balances - Beginning 10,342,081
Fund Balances - Ending 10,544,569

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Tax Increment Nonmajor

Debt Capital Financing Commuter
Service Improvement Construction Parking Total

228,520 - 1,668,638 - 6,835,123

- 811,477 - - 1,863,203

819,460 669,307 147,176 - 10,064,672

- 64,641 - 304,682 5,475,395

- - - - 241,105

13,688 20,521 47,221 15,713 422,367

- 19,099 1,967 25 387,140

1,061,668 1,585,045 1,865,002 320,420 25,288,465

- - - 146,711 2,465,142

- - - - 1,034,897

- - - - 11,944,339

- - - - 2,083,919

- - - - 2,792,256

- - 124,291 - 124,291

- 1,865,757 - - 1,865,757

1,190,000 - - - 1,190,000

282,872 - - - 282,872

1,472,872 1,865,757 124,291 146,711 23,783,473

(411,204} (280,712) 1,740,711 173,709 1,504,992

432,850 55,000 - - 487,850
- (81,610) (222,550) - (384,160}

432,350 (26,610) (222,550) - 103,690

21,646 (307,322) 1,518,161 173,709 1,608,682

923,409 1,292,885 380,723 552,921 13,492,019

945,055 985,563 1,898,884 726,630 15,100,701
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
to the Statement of Activities - Governmental Activities

Year Ended April 30, 2000

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 1,608,682

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities
are Different Because:

Governmental Funds Report Capital Outlays as Expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the Cost of those Assets is Allocated over their Estimated
Useful Lives and Reported as Depreciation Expense.

Capital Outlays 302,669
Depreciation Expense (1,663,438)

The Issuance of Long-Term Debt Provides Current Financial Resources to
Governmental Funds, While the Repayment of the Principal on Long-Term
Debt Consumes the Current Financial Resources of the Governmental Funds.

Additions to Net Pension Obligation 2,472
Additions to Compensated Absences Payable (142,252)
Retirement of Debt 1,190,000

Changes to Accrued Interest on Long-Term Debt in the Statement of Activities
does not Require the use of Current Financial Resources and, therefore, are not
Reported as Expenditures in the Governmental Funds. 13,630

Internal Service Funds are used by the Village to Charge the Costs of Vehicle
and Equipment Management and Technology Services to Individual Funds.
The Net Revenue of Certain Activities of Internal Service Funds is
Reported with Governmental Activities. 94,085

Changes in Net Assets of Governmental Activities 1,405,848

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds

April 30,2006

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and lnvestments

Receivables - Net of Allowances

Property Taxes

Accounts

Accrued Interest
Due from Other Funds
Inventory

Prepaids

Capital Assets
Land
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Waterworks System
Sewerage System

Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

Business-Type Activitics - Enterprise Governmental
Waterworks Libertyville Activities
and Sports Internal
Sewerage Complex Total Service
3,341,194 - 3,341,194 871,771
26,784 - 26,784 -
1,246,871 26,264 1,273,135 66,599
12,738 - 12,738 2,282
951,273 - 951,273 -
- 37,681 37,681 28,582
68,519 448 68,967 -
5,647,379 64,393 5,711,772 969,234
2,272,080 4,771,168 7,043,248 -
14,016,621 17,447,100 31,463,721 -
1,684,716 448,436 2,133,152 5,657,251
12,930,848 - 12,930,848 -
13,631,993 - 13,631,993 -
44,536,258 22,666,704 67,202,962 5,657,251
(19,965,004) (1,194,070) (21,159,074) (2,826,984)
24,571,254 21,472,634 46,043,888 2,830,267
30,218,633 21,537,027 51,755,660 3,799,501
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LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Payroll

Deposits Payable

Accrued Interest Payable

Due to Other Funds

Unearned Revenues

Compensated Absences Payable
Instaliment Contract Payable
IEPA Loans Payable

General Obligation Bonds Payable

Noncurrent Liabilities

Compensated Absences Payable
Installment Contract Payable
IEPA Loans Payable

General Obligation Bonds Payable
Unamortized Bond Discount

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets - Net

of Related Debt

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise

Governmental

Waterworks Libertyville Activities
and Sports Internal
Sewerage Complex Total Service
465,817 63,743 529,560 62,755
66,751 43,479 110,230 15,942
17,305 1,345 18,650 -
62,059 435,274 497,333 -
- 3,170,757 3,170,757 -
136,000 57,391 193,391 468,000
68,659 7,030 75,689 11,663
- 12,862 12,862 167,518
153,827 - 153,827 -
615,000 560,000 1,175,000 -
1,585,418 4,351,881 5,937,299 725,878
274,637 28,121 302,758 46,651
- 27,293 27,293 458,554
1,312,876 - 1,312,876 -
2,285,600 23,275,000 25,560,000 -
(42,265) (201,832) (244,097) -
3,830,248 23,128,582 26,958,830 505,205
5,415,666 27,480,463 32,896,129 1,231,083
20,246,816 (2,200,689) 18,046,127 2,204,195
4,556,151 (3,742,747) 813,404 364,223
24,802,967 (5,943,430) 18,859,531 2,568,418
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets - Proprietary Funds

Year Ended April 30, 2006

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services
Interfund Services
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

QOperations

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest Income

Connection Fees

Property Tax

Other Income

Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges
Income (Loss) Before Transfers
Trans{ers Out
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning as Restated

Net Assets - Ending

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Governmental
Waterworks Libertyville Activities
and Sports Internal
Sewerage Complex Total Service
$ 6,607,792 3,223,825 9,831,617 -

- - - 1,612,381
6,607,792 3,223,825 9,831,617 1,612,381
6,075,487 2,307,613 8,383,100 1,247,132
1,071,545 477,028 1,549,173 348,581
7,147,032 2,785,241 9,932,273 1,595,713

(539,240) 438,584 (100,656) 16,668
89,180 1,147 90,327 9,166
303,656 - 303,656 -
26,784 - 26,784 -
8,000 - 8,000 83,932
(156,166) (1,202,208) (1,358,374) (15,681)
271,454 (1,201,061) (929,607) 77,417
(267,786) (762,477) (1,030,263) 94,085
(103,690) - (103,690) -
(371,476) (762,477) (1,133,953) 94,085
25,174,443 (5,180,959) 19,993,484 2,474,333
24,802,967 (5,943,436) 18,859,531 2,568,418
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprictary Funds
Year kknded April 30, 2006

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Waterworks Libertyville Activities
and Sports Internal
Sewerage Complex Total Service
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers and Users $ 7,024,642 3,222,690 10,247,332 -
Receipts from Interfund Services - - - 1,637,065
Payments to Employees (1,458,579) (990,378) (2,448,957) (361,798)
Payments to Suppliers (4,439,740) (458,741) (4,898,481) (856,853)
1,126,323 1,773,571 2,899,894 418,414
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers Qut (103,690) - {103,690) -
Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Purchase of Capital Assets (202,356) - {202,356) (527,407)
Issuance of Capital Debt - - - 450,000
Interest on Capital Debt {156,166) (1,202,208) (1,358,374) (15,681
Principal on Capital Debt (784,292) (572,510) (1,356,802) (184,902)
(1,142,814) (1,774,718) (2,917,532) (277,990)
Cash Flows from Investing Activifies
Interest Received 89,180 1,147 90,327 9,166
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents {31,001) - (31,001) 149,590
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning 3,372,195 - 3,372,195 722,181
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending 3,341,194 - 3,341,194 871,771
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating Income {Loss) (539,240) 438,584 (100,656) 16,668
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income {0
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 1,071,545 477,628 1,549,173 348,581
Other Income 338,440 - 338,440 83,932
(Increase) Decrease in Current Assets 78,410 (1,135) 71,275 (59,248)
Increase {Decrease) in Current Liabilities 177,168 858,494 1,035,662 28,481
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,126,323 1,773,571 2,899,894 418,414

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTY VILLE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds
April 30, 2606

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
State and Local Obligations
U.S. Government and Agency Obligations
Mutual Funds

Receivables
Accrued Interest

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

NET ASSETS

Net Plan Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits
(A schedule of funding progress is presented
following the notes to the financial statements. )

Pension
Trust

$ 1,834,266

538,076
13,363,211
14,919,754

189,328

30,844,635

12,608

30,832,027

(O diirel, Mevireeibrrns R )



VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Changes in Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds
Year inded April 30, 20006

Pension
Trust
Additions
Contributions - Employer $ 1,258.344
Contributions - Plan Members 505,484
Total Contributions 1,763 828
Investment Income
Interest Earned 1,216,433
Net Change in Fair Value 1,805,807
3,022,240
Less Investment Expensecs (60,493)
2,961,747
Total Additions 4725575
Deductions
Admimstration 39 982
Benefits and Refunds 1,570,088
Total Deductions 1,610,070
Change in Net Assets 3,115,505
Net Plan Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits
Beginning 27,716,522
Ending 30,832,027



VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2006
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Village of Libertyville, Illinois, incorporated in 1882, is a municipal corporation governed by an
elected president and six-member Board of Trustees. The Village’s major operations include police and
fire safety, highway and street maintenance and reconstruction, forestry, building code enforcement,
public improvements, economic development, planning and zoning, water and sanitary sewer services,
recreation services and general administrative services.

The governmenti-wide financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible
for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and
Interpretations). Governments are also required to follow the pronouncements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not
conflict with or contradict GASB Pronouncements. Although the Village has the option to apply FASB
pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type activities and enterprise funds, the Village
has chosen not to do so. The more significant of the Village’s accounting policies established in GAAP
and used by the Village are described below.

REPORTING ENTITY
The Village's financial reporting entity comprises the following:

Primary Government: Village of Libertyville
Blended Component Units: Police Pension Employees Retirement System
Firefighters® Pension Employees Retirement System

In determining the financial reporting entity, the Village complies with the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity,” and includes all component units that have a
significant operational or financial refationship with the Village.

Blended Component Units - Blended component units are separate legal entities that meet the
component unit criteria described above and whose governing body is the same or substantially the
same as the Village Board or the Component unit provides services entirely to the Village. These
component units’ funds are blended into those of the Village’s by appropriate activity type to compose
the primary government presentation.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
REPORTING ENTITY — Continued

Blended Component Unit

Police Pension Employees Retirement System

The Village’s sworn police employees participate in the Police Pension Employees Retirement System
(PPERS). PPERS functions for the benefit of these employees and is governed by a five-member
pension board. Two members appointed by the Village’s President, one elected pension beneficiary and
two elected police employees constitute the pension board. The participants are required to contribute a
percentage of salary as established by state statute and the Village is obligated to fund all remaining
PPERS costs based upon actuarial valuations. The State of [llinois is authorized to establish benefit
levels and the Village is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the determination of
contribution levels. Although it is legally separate from the Village, the PPERS is reported as if it were
part of the primary government because its sole purpose is to provide retirement benefits for the
Village’s police employees. The PPERS is reported as a pension trust fund.

Firefighters’ Pension Employees Retirement System

The Village’s sworn firefighters participate in the Firefighters’ Pension Employees Retirement System
(FPERS). FPERS functions for the benefit of these employees and is governed by a nine-member
pension board. The Village’s President, Treasurer, Clerk, Attorney and Fire Chief, one elected pension
beneficiary and three elected firefighters constitute the pension board. The participants are required to
contribute a percentage of salary as established by state statute and the Village is obligated to fund all
remaining FPERS costs based upon actuarial valuations. The State of Illinois is authorized to establish
benefit levels and the Village is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the
determination of contribution levels. Although it is legally scparate from the Village, the FPERS is
reported as if it were part of the primary government because its sole purpose is to provide retirement
benefits for the Village’s sworn firefighters. The FPERS is reported as a pension trust fund.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Government-Wide Statements
The Village’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Village as a

whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Village’s major funds). Both the government—wide
and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
BASIS OF PRESENTATION - Continued
Government-Wide Statements — Continued

The Village’s police and fire safety, highway and street maintenance and reconstruction, parks and
recreation, forestry, building code enforcement, public improvements, economic development, planning
and zoning, and general administrative services atre classified as governmental activities. The Village’s
waterworks and sewerage services and sports complex are classified as business-type activities.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and business-type activities
columns are: (a) presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) reported on a full accrual,
economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term
debt and obligations. The Village’s net assets are reported in three parts: invested in capital assets, net
of related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets. The Village first utilizes restricted
resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the
Village’s functions and business-type activities (general government, public safety, public works, etc.)
The functions are supported by general governiment revenues (property, sales and use taxes, certain
intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits and charges, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross
expenses (including depreciation} by related program revenues, operating and capital grants. Program
revenues must be directly associated with the function (general government, public safety, public
works, efc.) or a business-type activity. Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary
(either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

The net costs (by function or business-type activity) are normally covered by general revenue (property
tax, sales tax, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc).

The Village allocates indirect costs to the proprietary funds for personnel who perform administrative
services for those funds, along with other indirect costs deemed necessary for their operations, but are
paid through the General Fund

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Village as an entity and the change in
the Village’s net assets resulting from the current year’s activitics.

Fund Financial Statements
The financial transactions of the Village are reported in individual funds in the fund financial
statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that

comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Funds are
organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
BASIS OF PRESENTATION - Continued
Fund Financial Statements - Continued

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-
type activities categories. Nonmajor funds by category are summarized into a single column. GASB
Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or
expenditures/expenses of cither fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the
determination of major funds. The Village clectively added funds, as major funds, which either had
debt outstanding or specific community focus. The nonmajor funds are combined in a column in the
fund financial statements.A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the Village or
meets the following criteria:

Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that
individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the
corresponding total for all funds of that category or type; and

Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the
individual governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the
corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

The various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements. The following
fund types are used by the Village:

Governmental Funds
The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of
financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uscs, and balances of financial resources)

rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the Village:

General fund is the general operating fund of the Village. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund is a major fund.

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The Village has one nonmajor special revenue fund.

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of funds for the periodic payment of
principal and interest on general long-term debt. The Debt Service Fund is treated as a major fund and

accounts for the payment of interest and principal on the long-term general obligation debt.

Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by business-type/proprietary funds).
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NOTE 1 -~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - Continued

Fund Financial Statements — Continued
Governmental Funds — Continued

The Village maintains two major capital projects fund, the Capital Improvements Fund and the Tax
Increment Financing Construction Fund, and two nonmajor capital projects fund. The Capital
Improvements Fund accounts for the purchase or construction of major capital facilities that are not
financed by proprietary funds. The Tax Increment Financing District Construction Fund accounts for
resources to acquire property and construct certain improvements in the Tax Increment Financing
District.

Proprietary Funds

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net
assets, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are
those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the proprictary funds
of the Village:

Enterprise funds are required to account for operations for which a fee is charged to external users for
goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of the net
revenues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of providing services, including capital costs, be
recovered with fees and charges or (c) establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed
to recover similar costs. The Village maintains two major enterprise funds, the Waterworks and
Sewerage Fund and the Libertyville Sports Complex Fund. The Waterworks and Sewerage Fund
accounts for the provision of water and sewer service to the residents of the Village. The Libertyville
Sports Complex Fund accounts for all activities associated with the complex, including, but not limited
to, purchase of land, construction of facilities, operations, maintenance and all related debt service for
the 48-acre site.

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by an
activity to other departments, funds or component units of the Village on a cost-reimbursement basis.
The Village maintains two internal service funds. The Vehicle Maintenance and Replacement Service
Fund accounts for costs associated with maintaining and replacing motor vehicles in all Village
departments. The Technology Equipment and Replacement Service Fund accounts for acquiring,
maintaining, and updating management information systems including computers, communications,
software, etc. in all Village departments. The Village’s internal service funds are presented in the
proprietary funds financial statements. Because the principal users of the internal services are the
Village’s governmental activities, the financial statements of the internal service funds are consolidated
into the governmental column when presented in the government-wide financial statements. To the
extent possible, the cost of these services is reported In the appropriate functional activity (general
government, public safety, public works, etc.).
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NOTE 1 ~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
BASIS OF PRESENTATION- Continued

Fund Financial Statements — Continued

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used (o report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore are
not available to support Village programs. The reporting focus is on net assets and changes in net assets
and is reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds.

Pension Trust Funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for pension benefit
payments. The Police and Firefighters’ Pension Funds account for the accumulation of resources to pay
pension costs. Resources are contributed by members at rates fixed by state statutes and by the Village
through an annual property tax levy.

The Village’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type (pension
trust and agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party (other
local governments, private parties, penslon participants, etc.) and cannot be used to address activities or
obligations of the Village, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide statements.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “which” transactions are recorded within the various
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when” transactions are recorded regardless of the
measurement focus applied.

Measurement Focus

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, both governmental
and business-like activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined
below.

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or the “economic
resources” measurement focus is used as appropriate.

All governmental funds utilize a “current financial resources” measurement focus. Only current
financial assets and labilities are generally imcluded on their balance sheets. Their operating
statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period.
These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of
the period.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - Continued
Measurement Focus — Continued

All proprietary and pension trust funds utilize an “economic resources” measurement focus. The
accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in
net assets (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All asscts and liabilitics (whether
curtent or noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary and pension trust fund
equity is classified as net assets. :

Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, both governmental and
business-like activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is
incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from
exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
“measurable and available.” Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the
amount. Available means collectible within the current period or within sixty days after year-end. The
Village recognizes property taxes when they become both measurable and available in accordance with
GASB Codification Section P70. A sixty day availability period is used for revenue recognition for all
other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the
related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and interest which are
recognized when due.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, those revenues
susceptible to accrual are property taxes, sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest revenue,
and charges for services. All other revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are
not measurable until received in cash.

All proprietary and pension trust funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis

of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is
incurred or economic asset used.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -~ Continued
MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - Continued
Basis of Accounting — Continued

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operaling revenues of
the Village’s enterprise funds, and of the Village's internal service funds are charges to customers for
sales and scrvices. The Village also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to
recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY
Cash and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents on the Statement of Net Assets are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits, cash with fiscal agent. For the purpose of the proprietary funds “Statement of Cash Flows”,
cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, cash with fiscal agent,
and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates
fair value. Securities traded on national exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price.
Investments that do not have any established market, if any, are reported at estimated fair value.

Interfund Receivables, Payables and Activity

Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues
and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are
treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the
reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method.

The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather
than when purchased.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY - Continued
Prepaids

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the date of this report are
recorded as prepaids.

Receivables

In the government-wide financial statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and
not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and
the periodic aging of accounts receivable. Major receivables balances for governmental activities
include property taxes, sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, and grants, Business-type activities report
utility charges as their major receivables.

Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $25,000 or more are reported at historical
cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date
received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of
an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incuwrred.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus. General capital assets are long-lived assets of the Village as a whole. When purchased, such
assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and capitalized. Infrastructure such as
streets, traffic signals and signs are capitalized. The valuation basis for general capital assets are
historical cost, or where historical cost is not available, estimated historical cost based on replacement
costs.

Capital assets in the proprietary funds are capitalized in the fund in which they are utilized. The
valuation bases for proprietary fund capital assets are the same as those used for the general capital
assets. Donated capital assets are capitalized at estimated fair market value on the date donated.

Depreciation on all assets is computed and recorded using the straight-line method of depreciation over
the following estimated useful lives:

Land Improvements 20 - 30 Years
Buildings and Improvements 10 - 50 Years
Machinery and Equipment 3 - 30 Years
Infrastructure 40 — 50 Years
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY - Continued
Capital Assets — Continued

GASB Statement No. 34 requires the Village to report and depreciate new infrastructure assets effective
with the beginning of the 2004 fiscal year. Infrastructure assets include roads, sidewalks, underground
pipe (other than related to utilities), traffic signals, etc. These infrastructure assets are the largest asset
class of the Village. Neither their historical cost nor related depreciation has historically been reported
in the financial statements. The retroactive reporting of infrastructure is subject to an extended
implementation period; the Village has elected to implement retroactive infrastructure reporting in the
current year.

Compensated Absences

The Village accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and associated employee-related costs when earned
(or estimated to be earned) by the employee. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, no liability is
recorded for nonvesting accumulation rights to receive sick pay benefits. However, a liability is
recognized for that portion of accumulated sick leave that is estimated to be taken as “terminal leave”
prior to retirement.

All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or
discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the
related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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NOTE t - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY - Continued
Unearned Revenue

Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.

Fund Equity

In the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three
components:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt-—Consists of capital assets
including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

Restricted net assets—Consists of net assets with constraints ptaced on the
use either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors,
or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislations.

Unrestricted net assets—All other net assets that do not meet the definition
of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt”.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific
purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

NOTE 2 — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. All
departments of the Village submit requests for budgets to the government’s administrator so that a
budget may be prepared. The budget is prepared by fund and includes information on the past year,
current year estimates, and requested budgets for the next fiscal year. The proposed budget is presented
to the governing body for review. The governing body holds public hearings and may add to, subtract
form, or change budgeted amounts, but may not change the form of the budget.
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NOTE 2 ~ STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY - Continued
BUDGETARY INFORMATION - Continued

The administrator is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund;
however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the governing
body.

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. During the year several
supplementary appropriations were necessary.

EXCESS OF ACTUAL EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES OVER BUDGET IN INDIVIDUAL
FUNDS

The following fund had an excess of actual expenditures/expenses, exclusive of depreciation, over
budget as of the date of this report:

Fund Excess
Technology Equipment and Replacement Service $ 7,801
Police Pension 42,081

DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

The following funds had deficit fund equity as of the date of this report:

Fund Deficit
Libertyville Sports Complex $ 5,943,436
Technology Equipment and Replacement Service 411,133

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Village maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds except the
pension trust funds. Each fund type's portion of this pool is displayed on the financial statements as

weash and investments”. In addition, investments are separately held by several of the Village's funds.
The deposits and investments of the pension trust funds are held separately from those of other funds.
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NOTE 3 — DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued
DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

Permitted Deposits and Investments - Statutes authorize the Village to make deposits/mvest
commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies,
obligations of States and their political subdivisions, credit union shares, repurchase agreements,
commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two standard rating services,
Ilinois Funds and the Ilinois Metropolitan Investment Fund. The deposits and investments of the
Pension Funds are held separately from those of other Village funds. Statutes authorize the Pension
Funds to make deposits/invest in interest bearing direct obligations of the United States of America;
obligations that are fully guaranteed or insured as to the payment of principal and interest by the United
States of America; bonds, notes, debentures, or similar obligations of agencies of the United States of
America; savings accounts or certificates of deposit issued by banks or savings and loan associations
chartered by the United States of America or by the State of Hlinois, to the extent that the deposits are
insured by the agencies or instrumentalities of the federal government; State of IHinois Bonds; pooled
accounts managed by the Iflinois Public Treasurer, or by banks, their subsidiaries or holding companies,
in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois; bonds or tax anticipation warrants of any county,
township, or municipal corporation of the State of Illinois direct obligations of the State of Israel;
money market mutual funds managed by investment companies that are registered under the federal
Investment Company Act of 1940 and the Illinois Securities Law of 1953 and are diversified, open-
ended management investment companies, provided the portfolio is limited to specified restrictions;
general accounts of life insurance companies and separate accounts of life insurance companies
provided the investment in separate accounts does not exceed ten percent of the pension fund’s net
assets. Pension funds of at least 5 million that have appointed an investment advisor may, through that
investment advisor, invest up to thirty-five percent of the plan’s net assets in common and preferred
stocks that meet specific restrictions.

Illinois Funds is an investment pool managed by the Illinois public Treasurer’s Office which allows
governments within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. Although not registered with
the SEC, Illinois Funds operates in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act
of 1940. Investments in Illinois Funds are valued at the share price, the price for which the investment
could be sold.

Tllinois Metropolitan Investment Fund (IMET) is a non-for-profit investment trust formed pursuant to
the 1llinois Municipal Code. IMET is managed by a Board of Trustees elected from the participating
members. IMET is not registered with the SEC as an Investment Company. Investments in IMET are
valued at the share price, the price for which the investment could be sold.
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued
DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued
Village Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and Concentration Risk

Deposits. At year-end, the carrying amount of the Village's deposits for governmental and business-
type activities totaled $3,719,593 and the bank balances totaled $3,969,092.

Investments. The Village has the following investment fair values and maturities:

Investment Maturities (in Years)
Fair Less Than

Investment Type Value 1 1ta s 6to 10

Federal Home Loan Bank $ 6,590,616 5,359,178 1,231,438 -
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp 147,250 147,250 - -
Federal National Mortgage Association 569,064 445,939 123,125 -
Hlinois Metropolitan Investment Trust 2,067,736 2,067,736 - -
[Hinois Funds 2,806,939 2,806,938 - -

12,181,605 10,827,041 1,354,563 -

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. The Village’s investment policy states that the investment portfolio shall remain
sufficiently liquid to enable the Village to meet all operating requirements which may be reasonably
anticipated. This is accomplished by structuring the portfolio so that securities mature concurrent with
cash needs to meet anticipated demands (static liquidity). Furthermore, since all possible cash demands
cannot be anticipated, the portfolio should consist largely of securities with active secondary or resale
markets (dynamic liquidity).

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. Besides investing in security instruments authorized under State Statute, the Village’s
investment policy further states investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the
preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. At year-end, the Village’s investments U.S. Government
Agencies are all rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s, and the Village’s investment in the lilinois Funds
and the 11linois Metropolitan Investment Fund were rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s.

Custodial Credit Risk. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
Village’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Village’s investment policy states that deposits in
excess of FDIC or SAIF insurable limits be secured by some form of collateral or insurance. Every
pledge of collateral will be documented by an approved written security and pledge agreement.
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NOTE 3 — DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued
DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

Village Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and Concentration Risk —
Continued

Eligible collateral or insurance instruments and collateral ratios (market value divided by deposit) are as
follows:

a) U.S. Government Securities 110%
b) Obligations of Federal Agencies 110%
¢) Obligations of Federal Instrumentalities 110%
d) Obligations of the State of 1llinois 110%
¢) General Obligation Bonds of the Village 110%
f) Surety Bond issued by the Municipal Bond Investment

Assurance (MBIA) or other Village approved issuer 110%

Third party safekeeping is required for all collateral. To accomplish this, the securities can be held at
the following locations: a Federal Reserve Bank or its branch office, at another custodial facility —
generally in a trust department through book-entry at the Federal Reserve, unless physical securities are
involved, or by an escrow agent of the pledging institution. Safekeeping will be documented by an
approved written agreement. At year-end, the entire amount of the bank balance of deposits was
covered by federal depository collateral or equivalent insurance.

For an investment, this is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Village will not
be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. The Village’s investment policy states that third party safekeeping is preferred for all
securities. To accomplish this, the securities can be held at the following locations: a Federal Rescrve
Bank or its branch office, at another custodial facility — generally in a trust department through book-
entry at the Federal Reserve, unless physical securities are involved, by an escrow agent of the pledging
institution, or at a financial institution on the Illinois State Treasurer’s approved list of safekeeping
banks. Safekeeping will be documented by an approved wrilten agreement. At year-end, the Village’s
investments in U.S. Government Agencies are all insured or registered with the Village or its agent in
the Village’s name and the Village’s investment in the Hlinois Fund and the Tllinois Metropolitan
Investment Trust are noncategorizable.

Concentration Risk. This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Village’s investment in a
single issuer. The Village’s investment policy states that investments shall be diversified to eliminate
the risk of loss resulting in over concentration in a specific maturity, issuet, or class of securities. In
order to reduce the risk of default, the investment portfolio of the Village shall not exceed the following
diversification limits unless specifically authorized by the Board of Trustees:

e No financial institution shall hold more than 40% of the Village’s invesiment portfolio,
exclusive of U.S. Treasury securities in safekeeping.

o Monies deposited at a financial institution shall not exceed 75% of the capital stock and surplus
of that institution.

e Commercial paper shall not exceed 10% of the Village’s investment portfolio.
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NOTE 3 — DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued
DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

Village Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and Concentration Risk -
Continued

e Deposits in the Jilinois Public Treasurer’s Investment Pool shall not exceed 50% of the
Village’s investment portfolio.
e Brokered cerlificates of deposit shall not exceed 25% of the Village’s investment portfolio.

At year-end, the Village’s investment in the Illinois Fund and the Illinois Metropolitan Investment Trust
represents more than 5 percent of the total cash and investment portfolio. At year-end, the Village has
over 5 percent of the total cash and investment portfolio (other than U.S. Government guaranteed
obligations) invested in the Hlinois Funds and the Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund.

Police Pension Fund Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and Concentration
Risk

Deposits. At year-end, the carrying amount of the Fund’s deposits totaled $425,796 and the bank
balances totaled $434,615.

Investments. The Fund has the following investment fair values and maturities:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair Less Than

Investment Type Value 1 1to5 6to 10

Treasury Notes $ 2,042,872 100,676 - 1,942,196
Federal Home Loan Bank 1,838,713 - 483,437 1,355,276
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp 1,143,582 - 67,927 1,075,655
Federal Farm Credit Bank 2,407,961 300,093 902,088 1,205,780
Government National Mortgage Association 64,493 - 40,675 23,818
Municipal Bonds 538,076 - - 538,076

8,035,697 400,769 1,494,127 6,140,801

Interest Rate Risk. The Fund’s investment policy states that the investment portfolio shall remain
sufficiently liquid to pay all benefit payments as well as any operating requirements, which may be
reasonably anticipated. Specifically, in no case will the Fund purchase securities with maturities of
more than 20 years from the date of purchase.

Credit Risk. The Fund’s investment policy helps limit its exposure to credit risk by primarily investing
in securities issued by the United States Government and/or its agencies that are implicitly guaranteed
by the United States Government. At year-end, the Fund’s investments in U.8. Government and
Agency securities and as municipal bonds were all rated AAA rated by Standard & Poor’s.
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued
DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

Police Pension Fund Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and Cencentration
Risk — Continued

Custodial Credit Risk. The Fund’s investment policy does not address custodial credit risk. At year-end,
the entire carrying amount of the bank balance of deposits is covered by federal depository or
equivalent insurance. Furthermore, the Fund’s investment in U.S. Treasury and Agency securities as
well as municipal bonds are categorized as insured, registered, or held by the Fund or its agent in the
Fund’s name.

Concentration Risk. The Fund’s investment policy states that not more than 10% of the Pension Fund
monies shall be invested in any one financial institution. At year-end, the Fund is in compliance with
the guideline outlined above. In addition to the securities and fair values listed above, the Fund also has
$8,115,025 invested in mutual funds. At year-end, the Fund has over 5 percent of net plan assets
available for retirement benefits (other than U.S. Government guaranteed obligations) invested in the
Dodge and Cox Stock Fund ($1,293,438), Enterprise Group Funds ($1,227,608) and Vanguard
($2,294,932).

Firefighters’ Pension Fund Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custedial Credit Risk and
Concentration Risk

Deposits. At year-end, the carrying amount of the Fund’s deposits totaled $1,408,470 and the bank
balances totaled $1,454,253.

Investments. The Fund has the following investment fair values and maturities:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair Fess Than
Investment Type Value | 1to5 61010
Federal Home Loan Bank $ 3,365,513 1,738,090 1,627,423 -
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp 435,024 - 435,024 -
Federal Farm Credit Bank 368,554 175,054 193,500 -
Federal National Mortgage Association 1,692,918 545,884 1,147,034 -
Government National Mortgage Association 3,581 92 3,480 -

5,865,590 2,459,120 3,406,470 -
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NOTE 3 — DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued
DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

Fircfighters’ Pension Fund Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and
Concentration Risk — Continued

Interest Rate Risk. The Fund’s investment policy states that the investment portfolio shall remain
sufficiently liquid to pay all benefit payments as well as any operating requirements, which may be
reasonably anticipated. Specifically, in no case will the Fund purchase securities with maturities of
more than 20 years from the date of purchase.

Credit Risk. The Fund’s investment policy helps limit its exposure to credit risk by primarily investing
in securities issued by the United States Government and/or its agencies that are implicitly guaranteed
by the United States Government. At year-end, the Fund’s investments in U.S. Government and
Agency securities and as municipal bonds were all rated AAA rated by Standard & Poor’s.

Custodial Credit Risk. The Fund’s investment policy does not address custodial credit risk. At year-end,
the entire carrying amount of the bank balance of deposits is covered by federal depository or
equivalent insurance. Furthermore, the Fund’s investment in U.S. Treasury and Agency securities as
well as municipal bonds are categorized as insured, registered, or held by the Fund or its agent in the
Fund’s name.

Concentration Risk. The Fund’s investment policy states that not more than 10% of the Pension Fund
monies shall be invested in any one financial institution. At year-end, the Fund is in compliance with
the guideline outlined above. In addition to the securities and fair values listed above, the Fund also has
$6,804,729 invested in mutual funds. At year-end, the Fund has over 5 percent of net plan assels
available for retirement benefits (other than U.S. Government guaranteed obligations) invested in the
Dodge and Cox Stock Fund ($896,663), Fidelity ($1,435,711), T Rowe Price ($1,930,052) and
Vanguard ($2,345,662).

PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes for 2005 attach as an enforceable lien on January 1, 2005, on property values assessed as
of the same date. Taxes are levied by December of the subsequent fiscal year (by passage of a Tax Levy
Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared by the County and are payable in two installments, on or about June
1, 2006, and September 1, 2006. The County collects such taxes and remits them periodically. The
allowance for uncollectible taxes has been stated at 1% of the tax levy, to reflect actual collection
experience.
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental Activitics

Governmental capital asset activity for the year was as follows:

Capital Assets- Not Being Depreciated
Land

Other Capital Assets
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure

Total Other Capital Assets

Total Capital Assets

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

General Government

Public Safety
Public Works

Culture and Recreation

Internal Service
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Beginniug
Balances Ending
as Restated Increases Decreases Balances
$ 97,812,093 - - 97,812,093
16,628,146 - - 16,628,146
5,685,732 562,721 27,245 6,221,208
46,769,038 267,355 - 47,036,993
69,083,516 830,076 27,245 69,886,347
6,923,483 500,467 - 7,423,950
2,607,629 400,334 27,245 2,980,718
18,701,184 1,111,218 - 19,812,402
28,232,296 2,012,019 27,245 30,217.070
40,851,220 (1,181,943) - 39,609,277
138,603,313 (1,181,943) - 137,481,370
b 72,100
161,400
1,141,823
288,115
348,581
2,012,019
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued
CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued
Business-Type Activities

Business-type capital asset activity for the year was as follows:

Beginning
Balances Ending
as Restated Increases Decreases Balances
Capital Assets - Not Being Depreciated
{.and $ 7,043,248 - - 7,043,248
Other Capital Assets
Buildings and Improvements 31,463,721 - - 31,463,721
Machinery and Equipment 2,133,152 - - 2,133,152
Waterworks System 12,898,332 32,516 - 12,930,848
Sewerage System 13,462,153 169,840 - 13,631,993
59,957,358 202,356 - 60,159,714
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Improvements 6,745,045 767,788 - 7,512,833
Machinery and Equipment 1,273,582 117,315 - 1,390,897
Waterworks System 5,523,720 323,271 - 5,846,991
Sewerage Systein 6,067,554 340,799 - 6,408,353
19,609,901 1,549,173 - 21,159,074
Total Other Capital Assets 40,347,457 (1,346,817) - 39,000,640
Total Capital Assets 47,390,705 (1,346,817 - 46,043,888

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type as follows:

Waterworks and Sewerage

Libertyville Sports Complex

$ 1,071,545
477,628

1,549,173
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NOTE 3 — DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued
INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS
Interfund Balances

The composition of interfund balances as of the date of this report, is as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Libertyville Sports Complex $ 2,219,484
Waterworks and Sewerage Libertyville Sports Complex 951,273

3,170,757

Interfund balances are advances in anticipation of receipts.
Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year consisted of the following:

Transfer In
Debt Capital
Service  Improvements Totals
Transfer Out

General $ 25,000 55,000 80,000
Capital Improvement 81,610 - 81,610
TIF Construction 222.550 - 222.550
Waterworks and Sewerage 103,690 - 103,690

432,850 55,000 487,850

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to
the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from
the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3)
use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in
other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

LONG-TERM DEBT

General Obligation Bonds/Certificates

The government issues general obligation bonds/certificates to provide funds for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds/certificates are direct obligations and
pledge the full faith and credit of the government. General obligation bonds/certificates currently

outstanding are as follows:

Fund Debt Balances
Issue Retired By May 1

Retirements

Balances
April 30

General Obligation (Sales Tax

Alternate  Revenue  Source)

Bond  Series of 1997

($1,000,000), due in annual

installments of $30,000 to

$75,000, including interest at

4.375% to 5.15% through Debt
December 15, 2017. Service A

General Obligation (Sales Tax
Alternate Revenue Source)
Bond  Series of 1998
($3,695,000), due in annual
installments of $305,000 to
$435,000, including interest at
3.60% to 3.75% through Debt

December 15, 2008. Service 1,645,000

General Obligation Limited
Tax Bond Series of 2000
($1,800,000), due in annual
installments of $10,000 to
$215,000, including interest at
5.20% to 5.70% through Debt

December 15, 2019. Service 1,735,000
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NOTE 3 — DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

LLONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

General Obligation Bonds/Certificates — Continued

Issue

Retirements

Balances
April 30

General Obligation Refunding
Bond  Series of 2001
($2,600,000), due in annual
installments of $340,000 to
$405,000, including interest at
3.25% to 3.75% through
December 15, 2008.

General Obligation Refunding
Bond Series of 2003A
(§665,000), due in annual
installments  of 375,060 fo
$115,000, including interest at
1.50% to 2.90% through
December 15, 2010.

General Obligation Refunding
Bond  Series of 2003B
($1,360,000), due in annual
installments of $260,000 to
$285,000, including interest at
1.50% to 2.90% through
December 15, 2008,

General Obligation Alternate
Revenue Bond Series of 2000
($5,000,000), due in annual
installments of $180,600 to
$415,000, including interest at
5.125% to 5.15% through
December 15, 2020,

Fund Debt Balances
Retired By May 1 Tssuances
Debt

Service $ 1,545,000 -

Debt
Service 575,000 -
Debt
Service 1,100,000 -
Sports
Complex 4,630,000 -

375,000

80,000

270,000

195,000

1,170,000

495,000

830,000

4,435,000
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NOTE 3 - DETAIJIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued
LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

General Obligation Bonds/Certificates — Continued

Fund Debt Balances Balances
Issue ~ Retired By May | {ssuances Retirements April 30

General Obligation Refunding

Bond Series of  200]A

(85,290,000), due in annual

installments of $290,000 to

- $635,000, including interest at Waterworks

3.20% to 4.25% through May and

1,2013. Sewerage $ 3,535,000 - 635,000 2,900,000

General  Obligation  Bond
Series of 2001 ($17,800,000),
due in annual installments of
$245.000 to  $1,590,000,
including interest at 4.25% to

5.125% through December 15, Sports
2020. Complex 17,275,000 - 310,000 16,965,000

General Obligation Taxable

Bond  Series of 2004

($2,435,000), due in annual

installments of $125,000 to

$250,000, including interest at

4.10% to 4.45% through Sports

December 15, 2020. Complex 2,435,000

2,435,000

35,220,000 2,330,000 32,890,000
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued
IEPA Loans Payable

The Village has entered into loan agreements with the IEPA to provide low interest financing for
waterworks and sewerage improvements. IEPA loans currently outstanding are as follows:

Fund Debt Balances Balances
Issue Retired By May 1 Issuances Retirements April 30

Loan Payable in [llinois
Environmental Protection
Agency (IEPA), due in annual
installments  of  $98,449,  Waterworks

including interest at 3.015% and
through September 1, 2014. Sewerage $ 1,615,995 - 149,292 1,466,703

Installment Contracts Payable

The balance on the installment contracts currently outstanding is as follows:

Fund Debt Balances Balances
Issue Retired By May 1 Issuances Retirements April 30
Sports Complex installment
contract dated May 24, 2002
due in annual installments of
$12,116 to $14,000 plus
interest through maturity at Sports
February 24, 2006. Complex $ 107,664 - 67,509 40,155
Vehicle Maintenance
installment contracts due in
annual installments of $12,036
to $117,345 plus interest
through maturity at fiscal year Vehicle
2005 to fiscal year 2008. Maintenance 341,270 450,000 171,896 619374
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

Installment Contracts Payable — Continued

Fund Debt Balances Balances
Issue Retired By May 1 Issuances Retirements April 30
Technology Equipment
installment contract due in
annual installments of $5,320
to  $15,295 plus interest
through maturity at fiscal year Technology
2004 to fiscal year 2007. Equipment  § 19,705 - 13,007 6,698
468,639 450,000 252,412 666,227
Long-term Liability Activity
Changes in long-term liabilities during the fiscal year were as follows:
Beginning Amounts
Balances Ending Pue within
Type of Debt as Restated Additions  Deductions  Balances One Year
Governmental Activities
Net Pension Obligation hY 142,944 - 2,472 140,472 -
Compensated Absences 1,327,394 355,296 177,648 1,505,042 301,008
Installment Contracts 360,975 450,000 184,903 626,072 167,518
General Obligation Bonds 7,345,000 - 1,190,000 6,155,000 1,215,000
9,176,313 805,296 1,555,023 8,426,586 1,683,526
Business-type Activities
Compensated Absences 320,372 116,150 58,075 378,447 75,689
Installment Contracts 107,664 - 67,509 40,155 12,862
1EPA Loans Payable 1,615,995 - 149,292 1,466,703 153,827
General Obligation Bonds 27,875,000 - 1,140,000 26,735,000 1,175,000
29,919,031 116,150 1,414,876 28,620,305 1,417,378
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NOTE 3 — DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

Long-term Liability Activity — Continued

The Libertyville Sports Complex, Vehicle Maintenance and Technology Equipment Funds make
payments on the installments contracts. Payments on the TEPA bonds payable are made by the
Waterworks and Sewerage Fund. The Debt Service, Waterworks and Sewerage and Sports Complex
Funds make payments on the general obligation bonds. Governmental compensated absences are retired
by the General and Vehicle Maintenance Funds.

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year General Obligation Instaliment

Ending Bonds Contracts

April 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2007 $ 1,215,000 243,191 188,380 35,416
2008 1,240,000 206,724 200,502 16,497
2009 1,315,000 167,360 135,214 7,967
2010 180,000 123,398 101,976 2,446
2011 165,000 116,922 - -
2012 195,000 110,244 - -
2013 210,000 100,197 - -
2014 215,000 89,322 - -
2015 230,000 78,107 - -
2016 245,000 65,883 - -
2017 255,000 52,776
2018 270,000 38,902
2019 210,000 24,120 - -
2020 210,000 12,255 - -

Total 6,155,000 1,429,401 626,072 62,326
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NOTE 3 — DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued
LONG-TERM DEBT — Continued

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity — Continued

Business-Type Activities

Fiscal Year General Obligation IEPA Loans Installment
Ending Bonds Payable Contracts
April 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal  Interest

2007 $ 1,175,000 1,260,272 153,827 43,071 12,862 1,395
2008 1,205,000 1,219,320 158,500 38,398 13,377 881
2009 1,595,000 1,166,865 163,315 33,583 13,916 343
2010 1,650,000 1,097,773 168,276 28,622 - -
2011 1,725,000 1,024,136 173,388 23,510 - -
2012 1,800,000 946,816 178,655 18,243 - -
2013 1,885,000 800,761 184,081 12,816 - -
2014 1,985,000 770,009 189,673 7,224 - -
2015 1,690,000 682,805 96,988 1,462 - -
2016 1,770,000 599,684 - - - -
2017 1,860,000 512,344 - . - -
2018 1,950,000 420,396 - - - -
2019 2,045,000 323,849 - - - -
2020 2,145,000 222,393 - - - -
2021 2,255,000 113,983 - - - -

Total 26,735,000 11,221,406 1,466,703 206,929 40,155 2,619

Legal Debt Margin

Chapter 65, Section 5/8-5-1 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes provides, “...no municipality having a
population of less than 500,000 shall become indebted in any manner or for any purpose, to an amount,
including existing indebtedness in the aggregate exceeding 8.625% on the value of the taxable property
therein, to be ascertained by the last assessment for state and county purposes, previous to the incurring
of the indebtedness or, until January 1, 1983, if greater, the sum that is produced by multiplying the
municipality’s 1978 equalized assessed valuation by the debt limitation percentage in effect on January
1,1979.”
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NOTE 3 — DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued
LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued
Legal Debt Margin — Continued

Assessed Valuation - 2005 $ 1,039,667,041

Legal Debt Limit - 8.625% of Assessed Valuation 89,671,282

Amount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limit

General Obligation Bonds of 2000 1,705,000
General Obligation Bonds of 2003A 495 000
Legal Debt Margin 87,471,282

Bond Defeasances

During prior years, the Village defeased general obligation and revenue bonds by placing the proceeds
of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds.
Since the requirements which normally satisfy defeasance have been met, the financial statements
reflect satisfaction of the original Hability through the irrevocable transfer to an escrow agent of an
amount computed fo be adequate to meet the future debt service requirements of the issue. Accordingly,
the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the Village’s general
purpose financial statements. Defeased bonds in the amount of $1,330,000 are still outstanding as of the
date of this report.

FUND EQUITY

Restatements

Beginning net assets balances were increased/decreased in the following funds:

Increase
Fund Equity As Reported As Restated {(Decrease)
Waterworks and Sewerage $ 24,627,500 25,174,443 546,943
Libertyville Sports Complex (4,633,700) (5,180,959) {547,259)
Vehicle Maintenance and Replacement Service 2,525,237 3,016,655 491,418
Technology Fquipment and Replacement Service (522,946) (542,322) (19,376)
Governmental Activities Net Assets 36,643,888 143,080,978 106,437,090

Beginning net assets in the above funds were increase/decreased to reflect an error in accounting for
capital assets.
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NOTE 3 — DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS — Continued
FUND EQUITY - Continued
Fund Balance — Reserved for Special Revenues

The following is a schedule of fund balance reservations for special or restricted revenues as of the date
of this report:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
General Fund
Emergency Telephone System 911 $ 269,375 320,089 351,553 237,911
Foreign Fire Insurance 61,378 32,105 60,000 33,483
Tim/Creek Special Service Arca 4,811 17,491 17,693 4,609
Hotel/Motel Tax 18,247 245 883 188,128 76,002
Lucerne/Interlaken Special Service Area (7,595) 19,043 10,313 1,135
346,216 634,611 627,687 353,140
Pius Negative Reserves Allocated to
Unreserved Fund Balance 7,595 -
353,811 353,140
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Commuter Parking 552,921 320,420 146,711 726,630
Total Reserved Amount 906,732 1,079,770
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION — Continued
RISK MANAGEMENT

The government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; and injuries to the government’s employees. These
risks, along with medical claims for employees and retirees, are provided for through a limited self-
insurance program. The Village currently reports all its risk management activities in its General Fund.

'The Village participates in the Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA). IRMA is an
organization of Illinois municipalitics and special districts in Northeastemn Ilinois awhich have formed
an association under the lllinois Intergovernmental Cooperations Statute to pool its risk management
needs. IRMA administers a mix of self-insurance and commercial insurance coverages;
property/casualty and workers compensation claim administration and litigation management services;
unemployment claim administration; extensive risk management/loss control consulting and training
programs; and a risk information system and financial reporting service for its members.

Each member appoints one delegate along with an alternate delegate, to represent the member on the

Roard of Directors. The Village does not exercise any control over the activities of IRMA beyond its
representation on the Board of Directors.

[nitial contributions are determined each year based on the individual member’s eligible revenue as
defined in the by-laws of IRMA and experience modification factors based on past member loss
experience. Each member assumes the first $1,000 of each occurrence, and IRMA has self-insurance
retentions at various amounts above that level. Members have a contractual obligation to fund any
deficit of IRMA attributable to a membership year during which they were a member. Supplemental
contributions may be required to fund these deficits. The Village's payments to IRMA are displayed on
the financial statements as expenditures/expenses in the appropriate funds. The coverages provided by
IRMA are generally consistent with the coverages in the prior year.

Risks for medical, dental and health benefits for employees and retirees are provided through the
Village’s participation in the North Suburban Employee Benefit Cooperative (NSEBC). NSEBC acts as
an administrative agency to receive, process and pay such claims as may come within the benefit
program of each participating member. NSEBC maintains specific reinsurance coverage for claims in
excess of $100,000 per individual employee participant. The Village pays premiums to NSEBC based
upon current employee participation and its prior experience factor with the pool. Current year
coverages or underages for participation in the pool are adjusted into the subsequent year’s experience
factor of premiums.

For insured programs, there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage over the prior

year. For all programs, settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year
or for the three prior years.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION
POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Tn addition to providing pension benefits, the Village provides certain health care insurance benefits for
retired employees. In accordance with the personnel policy substantially all of the Village’s employees
may become eligible for those benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the
Village. The retirees pay an annual premium that is equal to the actuarially determined costs for each
plan year. Accordingly, no liability has been recorded for post-retirement health care benefits. The
Village also provides COBRA health and dental benefits to all prior employees as required by federal
law. The prior employee pays 100 percent of the premium.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Commitments — Central Lake County Joint Action Water Agency (CLC-JAWA)

The government has committed to purchase water from the Central Lake County Joint Action Water
Agency (CLC-JAWA). The government expects to pay the following minimum amounts:

Year
Ending Amount
2006 $ 2,377,045
2007 2,388,055
2008 2,393,129
2009 1,686,500
2010-2029 32,051,119

40,896,248

These amounts have been calculated using the government’s current allocation percentage in
accordance with the contract. In future years this allocation percentage will be subject to change.

Litigation
The Village is a defendant in various lawsuiis. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently

determinable, in the opinion of the Village's attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Village.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES - Continued
Grants

Amounts received or reccivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, may constitute a Hability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the Village expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

JOINT VENTURE

Central Lake County Joint Action Water Agency (CLCJAWA)

The Village is a member of CLCJAWA, which consists of twelve municipalities. CLCJAWA 1is a
municipal corporation and public body politic and corporate established pursuant to the Constitution of
the State of Illinois and the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act of the State of Illinois, as amended (the
Act). CLCJAWA is empowered under the Act to plan, construct, improve, extend, acquire, finance,
operate, and maintain a joint water supply system to serve its members and other potential water
purchasers.

CLCIAWA is governed by a board of directors, which consists of one elected official from each
member municipality. Each director has an equal vote. The officers of CLCJAWA are appointed by the
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors determines the general policy of CLCJAWA; makes all
appropriations; approves contracts for sale or purchase of water; adopts resolutions providing for the
issuance of bonds or notes by CLCJAWA; and adopts bylaws, rules and regulations. The Village has no
explicit and measurable equity interest in CLCJAWA, although there does exist a residual interest in
CLCJAWA’s asscts upon dissolution of the joint venture. The Village has an ongoing financial
responsibility for its share of CLCJAWA’s liabilities. Each participant is liable for its share of any
agency contacts entered into while bound by the intergovernmental agreement, until those contacts are
paid off. Additionally, the Village has an ongoing financial responsibility to purchase water from
CLCJAWA. To obtain complete government financial statements, write to: Central Lake County Joint
Action Water Agency, 200 Rockland Road, Lake Bluff, Illinois 60044,
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NOTE 4 — OTHER INFORMATION - Continued
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

The Village contributes to three defined benefit pension plans, the Tllinois Municipal Retirement Fund
(IMRF), a defined benefit agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system; the Police
Pension Plan which is a single-employer pension plan; and, the Firefighters’ Pension Plan, which is also
a single-employer pension plan. Separate reports are issued for the Police and Firefighters’ Pension
Plans and may be obtained by writing to the Village at118 West Cook Avenue, Libertyville, IL 60048-
1847. IMRF does issue a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the plan as a whole, but not by individual employer. That report
may be obtained by writing to the Hlinois Municipal Retirement Fund, 2211 York Road, Suite 500, Oak
Brook, Illinois 60523. The Police and Firefighters’ Pension plans also issue separate reports that may
be obtained by writing the Village of Libertyville, 118 West Cook Avenue, Libertyville, Illinois 60048,
The benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions, and employer contributions are governed by
Illinois Compiled Statutes and can only be amended by the Illinois General Assembly.

Plan Descriptions, Provisions and Funding Policies
Illinois Municipal Retirement System

All employees (other than those covered by the Police and Firefighters’ Pension plans) hired in
positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard must be enrolled in IMRF as
participating members. Pension benefits vest after eight years of service. Participating members who
retire at or after age 60 with 8 years of setvice are entitled to an annual retirement benetit, payable
monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3 percent of their {inal rate (average of the highest 48
consecutive months' earnings during the last 10 years) of earnings, for each year of credited service up
to 15 years, and 2 percent for each year thereafter. IMRY also provides death and disability benefits.
These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute.

Employees participating in the plan are required to contribute 4.50 percent of their annual covered
salary to IMRF. The employees’ coniribution rate is established by state statute. The Village is required
to contribute the remaining amount necessary to fund the IMRF plan as specified by statute. The
employer rate for calendar year 2004 was 8.72 percent.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued
Plan Descriptions, Provisions and Funding Policies - Continued
Police Pension Plan

The Police Pension Plan is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers all swomn police
personnel. Although this is a single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and employee and
employer coniribution levels are governed by Illinois State Statutes and may be amended only by the
IHinois legislature. The Village accounts for the plan as a pension trust fund.

At fiscal year end the Police Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Police
Retirees and Beneficiaries Currently Receiving
Benefits and Terminated Employees Entitled
to Benefits but not yet Receiving Them 25

Current Employees

Vested 25
Nonvested 17
67

The following is a summary of the Police Pension Plan as provided for in Hllinois State Statutes.

The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Covered
employees attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years of creditable service are entitled to
receive an annual retirement benefit of one-half of the salary attached to the rank held on the last day of
service, or for one year prior to the last day, whichever is greater. The pension shall be increased by
2.5% of such salary for each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years, to a maximum of
75% of such salary. Employees with at least 8 years but less than 20 years of credited service may retire
at or after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit. The monthly benefit of a police officer who retired with
20 or more years of service after January 1, 1977 shall be increased annually, following the first
anniversary date of retirement and be paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3% of the
original pension and 3% compounded annually thereafter.

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the Police Pension Plan. If an
employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service, accumulated employee
contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest. The Village is required to contribute the
remaining amounts necessary to finance the plan, including administrative costs, as actuarially determined
by an enrolled actuary. By the year 2033 the Village's contributions must accumulate to the point where
the past service cost for the Police Pension Plan is fully funded.
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NOTE 4 — OTHER INFORMATION - Continued
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - Continued

Plan Descriptions, Provisions, and Funding Policies - Continued
Firefighters’ Pension Plan

The Firefighters’ Pension Plan is a single-employer defined pension plan that covers all sworn fire
personnel. Although this is a single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and employee and
employer contribution levels are governed by Illinois State Statutes and may be amended only by the
Illinois legislature. The Village accounts for the plan as a pension trust fund.

At fiscal year end the Firefighters’ Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Currently Receiving
Benefits and Terminated Employees Entitled
to Benefits but not yet Receiving Them 10

Current Employees

Vested 17
Nonvested i3
40

The following is a summary of the Firefighters’ Pension Plan as provided for in Illinois State Statutes.

The Firefighters’ Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits.
Covered employees attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years of creditable service are
entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit of one-half of the monthly salary attached to the rank at
the date of retirement. The pension shall be increased by 1/12 of 2.5% of such monthly salary for each
additional month over 20 years of service through 30 years of service, to a maximum of 75% of such
monthly salary. Employees with at least 10 years but less than 20 years of credited service may retire at
or after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit. The monthly pension of a firefighter who retired with 20
or more years of service after January 1, 1977 shall be increased annually, following the first
anniversary date of retirement and be paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3% of the
original pension and 3% compounded annually thereafter.
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NOTE 4 — OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - Continued
Plan Descriptions, Provisions, and Funding Policies - Continued

Firefighters’ Pension Plan - Continued

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.455% of their base salary to the Firefighters’ Pension
Plan, If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service, accumulated
employec contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest. The Village is required to
contribute the temaining amounts necessary to finance the plan, including administrative costs, as

actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary. By the year 2033 the Village's contributions must
accumulate to the point where the past service cost for the Firefighters’ Pension Plan is fully funded.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employee and employer
contributions are recognized as revenues in the period in which employee services are performed.
Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Valae Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates
fair value. Securities traded on national exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price.
Investments that do not have any established market, if any, are reported at estimated fair value.

Significant Investments

There are no investments (other than U.S. Government and U.S. Government - guaranteed obligations) in
any one organization that represent 5 percent or more of net assets available for benefits for either the
Police or Firefighters’ Pension Plans. Information for IMRF is not available.

Related Party Transactions

There are no securities of the employer or any other related parties included in plan assets.
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NOTE 4 — OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM —~ DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - Continued
Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The pension liability was determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 27, “Accounting for

Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers.” There was no net pension obligation for the
IMRF plan. The pension liability (asset) for the Police and Firefighters’ Pension Plans is as follows:

Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension Totals
Annual Required Contribution $ 667,352 516,428 1,183,780
Interest on the NPO 5,599 5,122 10,721
Adjustment to the ARC (3,594) (3,288) (6,882)
Annual Pension Cost 669,357 518,262 1,187,619
Actual Contribution 670,984 519,107 1,190,091
Increase in the NPO (1,627) (845) (2,472)
NPO Beginning of Year 74,653 68,291 142,944
NPO End of Year 73,026 67,446 140,472
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - Continued

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation — Continued

The Village annual required contribution for the current

follows:

Contribution Rates
Employer
Employee

Annual Pension Cost

Contributions Made

Actuariai Valuation Date

Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method

Actuarial Assumptions
Investment Rate of Return

Projected Salary Increases
Inflation Rate Included

Cost-of-Living Adjustments

year and related information for each plan is as

Hlinois
Municipal Police Firefighters'
Retirement Pension Pension
9.06% 22.71% 23.97%
4.50% 9.91% 9.455%
$556,124 $669,357 $518,262
$556,124 $724,464 $533,880
12/31/03 4/30/05 4/30/05
Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age
Normal Normal Normal
Level %of Level %of Level %of
Projected Payroll Projected Payroll Projected Payroll
Closed Basis Closed Basis Closed Basis
10 28 Years 28 Years
5-Year Market Market
Smoothed Market
7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Compounded Compounded Compounded
Annually Annually Annually
410 11.6% 5.00% 5.00%
4.00% 3.00% 3.00%
3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM -- DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - Continued
Trend Information

Employer annual required contributions (ARC), actual coniributions and the net pension obligation

(NPQO) are as follows: The NPO is the cumulative difference between the ARC and the contributions
actually made.

Hlinois
Municipal Police Firefighters'
Year Retirement Pension Pension
Annual Required 2004 $ 389,481 587,484 478,147
Contribution (ARC) 2005 540,962 667,352 516,428
2006 556,124 719,433 527,909
Actual Contributions 2004 389,481 582,020 478,900
2005 540,962 670,984 519,107
2006 556,124 724,464 553,880
Percentage of ARC 2004 100.00% 99.07% 100.16%
Contributed 2005 160.00% 100.54% 100.52%
2006 100.00% 100.70% 104.92%
Net Pension Obligation 2004 - 67,306 67,165
2005 - 74,653 68,291
2006 - 73,026 67,446

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On July 26, 2006, the Village issued $3,000,000 General Obligation Waterworks and Sewerage Alternate
Revenues Sources Bonds Series of 2006, due in annual installments of $75,000 to $330,000 plus interest
at 3.90% to 4.20%. Effective May 1, 2006 the health benefits carrier changed from North Suburban
Employee Benefit Cooperative (NSEBC) to Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC).
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures that are
required by the GASB but are not considered a part of the basic financial statements. Such
information includes:

¢ Schedule of Funding Progress
» lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund
» Police Pension Fund
» Firefighters’ Pension Fund

o Employer Contributions
» Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
» Police Pension Fund
» Firefighters’ Pension Fund
s Budgetary Comparison Schedule — General Fund

Notes to the Required.Supplementary Information

Budgetary Information — Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles.



VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
1llinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress
April 30, 2006

(6)
Unfunded
(Overfunded)
Actuarial
4) Accrued
) Unfunded Liability
(1) Actuarial (Overfunded) asa
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued {3) Actuarial (3) Percentage
Valuation Value Liability Funded Accrued Annual of Covered
Date of Plan (AAL) Ratio Liability Covered Payroll
December 3 Assets - Entry Age (1} +(2) (2)- (1) Payroll 4)+ (%)
2000 $ 11,026,524  § 9,711,828 113.34%  § (1,314,696) 4,667,646 (28.17%)
2001 11,642,260 10,524,924 110.62% (1,117.336) 5,037,230 (22.18%)
2002 12,129,280 12,077,990 100.42% (51,290) 5,696,062 (0.90%)
2003 12,983,971 13,510,740 96.10% 526,769 6,133,563 8.59%
2004 13,135,869 14,374,301 91.38% 1,238,432 6,203,695 19.96%
2003 14,438,306 15,949,450 90.53% 1,511,144 6,138,236 24.62%
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Employer Contributions
April 30,2006

Annual

Calendar Employer Required Percent
Year Contributions Contribution Contributed
2000 $ 320,200 $ 320,200 100.00%
2001 301,730 301,730 100.00%
2002 314,992 314,992 100.00%
2003 389,481 389,481 100.00%
2004 540,962 540,962 100.00%
2005 556,124 556,124 100.00%
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Police Pension Fund
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress
April 30, 2006

(6)
Unfunded
(Overfunded)

Actuarial

(4) Accrued

(2) Unfunded Liability

48 Actuarial _ (Overfunded) asa
Actuarial Accrued 3) Actuarial (5) Percentage
Actuarial Value Liabihty Funded Accrued Annual of Covered
Valunation of Plan (AAL) Ratio Liability Covered Payroll

April 30 Assets - Entry Age (1) +(2) 2y - (1) Payroll (4)+(5)
2000 $ 13,852,123 $ 17,363,881 79.78% $ 3,511,758 $ 2,335,296 150.38%
2001 13,401,680 19,167,003 69.92% 5,765,323 2,404,582 239.76%
2002 12,974,373 24,303,638 63.90% 7,329,265 2,584,733 283.56%
2003 12,761,516 21,076,678 60.55% 8,315,162 2,619,717 317.41%
2004 14,417,561 23,037,972 62.58% 8,620,411 2,790,845 308.88%
2005 15,268 089 24,534,390 62.23% 9.266,301 2,954,668 313.62%
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Police Pension Fund
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Employer Contributions
April 30, 2006

Fiscal Annual

Year Employer Required Percent
Ended Contributions Contribution Contributed
2001 $ 424328 $ 423258 100.25%
2002 436,090 431,256 101.12%
2003 533,219 545,383 97.77%
2004 582,020 587,484 99.07%
2005 670,984 667,352 100.54%
2006 724 464 719,433 100.70%
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Firefighters' Pension Fund

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

April 30, 2006
(6)
Unfunded
(Overfunded)
Actuarial
) Accrued
2) Unfunded Liability
) Actuarial (Overfunded) as a
Actuarial Accrued (3) Actuarial (5) Percentage
Actuarial Value Liability Funded Accrued Annual of Covered
Valuation of Plan {AAL) Ratio Liabihty Covered Payroll
April 30 Assets - Entry Age (1) +(2) 2)-(N) Payroll (4) = (5)
2000 $ 10,318,365 11,845,804 §7.11% 1,527,439 b 1,660,124 92.01%
2001 10,194,236 12,525,963 81.38% 2,331,727 1,626,096 143.39%
2002 10,186,823 13,558,360 75.13% 3,371,537 2,025,081 166.49%
2003 10,186,046 14,004,618 72.73% 3,818,572 2,063,417 185.06%
2004 11,692,117 15,393,069 75.96% 3,700,952 2,114,190 175.05%
2005 12,448,433 16,701,838 74.53% 4,253,405 2,165,528 196.41%
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTY VILLE, ILLINOIS
Firefighters' Pension Fund
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Employer Contributions
April 30, 2006

Fiscal Ammual

Year Employer Required Percent
Ended Contributions Contribution Contributed
2001 § 358,600 358,207 100.13%
2002 401,189 397,622 100.90%
2003 419,493 414,572 101.19%
2004 478,900 478,147 100.16%
2005 519,107 516,428 100.52%
2006 533,880 527,909 101.13%
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
General Government
Community Development
Public Safety
Public Works
Parks and Recreation
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing (Uses)
Transfers Out

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending
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Original Final Actual

$ 4,854,050 4,854,050 4,937,965
717,870 717,870 1,051,786
8,326,200 8,326,200 8,428,129
5,000,585 5,000,585 5,106,072
231,000 231,000 241,105
304,600 304,600 325,224
178,600 178,600 366,049
19,612,905 19,612,905 20,456,330
2,220,410 2,415,410 2,318,431
1,102,575 1,102,575 1,034,897
11,697,628 12,017,628 11,944,339
2,109,825 2,154,825 2,083,919
2,928,120 2,928,120 2,792,256
20,058,558 20,618,558 20,173,842
- (445,653) (1,005,653) 282,488

(60,000) (80,000) (80,000)
(505,653) (1,085,653) 202,488
10,342,081

10,544,569



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the
GASB, nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional
analysis.
Such statements and schedules include:
+ Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Major Governmental
General, Debt Service, Capital Improvement and
Tax Increment Financing Construction Funds
» Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Nonmajor Governmental Fund
e Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Enterprise Funds
« Combining Schedules — Internal Service Funds
» Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Internal Service Funds
o Combining Schedules ~ Pension Trust Funds

¢ Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Pension Trust Funds

e Schedules of Governmental Capital Assels



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources {other than
fiduciary funds or capital projects funds) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.
The Village’s Special Revenue Funds are all nonmajor funds.

Commuter Parking System Fund

The Commuter Parking System Fund is used to account for the operations of the Village’s commuter
parking lot. Financing is provided by parking fees.

DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Fund, a major fund, accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment
of, general long-term debt principal and interest.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Capital Projects Funds are created to account for all resources used for the acquisition of capital facilities
by a governmental unit except those financed by Proprietary Funds.

Capital Improvement Fund

The Capital Improvements Fund is used to account for the acquisition and improvement of Village
property including infrastructure and general fixed assets.

Tax Increment Financing Construction

The Tax Increment Financing Construction Fund is used to account for a portion of the infrastructure
costs for the tax increment service area.




COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises where the intent is that costs of providing goods or services to the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where it has
been decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purpose.
The Village’s enterprise funds are both major funds.

Waterworks and Sewerage Fund

The Waterworks and Sewerage Fund is used to account for the provision of potable water and
wastewater treatment services to the residents of the Village. All activities necessary to provide such
services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to, administration, operations and
maintenance, financing and related debt service, billing and collection.

Libertyville Sports Complex Fund
The Libertyville Sports Complex Fund is used to account for all activities associated with the complex,

but not limited to, purchase of land, construction of facilities, operations, maintenance, and all related
debt service for the 48-acre site.

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies other governmental unit, or to other
governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Vehicle Maintenance and Replacement Service Fund

The Vehicle Maintenance and Replacement Service Fund is used to account for costs associated with
maintaining and replacing motor vehicles in all Village departments.

Technology Equipment and Replacement Service Fund
The Techhology Equipment and Replacement Service Fund is used to account for acquisition,

maintenance and updates of management information systems including computers, communications,
software, etc. in all Village departments,
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
Police Pension Fund

The Police Pension Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resoutces to be used for retirement
annuity payments to employees on the police force at approptiate amounts and times in the future.
Resources are contributed by employees at rates fixed by law and by the Village at amounts determined
by an annual actuarial study.

Firefighters’ Pension Fund

The Firefighters’ Pension Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources to be used for
retirement annuity payments to employees on the fire department at appropriate amounts and times in
the future. Resources are contributed by employees at rates fixed by law and by the Village at amounts
determined by an annual actuarial study.



VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Taxes

Property Taxes
General Corporate
Fire Protection
Parks
Recreation
Highway and Bridges - Village
Highway and Bridges - Township
Municipal Retirement -
Police Pension
Fire Pension
Special Recreation
Concord/Interlaken Special Service Area
Timber Creek Special Service Area

Leased Car Tax

Hotel/Motel Tax

Foreign Fire Insurance Tax

Personal Property Replacement Tax
General
Police
Fire

Licenses and Permits
Building Plan Review Fees
Building Permits
Zoning Fees
Fire Bureau - Permits/Fees
Liquor Licenses
Other Licenses

Budget
Original Final Actual

800,000 800,000 800,272
713,000 713,000 714,464
280,000 280,000 285,876
280,000 280,000 285,876
541,000 541,000 505,815
150,000 150,000 184,912
350,000 350,000 352,264
709,400 709,400 714,464
517,900 517,900 523,880
104,000 104,000 104,776
18,750 18,750 18,750
17,000 17,000 17,018
53,000 53,000 55,786
220,000 220,000 240,690
30,000 30,000 31,772
50,000 50,000 81,350
10,000 10,000 10,000
10,000 10,000 10,000
4,854,050 4,854,050 4,937,965
59,370 59,370 76,605
494,000 494,000 769,895
30,000 30,000 60,761
62,500 62,500 75,835
60,000 60,000 56,465
12,000 12,000 12,225
717,870 717,870 1,051,786
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended April 30, 2006

Intergovernmental
Sales Tax
Income Tax
Use Tax
Street/Signal Maintenance Fees
Grants

Charges for Services
Libertyville Fire Protection
Ambulance Fees
Golf Rentals
Golf Special Events
Recreation Fees
Green Fees
Swimming Fees
Swimming Programs
Senior Meals Fees
Parking Fees
Engineering
Burglary Fire Alarm Fees
Elevator Inspection Fees
Fire Services
Legal Fee Reimbursement
Birth/Death Certificates
Cable Franchise Fee
Telecom Infrastructure Maintenance Fee
Police Services
Damage to Village Property
Senior Center Sponsorship
Concessions - Pools
Pro Shop Merchandise
Telephone Surcharge
Wireless Surcharge

Original Final Actual
$ 6,528,500 6,528,500 6,512,520
1,472,600 1,472,600 1,584,940
228,100 228,100 256,455
72,000 72,000 37,273
25,000 25,000 36,941
8,326,200 8,326,200 8,428,129
2,110,640 2,110,640 2,110,651
180,000 180,000 187,805
6,300 6,300 3,836

12,000 12,000 -
813,000 813,000 762,589
117,060 117,000 95,017
261,155 261,155 263,627
154,590 154,590 133,314
22,0600 22,000 13,806
4,000 4,000 5,005
50,000 50,000 73,816
191,000 191,000 244,652
15,000 15,000 11,871
- - 30,926
10,000 10,000 71,877
129,500 129,500 118,679
192,000 192,000 210,403
265,000 265,000 327,005
78,000 78,000 85,977
- - 5,269
16,500 16,500 3,700
40,000 40,000 42,016
1,500 1,500 2,178
203,190 203,190 188,089
128,210 128,210 107,904
5,000,585 5,000,585 5,106,072
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended April 30, 2006

Fines and Forfeits
Local Fines
Circuit Court Fines
DUI Fines - Senate Bill 740

Interest
Investment Income

Miscellaneous
Park Rentals
Scholarship/Donations
Tree Program
Hazardous Materials Reimbursement
Drug Forfeiture
D.A.R.E. Donations
Cash QOver
Insurance Surplus
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Original Final Actual
$ 85,000 85,000 103,763
140,000 140,000 132,398
6,000 6,000 4,944
231,000 231,000 241,105
304,600 304,600 325,224
2,500 2,500 2,007
5,000 5,000 15,000
10,500 10,500 15,067
- - 1,760
500 500 6,615
- - 50
100 100 58
100,000 100,000 178,292
60,000 60,000 147,200
178,600 178,600 366,049
19,612,905 19,612,905 20,456,330
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2006

General Government
Legislative
Admintstration and Finance
Legal
Public Buildings
Community Organization/Activities
Senior Programs
Centra! Business District Parking
Hotel/Motel Tax

Community Development
Planning
Building Services

Public Safety
Police Department
Administration/Communication/Records
Patrol Services
Investigation
Public Education
Community Service

Fire Services Department
Administration
Fire Prevention
Emergency Services
Support Services
Foreign Fire Insurance

Emergency Management Agency
Emergency Telephone System (911)

Total Public Safety

Original Final Actual
b 108,885 128,885 126,757
1,114,670 1,114,670 1,058,744
308,000 468,000 461,755
182,345 182,345 180,120
200,000 215,000 216,013
69,680 69,680 60,464
28,570 28,570 26,450
208,260 208,260 188,128
2,220,410 2,415,410 2,318,431
420,565 420,565 404,568
682,010 682,010 630,329
1,102,575 1,102,575 1,034,897
1,887,020 1,887,020 1,892,309
3,434,100 3,634,100 3,742,287
515,650 515,650 385,842
84,650 84,650 66,303
160,305 160,305 155,980
6,081,725 6,281,725 6,242,721
274,740 274,740 237,486
146,900 146,900 145,057
4,320,750 4,345,750 4,341,053
492,630 567,630 571,901
60,000 60,000 60,000
5,295,020 5,395,020 5,355,497
4,950 24,950 19,508
315,933 315,933 326,553
11,697,628 12,017,628 11,944,339
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended April 30, 2006

Public Works
Engineering
Highways and Bridges
Snow Removal and Ice Control
Concord/Interlaken Special Service Area
Timber Creek Special Service Area

Parks and Recreation
Parks
Recreation
Libertyville Golf Course
Swimming Pool

Total Expenditures

Original Final Actual
$ 410,280 410,280 406,348
1,403,585 1,448,585 1,427,599
246,460 246,460 221,966
28,500 28,500 10,313
21,000 21,000 17,693
2,109,825 2,154,825 2,083,919
1,218,300 1,218,300 1,240,737
1,109,670 1,109,670 1,034,833
207,385 207,385 165,750
392,765 392,765 350,936
2,928,120 2,928,120 2,792,256
20,058,558 20,618,558 20,173,842
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2006

General Government
Legislative

Salaries
Employer Contribution - IMRF
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues
Appearance Review Committee
Board of Police and Fire Commissions
Economic Development Commission
Keep Libertyville Beautiful
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals
Miscellaneous

Administration and Finance
Salaries
Employer Contribution - IMRF
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare
Materials and Supplies
Telephone
Maintenance - Computer
Maintenance - Copy Machines
Maintenance - Motor Vehicles
Maintenance - Other Equipment
Vital Records
Insurance
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency
Postage
Office Supplies
Audit Services
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues
Technical Services
Credit Card/Bank Fees
Publication
Printing
Section 125 Administration Fees

Original Final Actual
b 45,600 45,600 45,600
1,550 1,550 1,042
4,635 4,635 4,188
20,100 30,100 30,738
3,500 3,500 1,450
12,000 12,000 8,468
3,000 3,000 2,004
1,500 1,500 1,286
12,000 12,000 10,885
5,000 15,000 21,096
108,885 128,885 126,757
567,220 567,220 563,274
51,725 51,725 51,905
39,980 39,980 38,973
4,000 4,000 3,103
19,750 19,750 17,482
220 220 252
18,300 18,300 10,227
2,000 2,000 4,000
1,650 1,650 1,959
18,250 18,250 18,878
121,875 121,875 106,771
87,100 87,100 75,568
18,250 18,250 20,622
10,000 10,000 8,381
17,950 17,950 19,315
9,950 9,950 11,742
22,800 22,800 22,015
20,000 20,000 2,380
17,800 17,800 20,016
21,150 21,150 22,387
4,350 4,350 4177
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended April 30, 2006

General Government - Continued
Administration and Finance - Continued
Employee Programs
Cash Under

Technology Equipment and Replacement Fees

Vehicle Replacement Fees
Miscellaneous

Legal
Village Attorney
Village Prosecutor
Labor Counsel
Litigation
Special Projects
Miscellaneous

Public Buildings
Salaries
Employer Contribution - IMRF

Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare

Materials and Supplies

North Shore Gas

Maintenance - Village Hall
Maintenance - Schertz Building
Maintenance - Motor Vehicle
Insurance

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

Uniforms
Civic Center
Miscellaneous

Original Final Actual
b 15,800 15,800 11,578
- - 37
16,300 16,300 16,300
4,250 4,250 4,250
4,000 4,000 3,152
1,114,670 1,114,670 1,058,744
200,000 189,000 188,167
48,000 45,200 41,196
18,000 137,000 136,401
30,000 70,000 69,447
10,000 11,000 10,768
2,000 15,800 15,776
308,000 468,000 461,755
47,375 47,375 46,363
4,360 4,360 4,331
3,625 3,625 3,349
- - 7
750 750 7,334
22,000 22,000 21,293
74,000 74,000 70,266
2,000 2,000 2,000
10,485 10,485 11,103
5,000 5,000 5,712
250 250 140
10,000 10,000 5,758
2,500 2,500 2,464
182,345 182,345 180,120
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

(eneral Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended April 36, 2006

General Government - Continued
Community Organization/Activities

Dial-A-Ride

Northern Illinois Special Recreation Assn.

Village Band
Special Events
Spring Cleanup
Mosquito Control

Senior Programs

Salaries

Employer Contribution - IMRF
_Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare
Materials and Supplies

Meal Supplies

Contractual Services

Senior Trips
Office Supplies
Publicity
Special Events
Miscellaneous

Central Business District Parking
Materials and Supplies
Maintenance - Parking Lots

Rent

Hotel/Motel Tax

Libertyville Days
Cook House
Chamber Book

Mainstreet Libertyvilie

Budget

Original Final Actual
$ 20,000 20,000 16,325
104,000 104,000 104,318
3,000 3,000 3,648
20,000 20,000 20,536
30,000 38,000 37,063
23,000 30,000 34,129
200,000 215,000 216,013
24,830 24,830 25,940
2,100 2,100 2,227
1,900 1,900 1,985
5,250 5,250 2,999
200 200 251
24,000 24,000 23,280
9,200 9,200 3,360
100 100 81
- - 60
2,000 2,000 252
100 100 29
69,680 69,680 60,464

1,800 1,800 -
4,000 4,000 3,680
22,770 22,770 22,770
28,570 28,570 26,450
24,000 24,000 23,960
5,000 5,000 9,724
- - 1,795
25,000 25,000 25,000
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended April 30, 2006

General Government - Continued
Hotel/Motel Tax - Continued
Lake County Convention
Sports Complex Marketing
Adier Cultural Center
I.ease Payments

Total General Government

Community Development
Planning
Salaries
Employer Contribution - IMRF

Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare

Materials and Supplies
Telephone

Maintenance - Motor Vehicle
Insurance

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

Postage

Technical Services

Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues
Consulting Services

Printing and Photoprocessing
Publication Notices

Technology Equipment and Replacement Fees

Vehicle Replacement Fees
Miscellaneous

Building Services
Salaries
Employer Contribution - IMRF

Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare

Original Final Actual
$ 10,000 10,000 10,000
125,000 125,000 110,948
5,000 5,000 4,807
14,260 14,260 1,894
208,260 208,260 188,128
2,220,410 2,415,410 2,318,431
261,380 261,380 259,785
24,050 24,050 24,270
19,275 19,275 18,983
4,000 4,000 3,841
4,000 4,000 4,077
1,500 1,500 3,000
54,680 54,680 50,330
5,000 5,000 5,712
2,000 2,000 1,706
4,000 4,000 5,054
4,500 4,500 2,877
11,000 11,000 1,000
12,000 12,000 12,569
1,000 1,000 49
6,300 6,300 6,300
4,380 4,380 4,380
1,500 1,500 635
420,565 420,565 404,568
449,450 449,450 414,378
40,140 40,140 38,654
34,380 34,380 30,655
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Budget
Original Final Actual
Community Development - Continued
Building Services - Continued
Materials and Supplies $ 5,000 5,000 3,160
Telephone 4,000 4,000 3,171
Maintenance - Motor Vehicle 7,900 7,900 10,000
Maintenance - Other Equipment 1,950 1,950 2,338
Insurance £0,090 80,090 73,991
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency 11,000 11,600 11,423
Office Supplies 4,000 4,000 3,600
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues 5,800 5,800 3,374
Technical Services 20,000 20,000 20,012
Reimbursable Expenses 1,500 1,500 960
Printing and Publication 5,000 5,000 3,528
Technology Equipment and Replacement Fees 10,300 10,300 10,300
Miscellaneous 1,500 1,500 779
682,010 682,010 630,329
Total Community Development 1,102,575 1,102,575 1,034,897
Public Safety
Police Department

Administration/Communication/Records
Salaries - Uniformed 372,175 372,175 356,801
Salaries - Civilian 171,060 171,060 157,416
Salaries - Dispatchers 285,950 285,950 319,584
Employer Contribution - IMRF 42,045 42,045 44,402
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare 36,590 36,590 36,995
Contractual Services 41,000 41,000 47,547
Materials and Supplies 6,000 6,000 6,742
Telephone 22,000 22,000 22,504
Maintenance - Motor Vehicles Fees 3,500 3,500 5,000
Maintenance - Other Equipment 5,000 5,000 5,111
Insurance . 662,200 662,200 653,784
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency 95,000 95,000 60,078
Postage 5,000 5,000 4,808
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Budget
Original Final Actual
Public Safety - Continued
Police Department - Continued
Administration/Communication/Records - Continued
Office Supplies ¥ 11,000 11,000 13,545
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues 11,000 11,000 7.918
Medical Services 500 500 785
Photocopying 6,000 6,000 6,837
Printing and Publications 4,000 4,000 4,515
Uniforms 5,000 5,000 8,944
Technology Equipment and Replacement Fees 97,000 97,000 97,060
Miscellaneous 5,000 5,000 4,993
1,887,020 1,887,020 1,892,309
Patrol Services
Salaries - Uniformed 2,398,820 2,562,820 2,676,452
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare 28,700 28,700 30,800
Contractual Services 1,000 1,000 500
Materials and Supplies 23,000 23,000 22,766
Maintenance - Motor Vehicles Fees 65,000 101,000 100,259
Maintenance - Other Equipment 4,100 4,100 4317
Squad Equipment Changeover 23,500 23,500 23,797
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues 20,000 20,000 4,347
Equipment Rental and User Fees 4,480 4,480 -
Uniforms 35,000 35,000 18,701
Northern Illinois Crime Lab 21,000 21,000 21,000
Police Pension 709,400 709,400 724,464
Capital Outlays - - 14,884
Vehicle Replacement Fees 100,000 100,000 100,000
Miscellaneous 100 100 -
3,434,100 3,634,100 3,742,287
Investigations
Salaries - Uniformed 473,950 473,950 346,881
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare 6,870 0,870 4,991
Materials and Supplies 4,000 4,000 1,732
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended April 30, 2006

Public Safety - Continued
Police Department - Continued
Investigations - Continued

Maintenance - Motor Vehicles Fees

Maintenance - Other Equipment

Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues

Uniforms

Northern EHlinois Crime Lab
Drug Forfeiture Expense
Capital Outlays
Miscellaneous

Public Education
Salaries - Uniformed

Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare

Materials and Supplies

Maintenance - Motor Vehicles Fees
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues

Uniforms
Miscellaneous

Community Services
Salaries - Civilian
Employer Contribution - IMRF

Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare

Materials and Supplies

Maintenance - Motor Vehicles Fees
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues

Animal Care
Uniforms

Total Police Department

Original Final Actual
$ 11,000 11,000 11,000
1,000 1,000 307
1,000 1,000 888
6,000 6,000 5,086
10,830 10,830 10,824
500 500 1,780
- - 961
500 500 1,392
515,650 515,650 385,842
70,525 70,525 53,323
1,025 1,025 768
10,000 10,000 10,273
1,500 1,500 1,500
500 500 300

600 600 -
500 500 139
84,650 84,650 66,303
130,165 130,165 123,777
8,585 8,585 8,148
9,955 9,955 9,114
1,000 1,000 914
5,000 5,000 8,000
500 500 100
3,000 3,600 1,775
2,100 2,100 4,152
160,305 160,305 155,980
6,081,725 6,281,725 6,242,721
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, TLLINOIS
General Fand

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended April 30,2006

Budget
Original Final Actual
Fire Department
Administration

Salaries - Uniformed $ 100,415 100,415 67,360
Salaries - Civilian 49,865 49,865 49,857
Employer Contribution - IMRF 4,585 4,585 4,657
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare 3,815 3,815 3,452
Telephone 23,000 23,000 22,294

Maintenance - Radio Equipment 360 360 -
Computer Equipment and Supplies 1,700 1,760 500
Postage 500 500 740
Office Supplies 2,500 2,500 1,948
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Pues 500 500 496
Photocopying 5,000 5,000 3,541
Technology Equipment and Replacement Fees 82,000 82,000 82,000
Miscellaneous 500 500 635
274,740 274,740 237,486

Fire Prevention

Salaries - Uniformed 86,815 86,815 86,826
Salaries - Paid on Call - - 225
Salaries - Civilian ' 44,275 44,275 44,275
Employer Contribution - IMRF 4,075 4,075 4,136
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare 3,385 3,385 3,310
Majntenance - Motor Equipment Fees 2,000 2,000 2,000

Maintenance - Other Equipment 100 100 -
Postage 1,000 1,000 256
Office Supplies 100 100 83
Public Education 2,425 2,425 2,030
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues 2,300 2,300 1,916

Photocopying 100 160 -

Uniforms 325 325 -
146,900 146,900 145,057
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended April 30, 2000

Public Safety - Continued
Fire Department - Continued
Emergency Services
Salaries - Uniformed
Salaries - Paid on Call
Salaries - Dispatchers
Employer Contribution - IMRF

Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare

Contractual Services
Firefighter/EMS Supplies
Insurance

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

Office Supplies

Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues

Technical Services
Photocopying
Firefighters' Pension
Paid on Call Pensions
Miscellaneous

Support Services
Salaries - Uniformed

Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare

Materials and Supplies
Firefighter/EMS Supplies
Utilities

Maintenance - Buildings
Maintenance - Motor Equipment
Maintenance - Other Equipment
Uniforms

Vehicle Replacement Fees
Miscellaneous

Budget

Original Final Actual
$ 2,268,530 2,293,530 2,290,779
67,400 67,400 32,837
189,355 189,355 211,599
17,420 17,420 19,677
41,650 41,650 45,218
620,870 620,870 615,955
15,500 15,500 15,116
455,245 455,245 436,440
95,200 95,200 81,601

200 200 -
13,720 13,720 15,640
3,500 3,500 38,345

100 100 -
527,910 527,910 533,880
3,150 3,150 2,975
1,000 1,000 991
4,320,750 4,345,750 4,341,053
26,360 26,360 26,534
- - 77
15,590 15,590 15,150
23,030 68,030 68,050
19,000 19,000 24,730
20,000 20,000 22,813
90,000 120,000 120,000
8,700 8,700 5,196
14,450 14,450 13,940
275,000 275,000 275,000
500 500 411
492,630 567,630 571,901
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended April 30, 2000

Public Safety - Continued
Fire Department - Continued
Foreign Fire Insurance
Firefighting/EMS Equipment

Total Fire Department

Emergency Management Agency
Materials and Supplies
Electricity
Telephone
Maintenance - Other Equipment
Computer Equipment and Supplies
Office Supplies
Public Education
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues
Photocopying

Emergency Telephone System (911)
Salaries
Employer Contribution - IMRF
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare
Materials and Supplics
Telephone
Maintenance - Other Equipment
Maintenance - 911 Equipment
Computer Equipment and Supplies
Insurance
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency
Office Supplies
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues
Technical Services
Capital Outlay

Total Public Safety

Original Final Actual
3 60,000 60,000 60,000
5,295,020 5,395,020 5,355,497

100 100 -
500 500 298
2,000 2,000 2,137

1,000 1,000 -
1,000 1,000 1,000

100 100 -
- 20,000 15,872
200 200 261

50 50 -
4,950 24,950 19,568
70,200 70,200 74,324
6,460 6,460 6,813
5,370 5,370 5,645

500 500 -
61,000 61,000 70,480
34,550 34,550 10,426
89,623 89,623 101,985
6,000 6,000 392
5,730 5,730 5,671
7,500 7,500 8,567
500 500 1,079
7,000 7,000 5,148
4,000 4,000 1,313
17,500 17,500 34,710
315,933 315,933 326,553
11,697,628 12,017,628 11,944,339
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended Aprit 30, 2006

Public Works
Engineering
Salaries
Employer Contribution - IMRF

Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare

Materials and Supplies
Telephone

Maintenance - Vehicles
Maintenance - Other Equipment
Insurance

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

Office Supplies
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues
Technical Services

Technology Equipment and Replacement Fees

Vehicle Replacement Fees

Highways and Bridges
Salaries - Administration
Salaries - Clerical
Salaries - Maintenance
Employer Contribution - IMRF

Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare

Materials and Supplies
Streetlights - Energy

Streetlights - Maintenance
Maintenance - Buildings
Maintenance - Roadway Medians
Maintenance - Motor Equipment Fees
Maintenance - Other Equipment
Maintenance - Streets and Alleys
Maintenance - Sidewalks
Maintenance - Storm Sewers
Maintenance - Signs

Budget

Original Final Actual
b 267,470 267,470 262,711
24,150 24,150 24,123
20,460 20,460 19,383
2,400 2,400 1,521
4.900 4,900 3,443
7,400 7,400 10,000
700 700 1,556
58,500 58,500 58,525
5,100 5,100 5,826
6,200 6,200 5,624
600 600 990
200 200 446
6,700 6,700 6,700
5,500 5,500 5,500
410,280 410,280 406,348
94,625 94,625 94,781
13,540 13,540 13,545
358,970 358,970 334,958
42,315 42,315 42,316
35,945 35,945 32,781
18,000 18,000 13,684
84,960 84,960 99,137
56,000 56,000 101,259
10,500 10,500 9,193
6,200 6,200 5,704
113,000 128,000 130,000
1,800 1,800 2,843
80,500 80,500 59,816
40,000 40,000 39,592
24,000 24,000 16,294
14,000 14,000 12,906
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended April 30, 2006

Public Works - Continued
Highways and Bridges - Continued
Insurance
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency
Maintenance Radios
Office Supplies
Refuse Disposal
Equipment Rental
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues
Technical Services
Traffic Signal Maintenance
Uniforms
Technology Equipment and Replacement Fees
Vehicle Replacement Fees
Miscellaneous

Snow Removal and Ice Control
Salaries - Administration
Salaries - Maintenance
Employer Contribution - IMRF
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare
Materials and Supplies
Maintenance - Other Equipment
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency
Contractual Service
Miscellaneous

Concord/Interlaken Special Service Area
Maintenance of Retention Pond
Landscaping
Miscellaneous

Budget

Original Final Actual
$ 157,000 157,000 154,246
43,600 73,600 59,336

1,000 1,000 -
- - 323
4,000 4,000 3,592
7,000 7,000 5,841
400 400 378
1,450 1,450 1,873
38,500 38,500 37,968
6,600 6,600 6,373
24,000 24,000 24,000
124,680 124,680 124,680
1,000 1,060 180
1,403,585 1,448,585 1,427,599
16,850 16,850 16,898
116,845 116,845 107,025
11,840 11,840 10,792
10,225 10,225 8,361
71,700 71,700 67,179
7,500 7,500 3,185
5,500 5,500 6,283
5,000 5,000 1,521
1,000 1,060 722
246,460 246,460 221,966
4,500 4,500 5,273
16,000 16,000 5,040

8,000 8,000 -
28,500 28,500 10,313
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended April 30, 2006

Public Works - Continued
Timber Creek Special Service Arca
Maintenance of Retention Pond
Landscaping
Miscellaneous

Total Public Works

Parks and Recreation
Parks
Salaries - Full Time
Salaries - Part Time
Employer Contribution - IMRF

Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare

Contractual Services

Materials and Supplies
Electricity

Norih Shore Gas

Telephone

Gasoline and Oil

Maintenance - Building
Maintenance - Grounds
Maintenance - Motor Vehicles
Maintenance - Other Equipment
Maintenance - Roads and Parking Lots
Insurance

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

Office Supplies

Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues

Tree Surgery and Spraying
Nursery Stock and Trees
Equipment Rental
Maintenance Radios

Budget

Original Final Actual
$ 3,000 3,000 2,120
14,000 14,000 15,573

4,000 4,000 -
21,000 21,000 17,693
2,109,825 2,154,825 2,083,919
612,925 612,925 623,770
46,070 46,070 46,828
56,390 56,390 58,886
50,415 50,415 50,652
21,070 21,070 15,536
21,320 21,320 13,107
6,000 6,000 6,643
2,500 2,500 2,042
6,000 6,000 5,494
1,760 1,700 2,106
14,150 14,150 16,598
31,500 31,500 39,913
33,000 33,000 38,000
15,115 15,115 24,816
2,500 2,500 295
156,605 156,605 158,189
22,000 22,000 28,542
300 300 227
890 890 915
28,215 28,215 19,741
21,000 21,000 19,701
600 600 704

200 200 -
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended April 30,2006

Parks and Recreation - Continued
Parks - Continued
Unemployment Benefits
Liniforim

Technology Equipment and Replacement Fees

Vehicle Replacement Fees
Miscelianeous

Recreation
Salaries - Administrative Staff
Salaries - Tot Programs
Salaries - Youth/Teen Programs
Salaries - Special/Cultural Events
Employer Contribution - IMRF

Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare

Supplies and Expenses - Tot Programs
Supplies and Expenses - Youth Programs
Electricity

North Shore Gas

Telephone

Maintenance - Motor Vehicles
Maintenance - Building

independent Contractor

Cultural Arts Expenses

[nsurance

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

Seasonal Brochures

Office Supplies

Family Trips

Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues

Supplies and Expenses - Special Event Family
Supplies and Expenses - Special Event Youth

Credit Card Bank Fee
Photoprocessing

Budget

Original Final Actual
$ 5,025 5,025 4,021
7,910 7,910 7,626
24,400 24,400 24,400
30,000 30,000 30,0600
500 500 1,985
1,218,300 1,218,300 1,240,737
228,360 228,360 175,664
71,585 71,585 94,910
115,020 115,020 109,982
118,310 118,310 79,836
19,780 19,780 19,106
40,800 40,800 34,222
15,780 15,780 9,614
29,000 29,000 28,773
30,000 30,000 32,723
4,500 4,500 2,612
9,000 9,000 9,763
2,500 2,500 2,500
29,000 29,000 33,729
141,375 141,375 192,591
36,900 36,900 19,115
43,810 43,810 35,711
20,000 20,000 20,916
38,000 38,000 31,731
10,300 10,300 9,244

850 850 -
1,630 1,630 573
5,400 5,400 3,215
4,800 4,800 4,680
45,000 45,000 39,802
3,095 3,095 4,242
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Budgel
Original Final Actual
Parks and Recreation - Continued
Recreation - Continued
Supplies and Expenses - Teen Program $ 13,075 13,075 7,663
Refunds - - (140)
Technology Equipment and Replacement Fees 24,400 24,400 24,400
Vehicle Replacement Fees 5,000 5,000 5,000
Miscellaneous 2,460 2,400 2,716
1,109,670 1,109,670 1,034,833
Libertyville Golf Course
Salaries - Administration 17,625 17,625 1,608
Salaries - Pro Shop 25,750 25,750 22,492
Salaries - Maintenance 62,425 62,425 63,174
Employer Contribution - IMRF ' 5,530 5,530 4,196
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare 8,095 8,095 6,706
Materials and Supplies 1,050 1,050 652
Electricity 2,000 2,000 -
North Shore Gas - - 6
Telephone 2,000 2,600 2,869
Maintenance - Building 2,800 2,800 1,138
Maintenance - Grounds 16,600 16,600 10,816
Maintenance - Motor Vehicles - - 300
Maintenance - Other Equipment 8,620 8,620 4,164
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency 11,000 11,000 11,421
Publicity 2,700 2,700 4,112
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues 1,050 1,050 810
Golf Course Supplies 1,000 1,000 372
Special Events 6,100 6,100 2,661
Pro Shop Merchandise 1,150 1,150 -
Unemployment Insurance 6,490 6,490 3,595
Uniform 400 400 -
Capital Outlay 4,500 4,500 4,525
Vehicle Replacement Fees 20,000 20,000 20,000
Miscellaneous 500 500 £33
207,385 207,385 165,750
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended April 30, 2006

Parks and Recreation - Continued
Swimming Pool
Salaries - Administration
Salaries - Concessions
Salaries - Public Swim
Salaries - Swim Lessons
Employer Contribution - IMRF

Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare

Supplies - Swim Lessons
Materials and Supplies

Supplies - Maintenance
Electricity

North Shore Gas

Telephone

Maintenance - Building
Maintenance - Office Equipment
Maintenance - Pools

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

Office Supplies

Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues

Equipment Rental
Concession Expense
Special Events

Birthday Parties

Printing and Photocopying
Uniforms

Capital Outlay
Miscellaneous

Total Culture and Recreation

Total Expenditures

Budget

Original Final Actual
$ 33,760 33,760 28,946
17,040 17,040 9,355
113,630 113,630 103,349
68,765 68,765 64,348
2,800 2,800 1,285
17,850 17,850 15,754
2,150 2,150 2,112
3,600 3,600 3,084
500 500 180
20,000 20,000 18,604
35,000 35,000 25,506
- - 410
9,300 9,300 9,893

250 250 -
23,275 23,275 24,095
11,000 11,000 11,425
500 500 429
1,530 1,530 703
1,015 1,015 995
17,500 17,500 17,293
2,730 2,730 2,436
800 800 78
900 900 1,324
4,670 4,670 3,871
1,700 1,700 2,295
2,500 2,500 2,566
392,765 392,765 350,936
2,928,120 2,928,120 2,792,256
20,058,558 20,618,558 20,173,842
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Budget
Original Final Actual
Revenues
Taxes
Property Taxes $ 220,000 220,000 228,520
Intergovernmental
Sales Tax 819,460 819,460 819,460
Interest
Investment Income 500 500 13,688
Total Revenues 1,039,960 1,039,960 1,061,668
Expenditures
Debt Service
Principal Retirement 1,190,000 1,190,000 1,190,000
Interest 279,545 279,545 279,272
Fiscal Charges 5,100 5,100 3,600
Total Expenditures 1,474,645 1,474,645 1,472,872
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (434,685) (434,685) (411,204)
Other Financing Sources
Transfers In 432,830 432,830 432,850
Net Change in Fund Balance (1,855) (1,855) 21,646
Fund Balance - Beginning 923,409
Fund Balance - Ending
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Capital Improvement - Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Budget
Original Final Actual
Revenues
Licenses and Permits
Park Impact Fees § 299,510 269,510 459,533
Vehicle Licenses 255,000 255,000 " 351,944
Intergovernmental
Federa! Reimbursement 110,000 110,000 59,968
Motor Fuel Tax Allotments 830,000 830,000 609,339
Charges for Services
Telecommunication Revenue - - 64,041
Interest 6,000 6,000 20,521
Miscellaneous 15,500 15,500 19,099
Total Revenues 1,516,010 1,516,010 1,585,045
Expenditures
Capital Outlay 1,740,300 2,070,300 1,865,757
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (224,290) (554,290) (280,712)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 45,000 45,000 55,000
Transfers Out (81,610) (81,610) (81,610)
(36,610) (36,610) (26,610)
Net Change in Fund Balance (260,900) (590,900) (307,322)
Fund Balance - Beginning 1,292,885
Fund Balance - Ending 085,563

et e ittt
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Capital Improvement ~ Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Budget
Original Final Actual
Capital Outlay

Asphalt Resurfacing $ 600,000 600,000 564,641
Village Hall 6,000 6,000 6,788

Civic Center 10,000 10,000 -
Fire Stations 10,000 10,000 12,498
Schertz Municipal Building 25,000 25,000 3,567
Park Building 11,000 11,000 13,180
Park Improvement 444,300 604,300 605,299
Annual Road Improvement Program 280,000 280,000 318,439
Storm Sewer hnprovements 15,000 15,000 20,033

Streetlight Replacement 15,000 15,000 -
Engineering Fourth/Garfield 198,000 198,000 121,363
Lake Street Bridge Replacement 55,000 55,000 26,864

Sidewalks and Bike Paths 16,000 16,000 -
Miscellaneous 55,000 225,000 173,085
Total Expenditures 1,740,300 2,070,300 1,865,757
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Tax Increment Financing Construction - Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Revenues
Taxes
Property Tax
Intergovernmental
Sales Tax
Interest
Miscellaneous
Other
Total Revenues

Expenditures

Economic Development
Maintenance Strectscafe
Intergovernmental Risk Managemerit Agency
Consulting Services
Storm Sewer Improvements
Landscape/Streetscape
Parking Improvements
Sidewalk Replacement
Land Acquisition
Loan Pools
Miscellaneous

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of Land
Transfers Out

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Budget

Original Final Actual
$ 1,525,000 1,525,000 1,668,638
131,000 131,000 147,176
10,000 10,000 47,221
- - 1,967
1,666,000 1,666,000 1,865,002
10,000 10,000 25,537
45,000 45,000 51,404
30,000 30,000 16,120

30,000 30,000 -
12,250 12,250 9,167

35,000 35,000 -
5,000 5,000 10,114
200,000 200,000 1,800
1,100 1,100 41
3,000 3,000 10,108
371,350 371,350 124,291
1,294,650 1,294,650 1,740,711

1,600,000 1,600,000 -

(219,120) (222,550) (222,550)
1,380,880 1,377,450 (222,550)

2,675,530 2,672,100 1,518,161
380,723
1,898,884
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Commuter Parking - Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2006
Budget
Original Final Actual
Revenues
Charges for Services
Permit Fees $ 135,000 135,000 144,376
Daily Fees 137,600 137,600 160,300
Interest - - 15,713
Miscellaneous - - 25
Total Revenues 272,600 272,600 320,420
Expenditures
General Government 179,100 179,100 146,711
Net Change in Fund Balance 93,500 93,500 173,709
Fund Balance - Beginning 552,921
Fund Balance - Ending

108

726,630



VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Commuter Parking - Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2006

General Government
Salaries
Employer Contribution - IMRF
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare
Materials and Supplies
Electricity
Maintenance - Grounds
insurance
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency
Rental of Land
Refunds
Major Repairs
Milwaukee Station Improvements
North Central Station Improvements
Miscellaneous

Total Expenditures
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Budget

Original Final Actual
$ 49130 49,130 51310
4,520 4,520 4,650
3,750 3,750 3,742
5,000 5,000 4,234
10,000 10,000 4,790
45,000 45,000 35,763
15,000 15,000 15,145
10,000 10,000 11,423
9,700 9,700 10,050
1,500 1,500 1,590

10,000 10,000 -

10,000 10,000 -

500 500 -
5,000 5,000 4,014
179,100 179,100 146,711




VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Waterworks and Sewerage - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Asscts -

Year Ended April 30, 2006

Budget and Actual

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services
Water Sales
Sewer Service Charges
Damage to Village Property
Meters and Readouts
Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Operations
Water Operations
Sewer Operations
Wastewater Treatment Plant
Water and Sewer Capital Improvements
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest Income

Connection Fees

Property Tax

Other Income

Interest and Fiscal Charges
Income (Loss) Before Transfers
Transfers Out
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning as Restated

Net Assets - Ending

Original Finai Actual
3,780,500 3,780,500 4,281,269
2,231,000 2,231,000 2,290,799
1,000 1,000 3,065
25,000 25,000 25,755
5,000 5,000 6,904
6,042,500 6,042,500 6,607,792
3,381,315 3,381,315 3,608,871
730,890 730,890 741,258
992,005 992,005 1,006,125
1,360,600 1,360,600 719,233
- - 1,071,545
6,464,810 6,464,810 7,147,032
(422,310) (422,310) (539,240)
130,000 130,000 89,180
202,000 202,000 303,656
26,780 26,780 26,784
- - 8,000
(167,750) (167,750) (156,166)
191,030 191,030 271,454
(231,280) (231,280} (267,786)
(103,690) (103,690} (103,690)
(334,970) (334,970) (371,476)
25,174,443
24,802,967
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Waterworks and Sewerage - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Operating Expenses - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Budget
Original Final Actual
Operations
Water Operations
Salaries - Administrative $ 152,125 152,125 157,270
Salaries - Clerical 140,800 140,800 143,420
Salaries - Engineering 73,115 73,115 75,720
Satlaries - Maintenance 324,410 324,410 345,695
Employer Contribution - IMRF 62,540 62,540 63,300
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare 50,160 50,160 49 8838
Materials and Supplies 8,500 8,500 6,391
Electricity 21,500 21,500 27,336
North Shore Gas 6,500 6,500 0,560
Telephone 9,500 9,500 8,452
Maintenance - Building and Grounds 5,600 5,600 7,901
Maintenance - Motor Vehicles 17,500 17,500 17,500
Maintenance - Other Equipment 6,000 6,000 6,905
Maintenance - Water Lines 20,000 20,000 30,538
Insurance : 56,700 56,700 537,583
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency 24,200 24,200 20,204
Postage 12,800 12,800 9.836
Office Supplies 1,500 1,500 1,267
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues 2,300 2,300 3,342
Technical Services 28,400 28,400 34,100
Meters - New Construction 30,000 30,000 43,303
Credit Card Fees - - 660
Uniforms 3,810 3,810 4,013
Bad Debt Expense 500 500 45,792
Technology Equipment and Replacement 25,000 25,000 25,000
Vehicle Replacement Fees 39,520 36,520 39,520
Purchase of Water - CLCIAWA 2,257,585 2,257,585 2,375,845
Miscellaneous 750 750 1,530
3,381,315 3,381,315 3,608,871
Sewer Operations

Salaries - Administrative 106,890 106,890 108,911
Salaries - Engineering - 73,115 73,115 77,540
Salaries - Maintenance 235,925 235,925 230,401
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Waterworks and Sewerage - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Operating Expenses - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Budget
Original Final Actual
Operations - Continued
Sewer Operations - Continued

Employer Contribution - IMRF $ 37,600 37,600 37,563
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare 30,870 30,870 29,678
Materials and Supplies 3,500 3,500 2,793
County Sewer Service 43,000 43,000 40,441
Telephone - - 574
Maintenance - Motor Equipment 13,350 13,350 13,350
Maintenance - Lift Stations 44 800 44,800 47,291
Maintenance - Sewer Lines 31,500 31,500 30,204
Insurance 35,700 35,700 35,377
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency 24,000 24,000 21,320
Postage 4,500 4,500 7,606
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues 200 200 175
Technical Services 1,650 1,650 1,128
Uniforms 1,390 1,390 1,678
Amortization Schedule Expense - - 11,525
Technology Equipment and Replacement 25,000 25,000 25,000
Vehicle Replacement Fees 17,700 17,700 17,700
Miscellaneous 200 200 1,003

730,890 730,890 741,258

Wastewater Treatment Plant

Salaries - Administrative 31,050 31,050 32,736
Salaries - Operators 302,240 302,240 286,886
Employer Contribution ~ IMRF 30,665 30,665 29,316
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare 24 935 24,935 22,852
Materials and Supplies 23,000 23,000 24,903
Chemicals 13,900 13,900 16,225
Electricity 226,000 226,000 209,570
North Shore Gas 28,050 28,050 42,951
Telephone 5,100 5,100 4,945
Maintenance - Building and Grounds 18,300 18,300 16,869
Maintenance - Motor Equipment 5,165 5,165 5,165
Maintenance - Other Equipment 32,350 32,350 46,091
Sludge Removal 113,320 113,320 141,451
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTY VILLE, ILLINOIS
Waterworks and Sewerage - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Operating Expenses - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Budget
Original Final Actual
Operations - Continued
Wastewater Treatment Plant - Continued
Refuse Disposal $ 5,010 5,010 5,373
Insurance 57,000 57,000 52,620
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency 24,200 24,200 20,726
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues 200 200 628
Technical Services 25,300 25,300 20,788
Uniforms 3,550 3,550 2,737
Technology Equipment and Replacement 10,000 10,000 10,000
Vehicle Replacement Fees 12,170 12,170 12,170
Miscellaneous 500 500 1,063
992,005 992,005 1,006,125
Water and Sewer Capital Improvements
Sanitary Sewer Improvements 20,000 20,000 -
Watermain Replacements 20,000 20,000 6,490
WWTP Improvements 355,000 355,000 52,236
Butterfield Road Watermain Loop 480,000 480,000 436,699
Sanitary Sewer Repairs 220,000 220,000 205,207
Dawes Lift Station Generator 22,000 22,000 6,584
Water and Sewer River Crossing 10,000 10,000 41,351
Butterfield Corridor Replacement 45,000 45,000 43,852
SCADA Upgrades 83,000 83,000 42,630
Replacement Meters 25,600 25,600 37,575
Hydrants, Valves, Miscellaneous 25,000 25,000 18,100
4th Avenue Watermain - - 5,000
Water Storage Tank Rehabilitation 5,000 5,000 7,341
Miscellaneous 50,000 50,000 18,524
1,360,600 1,360,600 921,589
Less Nonoperating Items
Fixed Assets Capitalized - - (202,356)
1,360,600 1,360,600 719,233

: Total Operations 6,464,810 6,464,810 6,075,487
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Waterworks and Sewerage - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Capital Assets and Depreciation

Year Ended April 30, 2006

Iand and Improvements
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Waterworks System
Sewerage System

Total Fixed Assets

Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Waterworks System
Sewerage System

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Fixed Assets (Net of
Accumulated Depreciation)

Capital Assets

Beginning
Balances Retirements/ Balances
as Restated Additions TFransfers Ending
$ 2,272,080 - - 2,272,080
14,016,621 - - 14,016,621
1,684,716 - - 1,684,716
12,898,332 32,516 - 12,930,848
13,462,153 169,840 - 13,631,993
44,333,902 202,356 - 44,536,258
Accumuiated Depreciation
Beginning
Balances Retirements/ Balances
as Restated Additions Transfers Ending
6,095,868 335,004 - 6,430,872
1,206,317 72,471 - 1,278,788
5,523,720 323,271 - 5,846,991
6,067,554 340,799 - 6,408,353
18,893,459 1,071,545 - 19,965,004
25,440,443 24,571,254
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Libertyville Sports Complex - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30,2000
Budget
Original Final Actual
Operating Revenues
Charges for Services
Indoor Sports Center $ 3,332,170 3,244,865 2,471,012
Golf Learning Center 689,680 644,442 589,304
Family Entertainment Center 277,060 235,630 163,509
Total Operating Revenues 4,298,910 4,124,937 3,223,825
Operating Expenses
Operations
Indoor Sports Center 1,938,980 1,938,980 1,806,764
Golf Learning Center 398,310 398,310 447,822
Family Entertainment Center 93,920 03,920 93,027
Depreciation - - 477,628
Total Operating Expenses 2,431,210 2,431,210 2,785,24)
Operating Income 1,867,700 1,693,727 438,584
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest Income - - 1,147
Interest and Fiscal Charges (1,071,501) (1,691,410) (1,202,208)
(1,071,501) (1,691,410) (1,201,061)
Change in Net Assets 796,199 2,317 (762,477)
Net Assets - Beginning as Restated {5,180,959)
Net Assets - Ending (5,943,436)
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Libertyville Sports Complex - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Operating Expenses - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Budget
Original Final Actual
Operations
Indoor Sports Center

Salaries - Administrative $ 157,015 157,015 150,724
Salaries - Maintenance 111,875 111,875 107,665
Salaries - Filness 239 885 239,885 236,479
Salaries - Conference/Front Desk/Parties 207,675 207,675 165,215
Salaries - Programs 140,000 140,000 93,576
Employer Contribution - IMRF 35,110 35,110 36,778
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare 65,040 65,040 57,019
Materials and Supplies 25,0060 25,000 23,304
Contracted Services 165,680 165,680 122,073
Electricity 170,000 170,000 159,531
North Shore Gas 36,000 36,000 30,335
Telephone 7,000 7,000 4,037
Maintenance - Building ' 169,500 169,500 218,830
Maintenance - Independent Contractors 27,250 27,250 37,578
Maintenance - Grounds 10,000 10,000 9,970
Materials and Supplies - Soccer - - 51
Corporate Contracted Services 130,000 130,000 65,909
Insurance 67,200 67,200 59,344
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency 35,000 35,000 48,136
Office Supplies 3,000 3,000 2,234
Materials and Supplies - Adult Athletic Programs 15,000 15,000 3,284
Travel. Training, Subscriptions and Dues 300 500 506
Materials and Supplies - Conference Rooms 4,070 4,070 1,613
Materials and Supplies - Fitness 9,500 9,500 10,010
Credit Card Bank Fee 25,600 25,600 25,907
Club Volleyball - - 702
Photoprocessing 7.230 7,230 9,737
Refunds - - (30)
Climbing Wall/Front Desk 6,000 6,000 2,512
Uniforms - - 213
Fitness Equipment Lease 56,850 56,850 1,438
Cash Short/Over - - 487
Technology Equipment & Replacement 12,000 12,000 12,000
Capital Outlays - - 100,000
Miscellaneous - - 597

1,938,980 1,938,980 1,806,764
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Libertyvilie Sports Complex - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Operating Expenses - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Budget
Original Final Actual
Operations - Continued
Golf Learning Center
Salaries - Administrative $ 27,390 27,390 39,159
Salaries - Maintenance 68,925 68,925 69,251
Salaries - Pro Shop 76,000 70,000 64,838
Salaries - Instructors 38,800 38,800 146
Salaries - Range Attendants - - (1,595)
Employer Contribution - IMRF 11,930 11,930 7,547
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare 15,690 15,690 12,731
Materials and Supplies 4,500 4,500 2,812
Electricity 10,000 10,000 15,843
North Shore Gas 8,000 8,000 13,382
Telephone 3,500 3,500 2,066
Maintenance - Building 4,100 4,100 185
Maintenance - Grounds 18,215 18,215 13,882
Maintenance - Motor Vehicle Fees - - 890
Maintenance - Other Equipment 6,000 6,000 6,450
Insurance 13,760 13,760 11,029
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency 15,000 15,000 17,135
Office Supplies 1,000 1,000 413
Travel. Training, Subscriptions and Dues 500 800 100
Materials and Supplies - Pro Shop 34,050 34,050 21,027
Materials and Supplies - Lessons 3,350 3,350 52,738
Pro Shop Merchandise ' 40,000 40,000 57,082
Photoprocessing 1,700 1,700 841
Refunds - - (130)
Uniforms 1,100 1,100 -
Miscellaneous 500 500 -
398,310 398,310 407,822
Family Entertainment Center
Salaries - Administrative 3,250 3,250 2,301
Salaries - Maintenance 25,005 25,005 24,882
Salaries - Attendants 30,000 30,000 28,737
Employer Contribution - IMRF 2,255 2,255 3,322
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare 4.460 4,460 4,179
Materials and Supplies 1,500 1,500 645
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Libertyville Sports Complex - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Operating Expenses - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Budget
Original Finai Actual
Operations - Continued
Family Entertainment Center - Continued
Electricity 3 5,000 5,000 7,988
North Shore Gas 4,500 4,500 3,451
Telephone ‘ 1,500 1,500 1,377
Maintenance - Building 3,900 3,900 (177)
Maintepance - Grounds 2,000 2,000 2,551
Maintenance - Other Equipment - - 165
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency 8,000 8,000 9,139
Office Supplies 200 200 294
Materials and Supplies - Mini Golf 950 950 1,076
Materials and Supplies - Batting Cages 1,000 1,000 449
Photoprocessing 100 100 648
Uniforms 300 300 -
Miscelianeous - - 2,000
93,920 93,920 93,027
Total Operating Expenses 2,431,210 2,431,210 2,307,613
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Libertyville Sports Complex - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Capital Assets and Depreciation

Year Ended April 30, 2006

Land
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Total Fixed Assets

Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Fixed Assets (Net of
Accumulated Depreciation)

Capital Assets

Beginning
Balances Retirements/ Balances
as Restated Additions Transfers Ending
4,771,168 - - 4,771,168
17,447,100 - - 17,447,100
448,436 - - 448,436
22,666,704 - - 22,666,704
Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning
Balances Retirements/ Balances
as Restated Additions Transfers Ending
649,177 432,784 - 1,081,961
67,265 44,844 - 112,109
716,442 477,628 - 1,194,070
21,950,262
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Combining Schedule of Net Assets - Internal Service Funds

April 30, 2006
Vehicle Technology
Maintenance Equipment
and and
Replacement Replacement
ASSETS Service Service Total
Current Assets
Cash and Investments $ 820,126 51,645 871,771
Receivables - Net of Allowances
Accounts 1,958 64,641 66,599
Accrued Interest 2,282 - 2,282
Inventory 28,582 - 28,582
852,948 116,286 969,234
Capital Assets
Machinery and Equipment 5,657,251 - 5,057,251
Accumulated Depreciation (2,826,984) - (2,826,984)
2,830,267 - 2,830,267
Total Assets 3,083,215 116,286 3,799,501
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 52,225 10,530 62,755
Accrued Payroll 12,155 3,787 15,942
Deferred Revenues - 468,000 468,000
Compensated Absences Payable 3,982 7,681 11,663
Installment Contracts Payable 160,820 6,698 167,518
229,182 496,696 725,878
Noncurrent ELiabilities
Compensated Absences Payable 15,928 30,723 46,651
Installment Contracts Payable 458,554 - 458,554
474,482 30,723 505,205
Total Liabilities 703,664 527,419 1,231,083
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets - Net
of Related Debt 2,210,893 (6,698) 2,204,195
Unrestricted 768,658 (404,435) 364,223
Total Net Assets 2,979,551 (411,133) 2,568,418
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINO1S

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Internal Service Funds
Year Ended April 30,2006

Operating Revenues
Interfund Services

Operating Expenses

Operations

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest Income

Other Income

Interest and Fiscal Charges
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning as Restated

Net Assets - Ending

Vehicle Technology
Maintenance Equipment
and and
Replacement Replacement
Service Service Total
$ 1,184,340 428,041 1,612,381
901,946 345,186 1,247,132
348,581 - 348,581
1,250,527 345,186 1,595,713
(66,187) 82,855 16,668
9,033 133 9,166
35,731 48,201 83,932
(15,681) - (15,681)
29,083 48,334 77,417
(37,104) 131,189 94,085
3,016,055 (542,322) 2,474,333
2,979,551 (411,133) 2,568,418
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Combining Schedule of Cash Flows - Internal Service Funds

Year Ended April 30, 2006

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Interfund Services
Payments to Employees
Payments to Suppliers

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of Capital Assets
Issuance of Capital Debt
Interest on Capital Debt
Principal on Capital Debt

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Received

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Other Income
(Increase) Decrease in Current Assets
Increase (Decrease) in Current Liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
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Vehicle Technology
Maintenance Equipment
and and
Replacement Replacement
Service Service Total
$ 1,224,938 412,127 1,637,065
(247,359) (114,439) (361,798)
(623,684) (233,169) (856,853)
353,895 64,519 418,414
(527,407) - (527,407)
450,000 - 450,000
(15,681} - (15,681)
(171,895) (13,007) (184,902)
(264,983) (13,007) (277,990)
9,033 133 9,166
97,945 51,645 149,590
722,181 - 722,181
820,126 51,645 871,771
(66,187) 82,855 16,668
348,581 - 348,581
35,731 48,201 83,932
4,867 (64,115) (59,248)
30,903 (2,422) 28,481
353,895 64,519 418,414




VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Vehicle Maintenance and Replacement Service - Internal Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended April 30, 2006

Operating Revenues
Interfund Services

Operating Expenses
Operations
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest Income
Other Income
Principal Lease Payments
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning as Restated

Net Assets - Ending

Original Final Actual
$ 1,044,200 1,044,200 1,184,340
1,011,092 1,011,092 901,946

- - 348,581

1,011,092 1,011,092 1,250,527
33,108 33,108 (66,187)
10,000 10,000 9,033

5,000 5,000 35,731
(188,710) (188,710) -

" . (15,681)
(173,710) (173,710) 29,083
(140,602) (140,602) (37,104)

3,016,655
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Vehicle Maintenance and Replacement Service - Internal Service Fund

Schedule of Operating Expenses - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 20006

Operations
Salaries - Administration
Salaries - Clerical
Salaries - Maintenance
Employer Contribution - IMRF
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare
Shop Supplies
Tools
Telephone
Gasoline and Oil
Maintenance Shop Facilities
Vehicle Washing
Non-Stocked Vehicle Parts
Maintenance Other Equipment
Insurance

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

Travel, Training and Dues
Contractual Repair Services
Uniforms

License, Title and Inspection Fees
Transfer Vehicle Replacement
Vehicle Replacement Costs

Fire Contractual Repairs

Police Contractual Repairs
Accident Damage Expense
Miscellaneous

Less Nonoperating Items
Fixed Assets Capitalized

Total Operations

Original Final Actual
h 84,930 84,930 77,887
4,514 4,514 4,666
183,423 183,423 164,806
25,100 25,100 23,418
20,875 20,875 18,187
5,500 5,500 5,622
3,560 3,500 3,256

550 550 -
160,000 160,000 206,210
1,000 1,000 451
5,400 5,400 2,567
106,800 106,800 83,350
7,500 7,500 5,581
60,000 60,000 55,684
12,500 12,500 15,879
400 400 325
15,000 15,000 15,258
2,250 2,250 1,934
2,600 2,600 1,947

7,250 7,250 -
252,000 252,000 239,392
35,000 35,000 30,488
4,000 4,000 3,455
10,060 10,000 17,345
1,000 1,600 1,645
1,011,092 1,011,092 979,353

- - (77,407)

1,011,092 1,011,092 901,946
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Vehicle Maintenance and Replacement Service - Internal Service Fund

Schedule of Capital Assets and Depreciation

Year Ended April 30, 2006

Machinery and Equipment

Machinery and Equipment

Total Fixed Assets (Net of
Accumulated Depreciation)

Capital Assets

Beginning
Balances Retirements/ Balances
as Restated Additions Transfers Ending
$ 5,157,089 527,407 27,245 5,657,251
Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning
Balances Retirements/ Balances
as Restated Additions Transfers Ending
2,505,648 348,581 27,245 2,826,984
2,651,441 2,830,267
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
"Technology Equipment and Replacement Service - Internal Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Budget
Original Final Actual

Operating Revenues

Interfund Services $ 363,400 363,400 428,041
Operating Expenses

Operations 337,385 337,385 345,186
Operating Income 26,015 26,015 82,855
Nonoperating Revenues

Interest Income 100 100 133

Other Income 3,600 3,600 48,201

3,700 3,700 48,334

Change in Net Assets 29715 29,715 131,189
Net Assets - Beginning as Restated (542,322)
Net Assets - Ending (411,133)
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Technology Equipment Replacement - Internal Service Fund

Schedule of Operating Expenses - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2006

Budget
Original Final Actual
Operations

Salaries Administration $ 75,100 75,100 114,439
Employer Contribution - IMRY 6,910 6,910 7,105
Employer Contribution - FICA & Medicare 5,750 5,750 5,802
Computer Supplies 12,000 12,000 20,179
Wireless Service 30,000 30,000 21,671
Hardware Maintenance 4,000 4,000 6,727
Internet Access 14,900 14,900 14,377
Insurance 100 100 99
Travel, Training, Subscriptions and Dues 500 500 740
Consulting Services 8,000 8,000 3,535
Software, Licensing and Updates 52,475 52,475 54,546
Web Page Services 15,000 15,000 16,249
Computer Leases 18,850 18,850 589
Capital Outlay 92,800 92,800 78,849
Miscellaneous 1,000 1,000 279

Total Operations 337,385 337,385 345,180
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Pension Trust Funds

Combining Schedule of Net Plan Assets

April 30, 2006
Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension Totals
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents b 425,796 1,408,470 1,834,266
Investments
Statc and Local Obligations 538,076 - 338,076
U.S. Government and Agency Obligations 7,497,621 5,865,590 13,363,211
Mutual Funds 8,115,025 6,804,729 14,919,754
Receivabies - Accrued Interest 108,906 80,422 189,328
Total Assets 16,685,424 14,159 211 30,844,635
Liabilities
Accounts Payable : - 12,608 12,608
Net Plan Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits
(A schedule of funding progress is presented
following the notes to the financial statements) 16,685,424 14,146,603 30.832.027
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTY VILLE, ILLINOIS

Pension Trust Funds

Combining Schedule of Changes in Net Plan Assets

Year Ended April 30, 2006

Additions
Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Plan Members
Total Contributions

Investment Income
Interest Earned
Net Change in Fair Value

Less Investment Expenses

Total Additions

Deductions
Admmistration
Benefits and Refunds
Benefits
Refunds
Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets

Net Pian Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits

Beginning

Ending

Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension Totals
b 724,464 533,880 1,258 344
288,540 216,944 505484
1,013,004 750,824 1,763,828
746,975 469 458 1,216,433
752,633 1,053,174 1,805,807
1,499,608 1,522,632 3,022,240
(32,846) (27.,647) (60.493)
1,466,762 1,494 985 2,961,747
2,479 766 2,245,809 4,725,575
25,459 14,523 39 982
1,003,781 533,116 1,536,897
33,191 - 33,191
1,062 431 347,639 1,610,070
1,417,335 1,698,170 3,115,505
15,268,089 12,448 433 27,716,522
16,685,424 14.146.603 30,832,027
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Police Pension - Pension Trust Fund

Schedule of Changes in Net Plan Assets - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2006

Additions
Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Plan Members
Total Contributions

Investment Income
Interest Earned
Net Change in Fair Value

Less Investment Expenses
Net Investment Income
Total Additions

Deductions
Administration
Benefits and Refunds
Benefits
Refunds
Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets

Net Plan Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits

Beginning

Ending
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Budget
Original Final Actual

£ 719,400 719,400 724,464
295,970 295 970 288,540
1,015,370 - 1,015,370 1,013,004
650,000 650,000 746,975

- - 752,633
650,000 650,000 1,499,608
(31,000) (31,000) (32,846)
619,000 619,000 1,466,762
1.634 370 1,634,370 2,479,166
22,000 22,000 25,459
998,350 998,350 1,603,781

- - 33,191
1,020,350 1,020,350 1,062,431
614.020 614,020 1,417,335
15,268 089

16,685,424



VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Firefighters' Pension - Pension Trust Fund

Schedule of Changes in Net Plan Assets - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2006

Additions
Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Plan Members
Total Contributions

Investment Income
Interest Earned
Net Change in Fair Valuc

Less Investment Expenses
Net Investment Income

Total Additions

Deductions
Administration
Benefits and Refunds
Benefits
Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets

Net Plan Assets Held in Trus¢ for Pension Benefits

Beginning

Ending

Budget

Original Final Actual
$ 527,900 527,900 533,880
206,000 206,000 216,944
733,900 733,900 750,824
400,000 400,000 469,458
- - 1,053,174
400,000 400,000 1,522,632
(25,000) (25,600) (27,647)
375,000 375,000 1,494,985
1,108,900 1,108,900 2,245 809
7,000 7,000 14,523
458,750 568,750 533,116
465,750 575,750 547.639
643.150 533.150 1,698,170
12,448 433
14,146,603
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Long-Term Debt Requirements

General Obligation Sales Tax Alternative Revenue Bond Series of 1997

April 30, 2006

Date of Issue December 15, 1997

Date of Maturity December 15, 2017

Authorized Issue $1,000,000

Denomination of Bonds $5,000

Interest Rates 4.375% to 5.150%

Interest Dates June 15 and December 15

Principai Maturity Date December 15

Payable at American National Bank and Trust Company

Chicago, Illinois

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax
Levy Requirements Interest Due on
Year Principal Interest Totals June 15 Amount Dec. 15 Amount
2005 $ 45,000 34,583 79,583 20058 17,291 2005 17,292
20006 45,000 32,535 77,535 - 2006 16,267 2006 16,268
- 2007 50,000 30,465 80,465 2607 15,233 2007 15,232
2008 50,000 28,115 78,115 2008 14,057 2008 14,058
2009 55,000 25,715 80,715 2009 12,858 2009 12,857
2010 . 55,000 23,047 78,047 2010 11,523 2010 11,524
2011 60,000 20,353 80,353 2011 10,177 2011 10,176
2012 60,000 17,352 77,352 2012 8,676 2012 8,676
2013 65,000 14,353 79,353 2013 7,177 2013 7,176
2014 70,000 11,037 81,037 2014 3,519 2014 5,518
2015 70,000 7,468 77,468 2015 3,734 2015 3,734
2016 75,000 3,862 78,862 2016 1,931 2016 1,931

700,000 248,885 948,885 124,443 124,442
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Long-Term Debt Requirements

General Obligation Sales Tax Alternative Revenue Bond Series of 1998
April 30, 2006

Date of Issue November 15, 1998

Date of Maturity December 15, 2008

Authorized Issue $3,695,000

Denomination of Bonds $5,000

Interest Rates 3.60% t0 3.75%

Interest Dates June 15 and December 15

Principal Maturity Date December 15

Payable at American National Bank and Trust Company

Chicago, llinois

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax

Levy Requirements Interest Due on

Year Principal Interest Totals June 15 Amount Dec. 15 Amount
2005 3 405,000 46,652 451,652 2006 23,326 2006 23,326
2006 415,000 31,668 446,668 2007 15,834 2007 15,834
2007 435,000 16,313 451,313 2008 8,157 2008 8,156

1,255,000 94,633 1,349,633 47,317
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Long-Term Debt Requirements

General Obligation Limited Tax Bond Series of 2000

April 30, 2006

Date of Issue July 15, 2000

Date of Maturity December 15, 2019

Authorized Issue $1,800,000

Denomination of Bonds $5,000

Interest Rates 5.20% t0 5.70%

Interest Dates June 15 and December 15

Principal Matarity Date December 15

Payable at American National Bank and Trust Company

Chicago, Illinois

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax

Levy Requirements Interest Due on

Year Principal Interest Totals June 15 Amount Dec. 15 Amount

2005 $ 10,000 93,232 103,232 2005 46,616 2005 46,616
2006 15,000 92,708 107,708 20006 46,354 2006 46,354
2007 25,0060 91,920 116,920 2007 45,960 2007 45,960
2008 30,000 90,606 120,606 2008 45,303 2008 45,303
2009 35,000 89,032 124,032 2009 44516 2009 44,516
2010 140,000 87,194 227,194 2010 43,597 2010 43,597
2011 150,000 79,844 229,844 2011 39,922 2011 39,922
2012 155,000 71,970 226,970 2012 35,985 2012 35,985
2013 165,000 63,754 228,754 2013 31,877 2013 31,877
2014 175,000 54,844 229,844 2014 27,422 2014 27,422
2015 185,000 45,308 230,308 2015 22,654 2015 22,654
2016 195,000 35,040 230,040 2016 17,520 2016 17,520
2017 210,000 24,122 234,122 2017 12,061 2017 12,061
2018 215,000 12,256 227,256 2018 6,128 2018 6,128

1,705,000 931,830 2,636,830 465,915 465,915
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Long-Term Debt Requirements

General Obligation Refunding Bond Series of 2001

April 30, 2006

Date of issue October 23, 2001

Date of Maturity December 15, 2008

Authorized Issue $2.,600,000

Denomination of Bonds $5,000

Interest Rates 3.25% t0 3.75%

Interest Dates June t5 and December 15

Principal Maturity Date December 15

Payable at American National Bank and Trust Company

Chicago, IHinois

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax

Levy Requirements Interest Due on

Year Principal Interest Totals June 15 Amount Dec. 15 Amount
2005 $ 380,000 41,188 421,188 2005 20,594 2005 - 20,594
2006 390,000 28,838 418,838 2006 14,419 2006 14,419
2007 400,000 15,188 415,188 2007 7,594 2007 7,594

1,170,000 85,214 1,255,214 42,607 42,607
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Long-Term Debt Requirements

General Obligation Refunding Bond Series of 2003A

April 30, 200

6

Date of Issue

Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue
Denomination of Bonds

Interest Rates
Interest Dates

Principal Maturity Date

November 15, 2003
December 15, 2010
$665,000

$5,000

1.50% to 2.90%

June 15 and December 15
December 15

Payable at American National Bank and Trust Company
Chicago, Illinois
CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS
Tax

Levy Requirements Interest Due on
Year Principal Interest Totals June 15 Amount Dec. 15 Amount
2005 $ 105,000 11,042 116,642 2006 5,521 2006 5,521
2006 100,000 9,206 109,206 2007 4,603 2007 4,603
2007 115,000 7.206 122,206 2608 3,603 2008 3,603
2008 160,000 4,674 104,674 2009 2,337 2009 2,337
2009 75,000 2,174 77,174 2010 1,087 2010 1,087

495,000 34,302 529,302 17,151 17,151
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Long-Term Debt Requirements

General Obligation Refunding Bond Series of 2003B
April 30, 2006

Date of Issue

Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue
Denomination of Bonds

Interest Rates
Interest Dates

Principal Maturity Date

November 15, 2003
December 15, 2008
$1,360,000

$5,000

1.50% to 2.90%

June 15 and December 15
December 135

Payable at American National Bank and Trust Company
Chicago, lilinois
CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax

Levy Requirements Interest Due on

Year Principal Interest Totals June 15 Amount Dec. 15 Amount
2005 $ 270,000 16,494 286,494 2006 8,247 2006 8,247
20006 275,000 11,770 286,770 2007 5,885 2007 5,885
2007 285,000 6,270 291,270 2008 3,135 2008 3,135

830,000 34,534 864,534 17,267 17,267
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Long-Term Debt Requirements

General Obligation Alternate Revenue Bond Series of 2000

April 30, 2006
Date of Issue December 15, 2000
Date of Maturity December 5, 2020
Authorized Issue $5,000,000
Denomination of Bonds $5.000
- Interest Rates 5.125% t0 5.150%
Interest Dates June 15 and December 15
Principal Maturity Date December 15
Payable at American National Bank and Trust Company

Chicago, 1llinois

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax
Levy Requirements Interest Due on
Year Principal Interest Totals June 15 Amount Dec. 15 Amount
2005 § 205,000 227,588 432,588 2005 113,794 2005 113,794
2006 215,000 217,082 432,082 2006 108,541 2006 108,541
2007 225,000 206,062 431,062 2007 103,031 2007 103,031
2008 235,000 194,532 429,532 2008 97,266 2008 97,266
2009 250,000 182,488 432,488 2009 91,244 2009 91,244
2010 260,000 169,674 429,674 - 2010 84,837 2010 84,837
2011 275,000 156,350 431,350 2011 78,175 201t 78,175
2012 285,000 142,256 427,256 2012 71,128 2012 71,128
. 2013 300,000 127,650 427,650 2013 63,825 2013 63,825
2014 320,000 112,276 432,276 2014 56,138 2014 56,138
2015 335,000 95,876 430,876 2015 47938 2015 47,938
2016 355,000 78,706 433,706 2016 39,353 2016 39,353
2017 370,000 60,512 430,512 2017 30,256 2017 30,256
2018 390,000 41,458 431,458 2018 20,729 2018 20,729
2019 415,000 21,370 436,370 2019 10,685 2019 10,685

4,435,000 2,033,880 6,468,880 1,016,940 1,016,940
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Long-Term Debt Requirements

General Obligation Refunding Waterworks and Sewerage Bond Series of 2001A
April 30, 2006

Date of Issue Qctober 23, 2001

Date of Maturity May 1, 2013

Authorized Issue $5,290,000

Denomination of Bonds $5,000

Interest Rates 3.20% to 4.25%

Interest Dates May 1 and November 1

Principal Maturity Date May |

Payable at American National Bank and Trust Company

Chicago, Illinois

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax

Levy Requirements Interest Due on

Year Principal Interest Totals May | Amount Nov. 1 Amount
2005 $ 615000 99,538 714,538 2005 54,689 2005 44,849
2006 290,000 84,622 374,622 2006 44,848 2006 39,774
2607 310,000 73,813 383,813 2007 39,774 2007 34,039
2008 305,000 62,283 367,283 2008 34,039 2008 28,244
2009 320,000 50,079 370,079 2009 28,235 2009 21,844
2010 335,000 36,988 371,988 2010 21,844 2010 15,144
2011 350,000 23,113 373,113 2011 15,144 2011 7,969
2012 375,000 7,969 382,969 2012 7,969 2012 -

2,900,000 438,405 3,338,405 246,542 191,863




VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Long-Term Debt Requirements

General Obligation Refunding Sports Complex Bond Series of 2001
April 30, 2006

Date of Issue May 15, 2001

Date of Maturily December 15, 2020

Authorized Issue 317,800,000

Denomination of Bonds $5,000

interest Rates 4.250% to 5.125%

Interest Dates June 15 and December 15

Principal Maturity Date December 15

Payable at American National Bank and Trust Company

Chicago, [ilinois

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax
Levy Requirements Interest Due on
Year Principal Interest Totals June 15 Amount Pec. 15 Amount
2005 $ 355,000 829,768 1,184,768 2005 414,884 2005 414,884
2006 700,000 814,238 1,514,238 2006 407,119 2006 407119
2007 935,000 783,612 1,718,612 2007 391,806 2007 391,806
2008 970,000 742,706 1,712,706 2008 371,353 2008 371,353
2009 1,015,000 699,056 1,714,056 2009 349,528 2009 349,528
2010 1,850,000 653,382 1,703,382 2010 326,691 2010 326,691
2011 1,095,000 600,882 1,695,882 2011 300,441 2011 300,441
2012 1,145,000 546,132 1,691,132 2012 273,066 2012 273,066
2013 1,195,000 488,882 1,683,882 2013 244,441 2013 244,441
2014 1,255,000 429,132 1,684,132 2014 214,566 2014 214,566
2015 1,315,000 366,382 1,681,382 2015 183,191 2015 183,191
2016 1,380,000 300,632 1,680,632 2016 150,316 2010 150,316
2017 1,450,000 231,632 1,681,632 2017 115,816 2017 115,816
2018 1,515,000 159,132 1,674,132 2018 79,566 2018 79,566
2019 1,590,000 81,488 1,671,488 2019 40,744 2019 40,744
16,965,000 7,727,056 24,692,056 3,863,528 3,863,528
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Long-Term Debt Requirements

General Obligation Refunding Bond Series of 2004

April 30, 2006

Date of Issue May 11, 2004

Date of Maturity December 15, 2020
Authorized Issue $2,435,000
Denomination of Bonds $5,000

Interest Rates 4.10% to 4.45%

Interest Dates June 15 and Pecember 15
Principal Maturity Date December 15

Payable at Wells Fargo Bank, NA

Chicago, Ilinois

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax
Levy Requirements Interest Due on
Year Principal Interest Totals June 15 Amount Dec. 15 Amount
2006 $ - - 103,378 103,378 20006 51,689 2006 51,689
2007 - 103,378 103,378 2007 51,689 2007 51,689
2008 125,000 103,378 228378 2008 51,089 2008 51,689
2009 140,000 G8,252 238,252 2009 49,126 2009 49,126
2010 140,000 92,512 232,512 2010 46,256 2010 46,256
2011 155,000 86,772 241,772 2011 43,386 2011 43,386
2012 165,000 80,418 245,418 2012 40,209 2012 40,209
. 2013 180,000 73,652 253,652 2013 36,826 2013 36,826
2014 195,000 66,272 261,272 2014 33,136 2014 33,136
2015 195,000 58,278 253,278 2015 29,139 2015 29,139
2016 210,000 50,088 260,088 2016 25,044 2016 25,044
2017 215,000 41,058 256,058 2017 20,529 2017 20,529
2018 225,000 31,704 256,704 2018 15,852 2018 15,852
2019 240,000 21,806 261,806 2019 10,903 2019 10,903
2020 250,600 11,124 261,124 2020 5,562 2020 5,562

2,435,000 1,022,070 3,457,070 511,035 511,035

141



VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, TLLINOIS
Long-Term Debt Requirements

IEPA Sewer Revenue Bond Series of 1999

April 30, 2006

Date of Issue March 1, 1995

Date of Maturily September 1, 2014

Authorized Issue $2,854,333.36

Interest Rates 3.015%

Interest Dates March 1 and September 1

Principal Maturity Date March | and September 1

Payable at IHinois Environmental Protection Agency

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Fiscal Requirements
Year Principal Interest Totals
2007 $ 153,827 43,070 196,897
2008 158,500 38,397 196,897
2009 163,315 33,583 196,898
2010 168,276 28,622 196,898
2011 173,388 23,510 196,898
2012 178,654 18,243 196,897
2013 184,082 12,816 196,898
2014 189,673 7,224 196,897
2015 96,988 1,462 98,450
1,466,703 206,927 1,673,630
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(Unaudited)

This section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a
multi-year basis.



VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

General Governmental Revenues by Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years
April 30, 2006

See Following Page



VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

General Governmental Revenues by Source

(In Thousands)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

April 30, 2006

Fiscal Year 1997 1998 1999 2000

Taxes $ 3,704 4,379 4,523 4,663
Licenses and permits 679 1,115 1,314 1,299
Intergovernmental 8,242 9,098 9,762 9,947
Charges for services 2,326 2,537 3,653 3,425
Fines and forfeits : 185 183 188 188
Interest 315 861 914 1,076
Grants 434 26 23 425
Miscellaneous 1,039 528 988 1,018
Total 17,424 18,727 21,365 22,041

Note: Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds.

Data Source: Village Records
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2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
4,890 5,284 5,750 5,895 6,301 6,835
935 1,390 1,168 1,324 1,888 1,863
10,171 10,474 10,049 9,802 9,531 10,065
3,530 3.858 3,881 4,679 4,795 5,475
169 183 199 200 226 241
1,313 814 447 252 171 422
220 296 236 - - -
1,203 1,010 998 397 386 387
22,431 23,309 22,728 22,549 23,298 25,288
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

General Government Expenditures by Function

(In Thousands)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

April 30, 2006

Fiscal Year 1997 1998 1999 2000

General Government $ 3,149 2,073 1,773 2,123

Cominunity Development - - 715 725

Public Safety 5,630 5,876 6,912 7,793

Public Works 2,599 2,523 2,072 2,541

Parks and Recreation 1,963 2,140 2,256 2,502

Economic Development - - - -

Capital Outlay 4,071 4,576 3,080 3,794

Debt Service 1,142 1,148 1,218 1,594
18,554 18,336 18,026 21,072

Note: Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds.

Data Source: Village Records
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2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
2,373 2,766 3,117 2,369 2,454 2,465
823 868 860 1,004 945 1,035
8.258 9,554 10,358 10,730 10,740 11,944
2,280 2,306 2,948 2,018 2,052 2,084
2,765 3,262 2,796 2,855 2,659 2,792
- - - 604 704 124
4,934 6,724 5,483 439 978 1,866
1,631 662 1,593 1,614 1,460 1,473
23,064 26,142 27,155 22,233 21,992 23,783
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Property Tax Levies and Collections

(In Thousands)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

April 30,2006

Percent

Tax Tax of
Levy Levy Levy
Year Extended Coliections Collected
1997 $ 3,433 hY 3,442 100.26%
1998 3,550 3,515 099.01%
1999 3.667 3,650 99 .54%
2000 3,894 3,864 99.23%
2001 4,075 4,072 99 .93%
2002 4,184 4,146 99.09%
2003 4,365 4,279 98.03%
2004 4,589 4,520 98.50%
2005 4,766 * 4,416 92.66%
2006 4,639 N/A N/A

*Collections accounts through 9/06
N/A - Not applicable

Data Source: Village Records
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Actual and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
{In Thousands)
Last Ten Levy Years

April 30, 2006
Ratio of
Egualized
Assessed
Tax Equalized Estimated Value to
Levy Assessed Actual Estimated
Year Value Value Actual Value
1996 $ 572,883 $ 1,718,649 0.333
1997 603,542 1,810,620 0.333
1998 621,155 1,863,465 0.333
1999 659,459 1,978,377 0.333
2000 699,751 2,099,253 0.333
2001 758,653 2,275,959 0.333
2002 801,816 2,405,448 0.333
2003 899,255 2,697,765 0.333
2004 954,658 2,863,974 0.333
2005 1,039,667 3,119,001 0.333

Data Source: Lake County Tax Extension Division

148



VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Property Tax Rates* - Direct and Overfapping Governments
Last Ten Levy Years

Aprii 30, 2006

Tax Levy Year 1996 1997 1998 1999

Tax Rates*
Village 0.582 0.565 0.567 0.552
Grade School District #70 3.059 3.043 3.034 2.965
High School District #128 1.722 1.937 1.929 1.886
Lake County 0.525 (.531 0.531 0.521
Libertyville Township 0.329 (0.310 0.297 0.288
Library 0.258 0.259 ' 0.260 0.257
Other 0.465 0.462 0.460 0.477

Total Tax Rate 6.940 7.107 7.078 6.946

Village's Share of Total
Tax Rate 8.39% 7.95% 8.01% 7.95%

* Property tax rates are per $100 of assessed valuation and represent a typical household within the Village.
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2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

(G.549 0.530 0.515 0.479 0.474 0.451
2932 2.870 2.792 2.581 2.499 2.378
2.203 2.344 2.391 2359 2.291 2225
0.521 0.516 0.502 0.490 0.465 0.454
0.272 0.256 0.232 0.060 0.058 0.057
0.256 0.254 0.247 0.236 0.231 0.225
0.538 0.498 0.514 0.526 0.516 0.498
7.271 7.268 7.193 6.731 6.534 6.288
7.55% 7.29% 7.16% 7.12% 7.25% 7.17%
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt to Assessed Value
and Net General Obligation Bonded Debt Per Capita

Last Ten Fiscal Years
April 30, 2006

Fiscal Year

Population

Assessed Value
(In Thousands)

Gross General Obligation
Bonded Debt
(In Thousands)

Less Debt Service Funds
(In Thousands)

Net General Obligation
Bonded Debt
{In Thousands)

Ratio of Net General
Obligation Bonded Debt
to Assessed Value

Net General Obligation
Bonded Debt Per Capita

1997

1998

1999

2000

19,174

$ 572,883

8,965

944

8,021

1.40%

418.33

19,174

603,542

8,405

1.39%

438.35

19,174

621,155

12,130

842

11,288

1.82%

588.71

Data Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Lake County Tax Extension Division, Village Records
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19,174

659,459

11,670

860

10,210

1.55%

532.49



2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

20,742 20,742 20,742 20,742 20,742 20,742
699,751 758,653 -~ 801,816 - 899,255 954,658 1,039,667
11,760 16,740 9,615 8,490 7,345 26,735
844 925 1,007 927 923 946
10,916 9,815 8,608 7,563 6,422 25,789
1.56% 1.29% 1.07% 0.84% 0.67% 2.48%
526.28 473.19 415.00 364.62 309.61 1243.32
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Obligation Debt

To Total General Governmental Expenditures
Last Ten Fiscal Years

April 30, 2006
Fiscal Year 1997 1998 1999 2000
Principal $ 710,000 735,000 795,000 1,060,000
Interest 431,719 413,548 423,242 534,552
Total Debt Service 1,141,719 1,148,548 1,218,242 1,594,552
Total General Governmental

Expenditures

(In Thousands) 18,554 18,336 18,026 21,072

Ratio of Debt Service

Expenditures to

General Governmental

Expenditures 6.15% 6.26% 6.76% 7.57%
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2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2000

1,110,000 140,000 1,125,000 1,170,000 1,140,600 1,190,000
520,819 522,044 467,723 408,488 320,035 282,872
1,630,819 662,044 1,592,723 1,578,488 1,460,035 1,472,872
23,064 26,142 27,155 22,233 21,985 22,784
7.07% 2.53% 5.87% 7.10% 6.64% 6.46%
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Legal Debt Margin

April 30, 2006
Assessed Valuation - 2005 $ 1039667 041
Legal Debt Limit - 8.625% of Assessed Valuation 89,671,282

Amounnt of Debt Applicabie to Debt Linnt

General Obligation Bonds of 2000 1,705,000
General Obligation Bonds of 2003A 495 000
Legal Debt Margin 87.471.282

Chapter 50, Section 405/1 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes provides, "...no municipality having a population
of less than 300,000 shall become indebted in any mangper or for any purpose, to an amount, inciuding
existing indebtedness in the aggregate exceeding 8.625% on the value of the taxable property therein, to be
ascertained by the last assessment for state and county purposes, previous to the incurring of the indebtedness
or, until January 1, 1983, if greater, the sum that is produced by multiplying the municipality's 1978
equalized assessed valuation by the debt limitation percentage in effect on January 1, 1979."
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Direct and Overtapping Bonded Debt
April 30, 2006

156

Data Source: Lake County Clerk's Office, Hlinois Tax Extension Division.

Percentage
of Debt
Applicable
Gross to Village's

Governmental Unit Bonded Debt Government Share of Debt
Village of Libertyville $ 32,890,000 100.00% § 32,890,000
Overlapping Debt:

Libertyville School District #70 8,834,172 90.82% 8,023,195

Hawthorn School District #73 41,936,175 14.14% 5,929,775

Fremont Center School District #79 9,790,000 4.51% 441,529

Community High School District #128 43,160,000 36.36% 15,692,976

Mundelein High School District #120 9,961,759 5.77% 574,793

Grayslake High School District #127 54,409,516 0.10% 54,410

Lake County Community College #3532 11,926,084 4.35% 518,785

Lake County 5,480,000 4.13% 226,324

Lake County Forest Preserve District 200,896,729 4.13% 8,297,035

Central Lake County JAWA 29,170,000 15.86% 4,626,362

Fremont Public Library District 8,450,000 2.92% 246,740

Subtotal 424,014,435 44,631,924

Total 456,904,435 77,521,924




VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS
Demographic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

April 30, 2006
2) 3

Fiscal (1) Per Capita School
Year Population Income Enroliment
1997 19,174 N/A 2,521
1998 19,174 N/A 2,469
1999 19,174 N/A 2,536
2000 19,174 : 40,426 2,647
2001 20,742 40,426 2,671
2002 20,742 40,426 2,649
2003 20,742 40,426 2,665
2004 20,742 40,426 2,714
2005 20,742 40,426 2,656
2006 20,742 40,426 2,650

Data Sources:
(1) U.S. Bureau of the Census
(2) Local Chamber of Commerce

(3) School District Administrative Offices - District 70

N/A - Not Available
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, IL.LINOIS

Property Value and Construction

(In Thousands)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
April 30, 2006
Commercial
Construction Restdential Construction
Calendar Number Number Property
Year of Permits Value of Permits Value Value
1997 258 $ 23,837 704 $ 15,968 1,810,626
1998 326 30,027 767 20,506 1,863,464
1999 427 43,125 829 21,728 1,978,378
2000 316 44,827 859 22,538 2,099,253
2001 545 30,201 935 15,048 2,298,948
2002 515 92,646 1,664 21,283 2,405,449
2003 620 32,247 1,784 25,736 2,697,765
2004 042 31,876 2,790 44,284 N/A
2005 . 668 20,026 2,289 39,250 N/A
2006 , 631 38,929 2,115 31,152 N/A

Data Sources: Based on building permits issued by the Village's Department of Community Development.
Includes all construction activities: new buildings, additions, and remodeling.
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Principal Taxpayers

April 30, 2006
Percentage
2005 of Total
Assessed Assessed
Taxpayers Type of Business Valuation Valuation
Motorola Portable and Cellular Mobile Telephones § 16,659,716 1.60 %
Hollister Incorporated Health Care Products 9,841,969 0.935
Medical Center Properties Inc. Condell Medical Center/Hospital 3,973,335 .38
Brea Property Management Commercial Property 8,136,113 .78
Manufacturers Life Ins. Co. Commercial Insurance 7,259,681 .70
Temperature Equipment Corp. Heating/Air Conditioning Equipment 6,188,557 0.60
Guaranty Bank Commercial Bank 5,197,432 0.50
Libertyville Joint Venture Commercial Property 3,221,331 0.31
Bradiey Operating Ltd Shopping Center 3,921,351 0.38
California Tristate Teachers
Retirement System Industrial Property 4,211,105 0.41
68,610,590 6.61
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VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Miscellaneous Statistics
April 30, 2006

Date of Incorporation:
Form of Government:

Number of Employees
Full-time
Part-time

Land Area:
Miles of Streets:
Number of Street Lights

Culture and Recreation
Parks
Park acreage
Golf courses
Swimming pools
Tennis courts

Fire Protection
Number of Stations
Number of Firefighters
Number of Calls Answered
Number of Inspections Conducted

Police Protection
Number of Stations
Number of Sworn Officers
Number of Civilian Employees
Number of Patrol Units
Number of Law Violations
Physical Arrests
Traffic Violations
Parking Violations
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April 15, 1882

Council/Manager

177

654
9 square miles
80

2,281

20
604

-3 b o~

31
3,661
1,025

42
19
25

451
2,378
5,139



VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS

Miscellancous Statistics
April 30, 2006

Sewerage System
Miles of Sanitary Sewers
Miles of Storm Sewers
Number of Treatment Plants
Number of Service Connections
Average Daily Treatment (in Gallons)
Maximum Daily Capacity of Treatment Plant (in Gallons)

Water System
Miles of Water Mains
Number of Service Connections
Number of Fire Hydrants
Average Daily Consumption (in Gallons)

Education
Number of Elementary Schools
Number of Elementary School Instructors
Number of Secondary Schools
Number of Secondary School Instructors

Hospitals
Number of Hospitals
Number of Patient Beds

Data Source: Village Records

161

95

92

1

7,550
3,650,000
28,000,000

82
7.550
1,300

2,800,000
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176
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2006 DISCLOSURE

for

VILLAGE OF LIBERTYVILLE

Lake County, Illinois

CUSIP NUMBER: 531575

Relating to the following Bond Issucs:

$1,000,000 General Obligation Bands, Series 1997
$3,695,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998
$1,800,000 General Obligation Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2000
$5,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2000
$17,800,0600 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2001
$5,290,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2001A
$2,600,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2001B
$665,000 General Obligation Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2003A
$1,360,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003B
$2,435,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2004

and

$3,000,000 General Obligation Bonds (Waterworks and Sewerage System Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2006

For further information please contact:

Patricia A. Wesolowski
Director of Finance
Village of Libertyville

118 West Cook Street
Libertyville, THinois 60048

Telephone Number:  (847) 918-2102
Fax Number: (847) 362-9453



DERBT INFORMATION
Statement of Bonded Indebtedness(/)

Ratio To Per Capita
Amount Equatized Fstimated (2000 Census
Applicable Assessed Actual 20,742)
Village FAV of Taxable Property, 2006.. ... ... ... ....... ..., $1,039.667,041 100.00% 33.33% $ 50,123.76
Estimated Actual Value, 2005. .. ... . . .o e 3,119,001,123 300.00% 100.00% 150,371.28
Birect Bonded Debt{1). . ... oo e $ 35,275,000 3.39% 1.13% $ 1.700.66
Less: Self SUPPOrSIng . ... ... e (33,080,000) (3.18%) (1.06%) 3 (1,594 .83)
Net Direct Bonded Debt.. ... .. ... . . i $ 2.195.00¢ 6.21% 0.067% $ 105.82
Overlapping Bonded Debt(2}
RTer 119704 23R O $  31.235.463 3.00% 1.00% $ 1,505.90
AT OENEES . e 13.396 . 461 1.29% 0.43% §  645.86
Total Overlapping Bonded Debt........ e $ 44,631,924 4.29% 1.43% $ 2.151.77
Total Net Direct & Overlapping Debt......................... $ 46,826,924 4.50% 1.50% 3 2.267.59
Notes: (L) Source: The Village. Excludes installment contracts.
(2) As of March 31, 2006. Excludes maturities through May 1. 2006 and includes $4%,000.000 of Lake County Forest
Preserve District Bonds that sold on May 12, 2005.
Legal Debt Margin(i)
(As of April 30, 2006)
B.625% of
EAY
2005 £quatized Assessed Valuabion. . ... . e e $1.039,667,041
Statutory Debt Limitation (8.625% 0F EAVY L. . .. i o e 89,671,282
General Obligation Bonded Debt:
Sertes 199742) . . $ 700.G00
Series 1998{2).............. B 1,255,400
Series 2000. . .. L 1.700.000
Series 200002 . .. e 4,435,900
Series 2001(2) .. e 16,965,000
Series 2001A2) ... . 2.285.000
Series 2001B(2) . it e 1,175,000
Series Z803A. ... e 495,000
Series 2003B02) . .. e 830,000
Series 200402) .. e 2.435,00¢
Series 2006(2) . . . e 3,600,005
Total General Obligation Bonded Debt ............ ... $ 35,275,000
Less: Alternate Revenue Source Bonds:
Series 1907¢2) e $ (700.000}
Sories 19982) . e (1,255,000
Series 200002) . e (4,435,000}
Series 200102) . e {16.965,000)
Series 2001A02Y . . e e (2.285.000)
Serdes 2001802 . ittt e (1.175,000)
Series 2003B02) . e (830.00%)
Series 200402} . ... e (2,435,000
Series 2006(2) .. . e {3,000,000)
Total Alternate Bonds{2).......... ... ovinn. $(33.080,0003
Net Applicable Genmeral Obligation BONAS ... .. ... o oo $ 2,195,000
Qther Debt
Installment Contracts {As of April 30.2006) .......... 3 670,750
Total Other Debl ... o e e 670,750
Total AppYICaDIE DEDL ... .. et % 2,865,750
Legal DEBL MArGiN .. ..ottt e e e s $ 086,805 632
Notes: (1) Source: The Village. Excludes payments through May 1, 2006 and inctudes $3.000,000 of General

Obligation Bonds (Waterworks and Sewerage System Alternate Revenue Sourca), Series 2006 that
sold in July 2006 and were delivered in August 2006.

(2} General obligation alternate revenue source bonds under Illinois Statutes, do not count
against the overall 8.675% of EAV debt Vimit for general obligation bonded debt so fong as the
debt service levy for such bonds is abated annwally and not extended.
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Representative Tax Rates
Per $100 of Equalized Assessed Valuation{/)

Levy Years Maximum Unused
2001 2002 2063 2064 2065 Allowable Hargin
COPPOFALE .ottt et e e e e 30,1020 $0.0950 $0.0870 $0.G840 $0.G790 $0.25G0 68.40%
Street and Bridge. .. .. ..o 0.0650 0.0650 0.6570 0.6530 0.G480 0.1060 52 .00%
Fire Protection............. ... ... ... ..., e 0.0920 6.0870 0.0G780 0.G750 0.G700 0.1500 53.33%
Playgrounds ard Recreation......................... 0.0350 G.0330 0.6310 {.6300 {.629G 0.0960 67.78%
PArKS .o e 0.9350 (.0330 0.0310 0.0300 0.G29¢ 0.0750 61.33%
L 0.9430 ¢.6420 0.0380 0.0370 0.6356 Ko Limit
Police PEnsion L ....oeoniieioii i eas 0.9690 0.6720 0.0740 9.G750 0.0760 No Limit
Firefighters Pension......... ... .. ... .. ... .... 0.0540 £.0590 0.0570 0.06550 0.6526 Mo Limit
Recreation for the Handicapped..................... 0.0060 0.0000 0.0000 9.0110 0.6110 0.0400 72.50%
vimited Bonds ... i e n.032n 0.0790 00260 0.0090 0.¢000 Ho Limit
BONMAS < oottt e e e e e 00400 _U.puog 0.0000 0.6240 0.0220 No Limit
Fotal vitlage Rate............oooiiiii ot $0.5300 30 5150 $0.4790 4740 0 4510
Lake COUNEY . ...vre ittt eieens 0.5160 G.5020 0.45900 0.4650 0.4540
Lake County Forest Preserve Gistrict............... 0.2210 0.2320 0.2250 0.2190 0.2300
Libertyville Township - Read and Bridge ............ 0.0420 §.0420 0.0420 9.6430 0.0420
Libertyville Township. ... oot 0.2140 6.2000 0.0600 0.6580 6.0570
Cook Memorial Library District..................... 0.254) G.2470 0.2360 0.2310 0.2250
Central Lake County Joint Action Water Agency ...... {.46b0 G.0640 0. 0580 U.6540 0.0490
School Bistrict Number 70....... ... .. ... ... 2.8700 2.7520 2.5810 2.4990 2.3780
High Schoot District Number 128.................... 2.3440 2.3910 2.3590 2.2910 2.2750
Comunity College District Number 532.............. 0.2119 0.2080 0.2010 0.2000 {.1970
e T 11 < E P $7.2680 $7.14930 $6.734) $6.5340 $6. 2880
Village as a percent of Total............... 7.3% 7.2% 7.1% 7.3% 7.2%
Notes: (1) Source: Lake County Clerk.
(2) Representative tax rates for Libertyville Township Tax Code Number 38 which represents 72.5% of the Village's 2005 Equaiized

Assessed Yaluation.

Village Tax Extensions and Collections(/)

Levy Coll. Taxes Taxes Collected

Year Year Extended Amount Percent
2000, ... ... ... 2000 ... ... co... $3,840,305 $3.831,992 99.78%
2001, ... ... 2002, 4,019,880 4,018,578 99.97%
202, 2003........... .. 4,128.213 4,090,037 99.07%
003, 2004 ... ... 4,306.327 4,278,214 99.35%
2004, ... 2005. . ... ... 4,526,009 4,516,208 99.78%
2005, ... ... 2006{2) .......... 468985 0 ------ In Collection-------
Motes: (1) Source: Lake County Treasurer.

(2) In collection.

Principal Village Taxpayers(])

Percent
of
Taxpayer Name Business/Service 2005 FAV(Z) Village
Motorola Inc. ... .. i Portable and Cellutar Mobile Telepheomes ............... _.. 316,659,716 1.60%
Hoilister Incorporated...................... Corporate HQ and Health Care Products ........... ... .. .. G,841.969 0.95%
Brea Property Management.................... Real Property .. ..o i e e 8,136,113 0.78%
Manufacturers Life Insurance Company........ Insurance COmPANY .. .o oini it 7.259,681 0.70%
Temperature Equipment Corporation........... Wholesale Heating and Air Conditioning Equipment ......... 6,188,557 £.60%
Guaranty Bank......... ... ... il Commercial Bamk .. ... ..o 5.197,432 G.50%
CaYSEOPS . o e Real Property ... .o 4,211,105 0.41%
Bradiey Operating Ltd. ...................... Real Property .. ... e 3,821,351 0.38%
Medicall Center Properties, Inc............. Real Property ... e 3.973.33% 0.38%
Libertyyitle Joint Venture.................. ReaT PropertyY . e 3.221.331 0.31%
% ) PR D $68.610.599
Ten largest as a percent of the Village's 2005 £AV {$1,033.667.041) ... ... n, 6.60%
Notes: (1) Source; Lake County Assessor
(2) Every effort has been made to seek ocut and report the largest taxpayers. However, many of the taxpayers

listed contain multiple parcels, and it is possible that some parcels and their valuations have been
overlooked. The 2005 EAV is the most current avaitable.



FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Statement of Activities

Governmental Activities

Audited as of April 30:

2004 2005 2086

Governmental Activities:
Generat Goverament{l)....................... $ (540,687} $ 274,419 t 678,302
Community Development ... ....... ... ... (891.775) (771.732) (734,558)
Pubiic Safety. .. . covrrrr i (8.661,026) (8,730.503) (11.009,891)
PUDYiC WOrKS . oo e e (1,672.555) (1.392.929} (2.556.435)
Parks and Recreation........................ (2.541,198) (2,353,691) (1,760,288)
Economic Development . ... .. ... ... ... L. (109.275) (703,633) {124,291)
Interest of Long-TermDebt.................. (409.403) (305,635} {769,242)

Total Governmental Activities. ............ $(14,825.919) $(13,983,104) $(15,746,403)
General Revenues:
Taxes:

Property Taxes .. vveeerieieenianninna.. $ 5.523,186 $ 5,938.005 3 6,405,525
OEhEr TEXES . et e e 372,206 362,902 429,598
Intergovernmental

Sales and Use Taxes............ A, 7.840,044 7.420,912 7,735,611
TRCOmE TaXBS . . o ne e e e 1,253,563 1.404.226 1,584,940
Other . . e 165,305 87.424 74,214
Interest Income......... oo, 278,943 184,131 431,533
Miscellaneous. ....... ... e 396,933 386,081 387,140
Transfers - Internal Activity......... IV 164 ,98¢ 193,090 103,690

Total General Revenue............... R $ 15,875,166 $ 15,886,861 $ 17,152,261
Change in Net Assets........................ $ 1,049,241 $ 1.903.757 4 1,405.848
Met Assets Beginning........................ 33,890,850 34,740,131 143,080,978
Net Assets Ending.. ... oronnn.. $ 34,940,131 $ 36,643,888 $144,486,826
Note: (L Expenses less Program Revenues for Charges for Services and Capital

Grants/Contributions.



REVENUES:

Licenses and Permits....................
Intergovernmental .......................
Charges for Services....................
fines and Forfeits......... ... ... ... ...

Miscellaneous...... .. ...,
Total Revenues........................

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Gereral Government ... ... ... ... . ...,
Comuinity Development..... ... .. e
Pub¥ic Safety........ . ... . .
Public Works. ... ... ... ... ... ........
Parks and Recreation...................
Total Expenditures. .. ..... ... ... .....

Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures...................

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In...... . ... .ol
Transfers Qut. . ... ... ... ... ... .. ...

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances.............

Fund Balances - Beginming ..............
Fund Balances - Ending..................

Note: (1 As restated.

Statement of Revenues and Expendifures
General Fund

Audited Year Ended April 30:

2042 2403 2004 2005 2006

... $3.853.683 $ 4,043,127 $ 4,151,564 $ 4,616,631 $ 4,937,965
... 1,086,433 861.165 1,623,211 931.936 1,051,786
LS. B.724.554 §.298.709 8.119.505 8.006,837 8,428,129
o 3,382,621 3.401.938 4,168,839 4.517.958 5,106,072
e 182.947 198.811 199.761 226,257 241,105
c 506,821 362.279 197.251 143,328 325.224
e 30,448 26.911 0 0 0
o 779,827 723,264 355,456 207,427 366,049
... $18.517.334 $17,916.204 $18.215,587 $18.650,374 $20, 456,330
S 32,566,130 $ 2,768,509 $ 1.989.388 $ 2.296.028 $2.318.431
coen 868,205 859,782 1.803,924 945,485 1.034.897
oo 5.444.107 9,984,674 10,249 498 10,746,333 11.944,339
e Lens ey 1.857.618 1,942,383 2,052,131 2.083.919
S 3.261.693 2.795,762 2,855,035 2,653,305 2,792 256
... $18,113.382 $18.266.345 $18.040,278 $18.693.782 $20,173,842
... % 403,852 $ (350,141) $ 175,399 3 (42.998) $ 282,488
I 39,000 $ 39.600 3 394.517 $ 0 $ 0
e (780,000) (95.€00) (45,G00) (60,060} (80,800)
..o % (741,000) 3 (56,0007 $ 349,517 $ (60,0000 $ (80,600
... % (337.048) $ (466,141} $ 524.87c 3 (102.908) $ 202,488
Lo.. 10,364 28410 3.855,924(1) 9.920,113(1) 10,444,989 10,342,081
Lo $10.027 236 $ 9.449,783 $10.444 989 $10,342.081 $10.544 569



Budget and Unandited
General Fund

Actual
Budget Fiscal Year
2006 2006
REVENUES:
Property Taxes .. .. .o . $ 4,445 300 $ 4,472,599
Other Faxes .. ... .. . 373.006 429,598
SB1eS FaKES ..ot 6,528,500 6,512,520
INCOme TaX. ... e 1,472,600 1.584,94¢0
Other Intergovernmental Revenue ........ ... ... ... ..... 325,100 330.669
Building Permits . ... ... . ... ... 494,600 769,895
Fines and Penalties. ... ... ... ... ... .. ..o 231.000 741,105
Libertyville Fire Protection District.. ... ... .. .. ... 2.11G.640 2.110.651
Recreation Fees ... .. . i 1.444 045 1.320,083
Parking Fees .. ... it 4,600 5.065
Interest Income ... ... ... .. o i 304,600 325,224
Transfers In. ... ... .. . . . . 0 [H
Other Revenues . ... ... .. . i 1,860,120 2,353,981
Total General Fund Revenues ........................ $19.612.905 $20,456,33¢
EXPENDITURES:
Administration. ... ... . .. .. . $ 1,114,670 $ 1.058,744
Engineering . .. ... ... i e 410,280 406,348
Highways & Bridges ... ... . ... .. L. 1,448,585 1,427,599
Snow Removal and Ice Control.......... ... ... ........ 246,460 221,966
PIanning .. ... . 420,565 404,568
Buitding. .. ... e 682.010 630,329
PO . e 6.281.72% 6.242.721
[ T = O 5,395,020 5,355,497
Parks.......... P e 1.218.300 1.240,737
Recreation. ... . .. . . 1,109,670 1,034,833
Swimming Pool Operations........... ... i 392,765 350,936
Riverside Park Goif Course. ... ... ... ... ........... 207.385 165,750
Senior Programs .. ... 69,680 66,464
Emergency Management Agency .. ............ .. L. 24,959 19.568
Legisiative Boards and Committees .................... 128.885 126,757
Legal . 468,000 461,765
Central Business District . ... ... . ... .. .. ... ... ... 28,570 26.450
Commnity Organizations/Activities .. ... ... .. ..., ... 215,000 216,013
Public Butldings ... .o oo e 182,345 180,120
tmergency Telephone System........ .. ... ... ... ... 315,933 326,553
Hotel/Motel Tax... ... .. ... . .. i, 208,260 188,128
Other Expenditures ................ B 49,580 28,606
Total Expenditures ... ... ... . oo $2¢.618.558 $20.173.842
Transfers Qub .. ... ... .. . o $ (80,000} $_(8n 60l
Excess of Income over Expenses ....................... $(1,085,653} $ 202,488



Statement of Net Assetls
Governmental Activities

Audited as of April 30

2004 2005 2006(1})
ASSETS:
Current Assets
Cash and Investments ... ... ... . ... ... ..o $ 10.595,023 $ 12,035,784 $ 12,560,004
Receivables - Net.. ... ... ... .. . ... ... ... ... 8.397.644 8,377,916 9,229,461
Internal Balances ..................oononn. R 1,679,633 1.036.604 2,215,484
Prepaid Ttems/Inventory ... ... . oot 532,172 436,430 513,982
Tota? Current Assets ... ... ... .o it $ 20.604.472 $21.886.734 $ 24,522,931
Capitai Assets
T2 1« A  2.976.162 3 2,976,162 $ 97.812.093
Infrastructre . . ..o o 20,153,258 21,473,659 47,036,993
Suildings and Improvements .......................... 15,922,818 15,922,818 16.628.146
Machinery and Equipment.... .................... ... .. 12,393,416 12,714,958 6,221,208
Total Capital Assets......... .. .ot $ 51,445,654 $ 53,087,597 $167,698.440

Less:  Accumulated Depreciation......................

(18,864,001

(20,861,374}

(30,217 070)

Total Capital Assets....... ... .. it $ 32,581,653 $ 32,226,223 $137,481.370
Total Assels . ... .. $ 53,186,125 $ 54,112.957 $162.004,301
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable. ... ... .. ... 4 577.390 $ 333,744 $ 526,223
Accrued Payroly . o 517,148 593,963 6465, 064
Deposits Payable . ... ... ... .. ol 400,795 529.191 684,571
Interest Payable . .. ... ... ... .. 120,151 104.826 91,156
Deferred ROVENUBS ... oot i 6,315,927 6,731,032 7,143,835
Current Portion of long Term Debt................... 1,603,961 1,558, 814 1,683,526
Total Current ASSEES ... v e e $ 9.535.37¢ $ 9,851,570 $ 10.774.415
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Net Pension ObYigation............. .. ... . ... .. .. $ 134,471 k4 142.944 $ 140,472
Compensated Absences Payable........................ 1,008,794 1.061.,915 1.204,034
Installment Contract Payable.... ... . ... . ....... ... 222.357 257,640 458,554
TEPA Loans Payable .. ... ¢ ¢ 0
General Obligation Bonds Payable.................... 7,345,000 6,155,000 4,940,000
Total Moncurrent Liabilities.. ... ... ... ... ... $ 8,710,622 $ 7.617,49% 4 6.743.060
Total Ligbilities. . ... .o s $ 18,245,994 $ 17,469.069 $ 17.517.475
NET ASSEFS:
Invested in Capital Assets - Net of Related Debt..... $ 23.528.062 $ 24,520,248 $130, 700,298
Restricted - Special Revenues ...................... .. 394,517 906,732 363,140
Restricted - Debt Service.. ... ... ... ... ..., 807,122 818,583 853,859
Unrestricted. ... e 10,210,430 10,398,325 12.579.529
Total Net Assels . .. ... .t e $ 34,940,131 4 36,643,888 $144 486,826

Note: n
appraisal.

Governmental Infrastructure Assets added in FY 2006 and other assets restated due to



Balance Sheet
General Fund

Audited as of April 30;

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

ASSETS:
Cash and Investments........................ $ 9,219,834 $ 8.615,557 $ 7.814.409 $ 8.087.728 $ 7.399.270
Receivables- Net of Allowances:

Property Taxes... ............... e 3.717:111 3.895,786 4,104,689 4,332,667 4,510,610
Qther faxes....... ... .. ... . i i i i ] 0 1,751,660 1,514,950 1.608,462
ACCOUNES . ... 25,681 15.576 213,615 305,592 461,085
Accrued Inferest.... . ... ... oLl 90,376 726,854 30.458 29.571 51.018
Due From Other Governments .. ................ 2,010,220 1.863.148 0 G 0
Pue From Gther Funds .. ... .. ... .......... 0 8.035 1.409.761 1,366,732 2.219.484
Prepaid Ttems...... ... ... . i 0 135,163 521.598 420,584 485, 305

Total Assets. .. .. $16.123 222 314,560,119 $15.906 430 $16.057 824 316,735 234
EIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable.... ... ... ... . ..., 422,747 $380.027 $ 444,320 $ 264,770 ¢ 368.787
Accrued tiabilities.. .. ... .. ... L. 896,128 834,109 0 0 0
Accrued Payroll . ... 0 0 499,773 576,342 626,697
Deposits Payable............ .. ...... .. ... 0 0 400,795 529,191 684,571
Due to Other Funds. .. ... ... ................. ] 414 11,738 12.773 0
Deferred Revenues.......................... 3,777,111 3.895,786 4,104,875 4,332,667 4,510,610

Total Liabilities.. ... ... ... ... ... .. ... $ 5,095,986 $ 5,118,336 $ 5,461,501 $ 5,715,743 $ 6,190,665
Fund Balances:

Reserved - Prepaid ftems................... $ 9 $ 135,163 $ 571,598 $ 420,584 $ 485,305
Reserved - Special Revenues................ 228,459 0 394,537 353.811 353,140
Reserved - Debt Service.................... & 0 0 9 0
Unreserved - Nonmajor Special Revenues ... .. 0 0 0 fi 0
Unreserved. ... ... .. . . . 9.798.777 9,314,620 9,578,874 9 567,686 9,706,124

Total fFund Balances....................... $10.027.236 $ 9.449,783 $10.444.989 310,342,081 $10.544.569

Total Liabilities and Fund Balarces....... $15,123 227 $14.564.119 315,906,490 $16.067.824 $i6.735.234
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. Effective
July 1, 2003
Minimum - First 4,008 Gallons:
Water . . ..o $21.32
SBMEr 14.40
Gver 4,060 Gallons:
Water ... .. ... .. .. . £ 4.18
B 2.50
Major System Users
(As of November 10, 2005)
Name Dollars Biiled
Motorola ... ... ... .. l.l.. $273,423
Condel Hospital ....................... 201,383
Winchester House ....................... 119,723
Tempel Steel (..o o 679,365
US Gypson ... . 56,587
Libertyville High School ..., .. ..., ... 43.87%
Americana Health Care .................. 40,508
Intercontinental IHC Group ............. 28,144
Hitch-Inn Post ... .. .. ... ... ........ 21,669
Liberty Tower ... ... ... . .. .. .. ... 27,668
Total ... o 4888346

Rates and Charges

Rates Per 1,000 Gallons

THE WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE SYSTEM

June 1, 2006
$22.20
14.80

$4.4D
2.60

Gallons Used
(1.000 Gallons)

23,200
31,157
i8.922
10,376
B.463
6.560
6.056
4.220
4,134
4,134
117,222




Waterworks and Sewerage Fund
Statement of Net Assets - Fiscal Years 2004, 2005 and 2006
Balance Sheets - Fiscal Years 2002 and 2003

Aucdited as of April 30:

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
ASSETS:
Cash and Investments. ... ... ................ $ 5.658.697 $ 4,665,225 $ 4.598.421 $ 3,372,195 $ 3.341.194
Receivables - Net of Allowances
Property Taxes. ... ... i 26.828 26.828 26,784 26,784 26,784
ACCOUES . . 1,7287.978 1,136,79% 1.121.483 1,015,635 1,246,871
Accrued Interest............... ... ... ..... 42,918 36.571 32,380 8,775 12,738
Due From Other Funds. ... ... ... ...... 724,837 1,753,501 1.281.401 1,281,401 951,273
Prepatd EXpenses. ... i, 51,488 60,485 52.009 52,060 68,519
Total. .. ... . $ 8,792,646 $ 7.679.406 $ 7,112,469 $ 5,756,790 $ 5,647,379
Capital Assets(l)
Land. . e ;] [} i 0 3 68,9226 1 68,920 4 2,272,080
Buildings dnd Tmprovements. ..., ... 0 0 8,088,322 8,290,450 14.016.621
Machinary and Equipment.................... i} 0 3,224,782 3,224,782 1,684,716
Waterworks System. . _.... .. E ] 0 17.268.716 18,367,444 12,930,848
Sewerage System.. ... ... ... 0 0 19 220 180 19,409,971 13,631,993
Total . . § 45,584,371 $ 46,650 /56 $ 47,850,920 $ 49,302,007 $ 44,536,258
Accumutated Depreciation.. .. ... ... ... .... (20,232.036) {21,608, 485) (23.033.424) {24.468,507) {19,965,004
Net Capital Assets.......................... § 25,352,335 § 25,042,271 3 24,817,496 $ 24.893.500 $ 74,571,254
Total Assets.. ... ... o $. 34,344 981 $ 32,721,677 $ 31,979 965 $.30.650.290 $.30.218 633
LIABILITEES:
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payahle. ... ... .. ... ... ... ... $ 1.02t,222 $ 298.769 3 669,645 $ 338,749 13 465,817
Retainage Payable.......................... 76,850 106,207 0 0 0
Accrued Payroll. ..o oo 186,435 288,016 63,537 66,005 66,751
Deposits Payable. .. ... ...... ... R 17.315 19.385 20,522 20.682 17.306
Accrued Interest Payable (2)............... {2) (2) 83.537 73,336 62,059
Due to Other funds............ ... ......... g 0 G 0 0
Deferred Revenues.......................... 141,787 130.000 152,000 144,000 136,600
Compensated Absences Payable............... G 0 56.279 57,763 68,659
Interest Payable - Bonds................... 92,929 79,449 0 0 0
Interest Payable - 1EPA Loan............... 10,241 9,505 0 0 0
Installment Contract Payable............... 0 0 0 0 0
TIEPA Loans Payable. ... ......... ... ... ..., 136,473 146,619 144 891 149,292 163,827
General Obligation Bonds Payable........... 545,400 595,060 615,000 635,000 615,600
Total Current Liabilities................ § 2,228,262 $ 1,667,000 $ 1,805,411 $ 1,478,827 $ 1.585.418
Noncurrent Liabiiities
Compensated Absences Payable............... $ 0 $ 0 $ 225,117 $ 231,052 $ 274,637
[nstallment Contract Payable............... 0 0 0 0 G
[EPA Loans Payable. ... ... . ..ooovaiiatn, 1,901,505 1,760,886 1,615,995 1,466.703 1,312.876
General Cbligation Bonds Payable........... 4,745,000 4,150,060 3,535,000 2,900,000 2,285,000
Unamortized Bond Discount .. .. .. ........... (99 .642) (82.5633 {67.244) £63.792) (42,265)
Total Moncurrent Liabilities............. % 6.546 863 $_5,828 323 $ 5,308.868 $ 4.543.963 $ 3,830,248
Total Liabitities........................ $ 8.775,115 $ 7.495.323 $ 7.114.2719 $6.022.790 $ 5.415.666
FUND EQUITY:
Contributed Capital. ... ... ... ... .. ... $ 12,647,035 $ 12,943,592
Retained £arnings - Unreserved............. 12,722,831 12,282,762
Total Fund Equity........... ..., ........ $ 26.369.866 $ 26.226.354
Total Liabilities and Fund Equity........ $ 34,144,981 $ 32 721 677
NET ASSETS(3)
Invested in Capital Assets
- Net of Available Debt .. ... . . e § 18,973,854 $ 19.796.297 $ 20,246,816
Unrestricted. ... o o e e e 5,841,832 4,831,203 4,556,151
Total Het Assels .. o e $ 24,815,686 $ 24,627,500 $ 24 802 967
MNotes: (1) Detail not available for fiscal years 2607 and 2003.
(2) Cetailed separately in 2002 and 2003, as Interest Payabie - Bonds and Interest Payable - IEPA Loan.
(3 Mot comparable to fiscal years 2002 and 2003.



Waterworks and Sewerage Fund
Revenues and Expenditures

Audited Year Ended April 30:

2002 2003 2604 2005 2006
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Services
Water Sales.......... ...t RN $ 3.314.686 $ 3.542,108 $ 3,705.574 $ 3.637.883 $ 4,281,209
Sewer Service Charges...................... 1,964,471 2.009,932 2.179.293 2,142.981 2,290,799
Sewer Process Fees. ..o i 160,838 165,626 ] 0 8
Damage to Village Property................. 0 ¢ 130 3.829 3,065
Meters and Readouts......... ... ... ... .. 0 g 24.929 32,156 25,755
Miscellaneous.............................. 450,716 122,543 10,695 14,425 6,904
Total Charges for Service................. $ 5,850,711 $ 5,840,209 $ 5,920,625 $ 5,831,274 $ 6.607.792
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Operations(l). .. .. .. ... ... ... ... ...... $ 2,587,378 $ 2,498,786
Purchase of Mater(2)... ........ ... ... .. 1,968,238 2.140.617
Water Operations................. .. ... ... 4 0 $ 3.201,567 $ 3,219,716 $ 3,008,871
Sewer OQperations.............. ... e G 0 R38,106 667.936 741,258
Wastewater Treatment Plant................. 0 0 952,171 907,712 1,006,125
Water and Sewer Capital Improvements....... 0 0 391,467 81,745 715,233
Depreciation and Amortization............ .. 1,642,545 1,393.527 1.440.259 1,448,536 1,071,545
Total Operating Expenses.......... e $ 6.198.161 $ 6,032.930 $ 6.524.176 4 6.325.645 $ 7.3147.032
Operating Income (Loss)............. e $ (307.450) $ 192.721) $  (603.551) $ (494.371) § (539,244
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income. ...... ... ... . ... ... .... $ 348,939 $ 193,823 ¥ 118.180 $ 51.609 $ 89,18¢
Connection Fees. ... .. ... ... 0 0 488,370 504.825 303,656
Peoperty Tax.. .. ..o e 26,848 26,840 26,784 26,784 26,784
Other Income........... . .ot 0 0 8,000 8.000 8,000
Interest and Fiscal Charges................. (299,722) (234, 440) (210,309) (181,943} (156,166}
Total Non Qperating Revenues (Expenses)... $ 76,065 $ (13,771 $ 431,035 $ 409,275 $  271.454
Income (Loss) Before Transfers.............. $ (231,385 $ (206,498} $ (172.516} $ (85,096} $ (267.786)
Transfers Qut, met.. ... ... ... ... ... ... {131,910} (131,630} {104,980 (103,090} (103,690}
Intrafund Transfer from
Restricted Retained Earnings............... 863,130 0
MNet Income (LOSS) ... ... ..o it $ (363,295} $ (338,128}
Retained Earnings (Deficit), May 1.......... 12,358,975 12.722.83%
Prior Period Adjustment. ... ... .. . .. ... (135,979} (101,941)
Retained Earnings (Deficit). April 30....... $12.858. 810 $12.262.762
Change TN Hel ASSELS .. o o et $ (277.496) $ (188,186) (37147604
Net Assets - Beginming(3) . ..o e e 25,093,182 24,815,686 25,174,443
Net Assets - Ending(B) . . e e $24,815, 606 $24,627.500 $24.802 907
Hotes: {1) Totals listed for 2002 and 2003.
{2} Not detailed separately in 2004 and 2005.
{(3) Mot comparable to 2002 and 2003.
4 Net assets beginning were restated due to change in fixed assets.



Coverage
Waterworks and Sewerage Fund

Net Available Debt Service{l} Available for Subordinate Obligation
Fiscat for Debt Series The Subordinate EPA
Year Service(?2) Z001A Bonds{3) Total Coverage {bligation Loan Coverage
2007 ....... $1.644.374  379.698 $ 92,394 $ 472,092 3.48X $1.372.282 $ 196,897 5.95X%
2008 ... 1.644,374 389,548 198.193 587.740 Z.80X 1.056,634 196,897 5.37X%
2009 ....... 1,644,374 373.078 200,268 573,345 2.87x 1,071,629 196,898 5.44X
2010 ....... 1,644,374 376,488 202.148 578.635 2.84X 1.065,739 96,298 5.41X%
2011 ....... 1.644 374 378,688 198,790 577.478 2.85X 1,066,697 196,898 5.42%
1) 1,644,374 380,268 200,423 580,720 2.83X 1,063.654 196, 897 5.40X
2003 ....... 1,644,374 390,938 201,833 592,770 277X 1,051,604 196,898 5. 34X
2004 ..., 1,644,374 0 333,933 333,032 4.94X 1,311,342 196,898 6. 66X
2015 ....... 1.644.374 0 333.833 333,833 4.93X 1,310,542 98.450 13.31x%
2016 ....... 1.644.374 9 334,113 334,113 492X 1,310,262 0
2017 ....... 1,644,374 { 333.863 333,863 4.93X 1,310,512 0
2018 ... .. 1,644,374 0 338,138 338,138 4.86% 1,366,237 0
2089 ... .. 1.644,374 0 341.725 341,725 4.81X 1,302,649 0
2020 ....... 1.644 374 ¢ 339.690 339,690 4.84x 1,304,684 0
2001 ..., .. 1.644,374 G 342.090 242,690 4,81X 1,302,284 0
222 ... .. 1,644,374 0 343.860 343.860 4.78X 1,300,514 ]
Tetal ... ... ... ... ... $2.668,723 $4.334,399 $7.003.122 $1.673.631
Notes: (1) fFor debt service inciuding the May 1 principal and interest due.
(23 Source: The Village's 2006 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This amouni includes $6.607,792 total charges for

service less $5.356.254 total operating expenses not including $719,233 of capital improvements and $1.071.545 of
depreciation and amortization, plus of $89,180 interest income and $303.656 of connection fees.



